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TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS:
Privia Health is making great progress on our
vision of building one of the largest primary-care
centric care delivery networks in the country.
2024 was another year of robust performance and
growth across all our markets. Our momentum
extended across all aspects of our business as
we exceeded the high end of all financial and
operational guidance metrics. Our growth team
once again delivered an exceptional year of new
provider signings, which underpins our strong
outlook through 2025.

2024 Performance –
Strong Growth and Profitability
Privia Health’s strong operational execution
continued through 2024. Full-year total GAAP
(Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
Revenue was $1.74 billion, a 4.7% increase from
2023. We reported GAAP Net Income of $14.4
million in 2024, which declined from GAAP Net
Income of $23.1 million in 2023. GAAP Net Income
in 2024 and 2023 included $66.2 million and
$45.0 million, respectively, in non-cash stock
compensation, non-recurring and other expenses.
Non-GAAP Adjusted Net Income increased 19.8%
in 2024 to reach $97.6 million, compared to $81.5
million in 2023.

The results of our key operating and non-GAAP
financial metrics for full-year 2024 highlight our
continued growth and momentum:

• Implemented Providers increased 484 to
reach 4,789, up 11.2% from the prior year;

• Value-Based Care Attributed Lives were 1.26
million, up 12.1% from year-end 2023;

• Practice Collections were $2.97 billion, up 4.5%
from the prior year;

• Care Margin* was $403.9 million, a 12.4%
increase from 2023;

• Platform Contribution* was $195.6 million, up
12.8% from the prior year; and

• Adjusted EBITDA* was $90.5 million, an
increase of 25.2% from 2023.

The Privia Health business model also delivers
significant free cash flow generation. Full-
year 2024 Net Cash Provided by Operating
Activities increased 35.3% to $109.3 million in
2024, compared to $80.8 million in 2023. With

de minimis capital expenditures, free cash flow
(defined as net cash provided by operating
activities less capital expenditures, primarily
purchases of property and equipment) was
approximately 121% of Adjusted EBITDA.

We ended 2024 with a healthy and conservative
balance sheet, including approximately $491
million in cash and no debt. This positions our
Company with significant financial flexibility
to support expansion and take advantage of
opportunities in the current market environment.
Our business development pipeline is robust, and
we are committed to pursuing disciplined growth
that complements our organic sales engine in
existing markets.

Highly Differentiated and Flexible
Operating Model
Privia Health’s balanced and flexible operating
model has delivered consistent growth,
profitability and free cash flow across economic,
healthcare, regulatory and political cycles over
the past seven years. The foundational elements
of the Privia Health model are our integrated
medical groups and risk entities in each market,
which are supported by a common technology
and services platform and physician-led
governance structure. This enables Privia Health
to be deeply embedded in the workflows of our
provider groups, from the practice fundamentals
of revenue cycle and patient experience
management, to comprehensive value-based
care delivery and risk management.

We are dedicated to ongoing enhancements
in our clinical, operational and technological
capabilities alongside talent acquisition, retention
and development to ensure we are delivering
a seamless experience for our providers. The
end result is that we successfully empower
community physicians and providers to enhance
the patient experience, drive better outcomes
and reduce unnecessary costs.

Building One of the Largest Primary Care –
Centric Care Delivery Networks
Privia Health is well on its path to build one of the
largest primary care-centric care delivery networks
in the nation. Each year, we have added hundreds
of new physicians and advanced practitioners
to our medical groups and risk entities. We



partner with providers across 50+ specialties
to elevate the standard of care of all patients
across all reimbursement arrangements. Today,
our approximately 4,800 physician and provider
partners care for 5.2+ million patients in 1,200+
locations in 14 states and the District of Columbia.

Over the past two years, we have entered five
new states. In November 2024, Privia Health
announced its entry into the state of Indiana in
partnership with a multi-specialty practice with
more than 35 providers, which is serving as the
anchor practice for Privia Medical Group – Indiana.

Our long-term goals are to build a nationwide
provider network, align with our provider partners
to better manage patient care, and leverage our
expertise in underwriting risk to drive sustainable
success as we move further into value-based care
arrangements. We are proud of and grateful for
the continued exceptional performance of our
partners year after year.

Thoughtfully Transitioning
Providers to Value-Based Care
As of January 1 of this year, we estimate Privia is
serving 1.26 million attributed lives across more
than 100 at-risk payer contracts in commercial
and government programs. Total attributed lives
increased approximately 11.5% from January 2024.
This positions our business as one of the broadest
and most balanced value-based care platforms in
the industry.

We take a very thoughtful approach to risk-based
contracting, moving to higher risk value-based care
arrangements only when our providers are ready
and can be more financially successful doing so.
We believe our doctors achieve better results than
their peers due to our physician-led governance,
extensive clinical, performance and actuarial
expertise provided through the Privia Platform,
and aligned incentive structure.

Privia Health ACOs operate within many downside-
risk contracts in Medicare Advantage as well as
the highest level in the Medicare Shared Savings
Program (MSSP). In the 2023 performance year for
MSSP (reported in October 2024), we generated
a total of $176.6 million in shared savings, a +34.1%
increase from 2022.

Our ability to nimbly respond to the changing
reimbursement environment is essential for a
provider organization and demonstrates the
flexibility and diversity of the Privia Health business
model. We continue to expect headwinds in
Medicare Advantage over the next few years given
pressures from elevated medical utilization trends,
the phase-in of V28 risk coding adjustments, and
the changes in quality improvement Star ratings,
among other factors.

The diversification of Privia Health’s value-based
care contracts gives us confidence in our ability to
build scale and profitability across the business,
despite challenges in any one particular program.

Looking Ahead
We believe our responsible approach over the past
couple of years to managing risk arrangements
has served our providers and shareholders well in
delivering consistent, predictable EBITDA growth. In
2025, we expect to focus on the same core priorities
that have driven our business long term:

• Provider growth to scale our business to better
serve physicians, advanced practitioners and
their patients in existing and newmarkets;

• Attribution growth and performance in value-
based arrangements; and

• Operational improvements and efficiencies that
support our growth while delivering consistent,
increasing profitability and free cash flow.

Privia Health and our entire leadership team remain
highly focused on executing our strategy to build
one of the largest primary care-centric care delivery
networks in the nation. We look forward to serving
our physicians, providers, and their patients, while
creating value for our stockholders for many years
to come.

Sincerely,

PARTH MEHROTRA
Chief Executive Of cer

* Reconciliations of non-GAAP financial measures including Care Margin to Gross
Profit, Platform Contribution to Gross Profit, and Adjusted EBITDA to Net Income
(Loss) can be found in the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations section of the Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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INFORMATION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains forward-looking statements. We intend such forff ward-looking statements to be covered by
the safe hff arbor prr ovisions for forff ward-looking statements contained in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the
“Securities Act”), and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”). In some cases, you can
identify tff hese statements by forward-looking words such as “may,” “might,” “will,” “should,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,”
“believes,” “estimates,” “predicts,” “potential” or “continue,” the negative of these terms and other comparabla e terminology. These
forward-looking statements, which are subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions about us, may include projections of our future
financial performance, our anticipated growth strategies and anticipated trends in our business. These statements are only predictions
based on our current expectations and projeo ctions about future events. There are important factors that could cause our actual results,
level of activity, performance or achievements to diffeff r materially from the results, level of activity, performance or achievements
expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. These risks and uncertainties include factors related to, among other things:

• the heavily regulated industry irr n which we operate, and any faiff lure by us to comply with applicable healthcare laws and
government regulations, which could result in our incurring financial penalties and becoming excluded froff m participating in
government health care programs;

• the impact of changes in appla icable laws, rulr es or regulations, including with respect to health plans and payers and our
relationships with such plans and payers, and provisions that impact Medicare and Medicaid programs;

• our dependence on relationships with Medical Groupsu (definff ed herein), some of which we do not own;

• our growth strategy, which may not prove viable and we may not realize expected results;

• diffiff culties implementing our proprietary end-to-end, cloud-based technology solution (the “Privia Technology Solution”) forff
Privia Physicians (definff ed herein) and new Medical Groups;

• the high level of competition in our industry arr nd any faiff lure by us to compete effectively and innovate;

• challenges in successfulff ly establa ishing a presence in new geographic markets;

• our reliance on our electronic medical record (“EMR”) vendor, athenahealth, Inc., which the Privia Technology Solution is
integrated and built upon;

• changes in the payer mix of patients and potential decreases in our reimbursement rates froff m commercial payers, including as
a result of consolidation in the industry;rr

• the financial and operational impact of our compliance with various complex and changing federal and state privacy and
security laws and regulations related to our use, disclosure, and other processing of personal information and protected health
information, including the Health Insurance Portabia lity and Accountability Act of 1996;

• the impact of actual and potential cybersecurity incidents or privacy or security breaches involving us, our vendors or other
third parties;

• the continued availabia lity of a qualified workforce, including staff aff t our Medical Groups, and the continued upwu ard pressure
on compensation for such workforff ce; and

• other risk factors described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K forff the year ended December 31, 2024 (the “Annual Report”)
and our other filinff gs with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).

You should read this Annual Report on Form 10-K and the documents that we reference in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and have
filed as exhibits to this Annual Report on Form 10-K with the understanding that our actuat l futff urt e results, levels of activity,
performance and achievements may be materially different from what we expect. We qualify aff ll of our forward-looking statements by
these cautionary statements. These forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Except
as required by appla icable law, we do not plan to publicly update or revise any forff ward-looking statements contained in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, whether as a result of any new information, future events or otherwise.
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PART I

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

Privia Health Group, Inc. (“Privia Health”, “we”, “our”, or the “Company”) is a technology-driven, national physician-enablement
company that collabora ates with physician practices, health plans, and health systems to achieve the quadruple aim of better outcomes,
lower costs, improved patient experience, and happier and more engaged providers. We seek to accomplish the quadruple aim by
entering markets and organizing existing physicians and non-physician clinicians into a unique practice model that combines the
advantages of a partnership in a large regional medical group (each, a “Medical Group”) with significant provider autonomy forff the
physicians (collectively, “Privia Physicians”) and non-physician clinicians (collectively “Privia Clinicians” and, together with the
Privia Physicians, the “Privia Providers”) joining our Medical Groups.

We organize physicians into cost effiff cient, value-based and primary-care centric networks bolstered by strong physician governance,
and promote a culture of physician leadership. Our platform (the “Privia Platforff m”) is powered by our Privia Technology Solution that
integrates both Privia-developed and third-party appla ications into a seamless interface and workfloff w that manages all aspects of our
Privia Providers’ provision of healthcare services. We enhance the patient experience, improve practice economics and influence point
of care delivery trr hrough investments in data analytics, revenue cycle management (“RCM”), practice and clinical operations and payer
alignment. The Privia Platforff m is designed to succeed across demographic cohorts, acuity levels and reimbursement models, including
traditional fee-ff for-service Medicare, the Medicare Shared Savings Program (“MSSP”), Medicare Advantage, Medicaid, commercial
insurance and other existing and emerging direct contracting programs with payers and employers.

We designed the Privia Platform to be scalable, allowing us to grow our presence in new geographic markets and guide those markets
from fee-ff for-service (“FFS”) to value-based care (“VBC”), including commercial risk, by shifting the reimbursement model and
helping our Privia Providers better manage the cost of care through a focus on quaff lity and success-based reimbursement. Our business
model is designed to have meaningfulff revenue visibility, with low invested capital and attractive margin opportunity. We believe the
Privia Platform aligns with the direction healthcare is headed, including (1) a macro shift towards VBC models that focus on
delivering coordinated, high quality care at lower total costs, (2) a greater focus on the patient experience and (3) a focff us on
optimizing provider workfloff w and bringing back the joy of practicing medicine. Our value proposition and comprehensive solution set
address needs across the spectrumr of physician practices.

We believe our technology-enabled platforff m is differeff ntiated and well positioned to drive sustainable long-term growth. The Privia
Platform has the following key attributes:

• Addresses a large and growing total addressabla e market (“TAM”) of providers

• Incorporr ates a fleff xible model that is purposr e-built to scale nationally by facilitating the entrance into new markets with
multiple types of physician practices

• Built on a comprehensive cloud-based technology-enabled platforff m that is designed to optimize provider workflow across the
full continuum of reimbursement environments in virtuat l and in-person care settings

• Focused on establa ishing scaled provider groups across each geographical market, resulting in increased relevance with payers
and patients (over 1,200 care center locations across 14 states and the District of Columbia)

• Designed to transition care delivery in err ach market from FFS to VBC and to enhance the ability of Privia Providers to
manage higher risk patients

• Reducd es administrative burden and generally increases provider profitabia lity for community providers

• Led by a team with significant experience leading payer, provider and healthcare information technology organizations

We operate in 14 states and the District of Columbia. Generally speaking, we define a market as a geographic area covered by one of
our Medical Groups under a single Tax ID Number (“TIN”). A market could comprise a single state, a part of a state or a group of
multiple states and/or districts. We aim to build relationships with key constituents including physicians, non-physician clinicians,
patients, government programs, commercial payers and employers. As of December 31, 2024, we had 4,789 Privia Providers on the
Privia Platform who are credentialed and bill for medical services, in both Owned and Non-Owned Medical Groupsu (as definff ed
below), (“implemented providers”). Our implemented providers operate in over 1,200 care center locations. Privia cares for over 5.2
million patients, including in VBC arrangements approxia mately 782,000 commercial patients who have selected one of our Medical
Groups as their provider of primary care services, as measured at the end of a particular period (“attributed lives”), approxia mately
185,000 Medicare Advantage attributed lives, 196,000 Medicare Shared Savings / Marylrr and PCP+ Program attributed lives, and
approximately 97,000 Medicaid attributed lives. In some instances, we also move into and expand in new and existing markets
through our Privia Care Partners model, which offers an affiff liation model to providers who are looking solely for VBC solutions. For
those practices, we furff nish population health services, reporting and analytics, along with certain management.
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Under our Privia Medical Group mu odel, Privia Physicians join the Medical Group in their geographic market as an owner of the
Medical Group. We own a majority interest in certain of our Medical Groups (each, an “Owned Medical Group”), with Privia
Physicians collectively owning a minority interest, and we own no interest in certain other Medical Groups (each, a “Non-Owned
Medical Group”). In those markets in which state regulations do not allow us to own Medical Groups, the Non-Owned Medical
Groups may be owned by the Privia Physicians or majority owned indirectly by a licensed physician holding a Privia leadership
position (each such Non-Owned Medical Group owned in this manner, a “Friendly Medical Group”) with Privia Physicians
collectively owning a minority interest. In those markets where we partner with health systems, our health system partner owns a
majority interest in the Non-Owned Medical Groups, with Privia Physicians owning a minority interest. Privia Physicians furniff sh
healthcare services through our Medical Groups and continue to own their historical practice entities (“Affiliated Practices”), which
provide certain services to the Medical Groups, such as use of space, non-physician staffing, equipment and supplu ies.

We provide management services to the Medical Groupsu though local management services organizations (each, an “MSO”), which
provide Medical Groups with access to VBC opportunities either directly or through Privia-owned accountable care organizations
(each, an “ACO”). We have national committees that distribute quality guidance, and we employ Chief Medical Offiff cers who provide
clinical oversight and direction over the clinical affaff irs of the Owned Medical Groups. Additionally, we hold the provider contracts,
maintain the patient records, set reimbursement rates, and negotiate payer contracts on behalf of the Owned Medical Groups.u

We principally derive our revenues froff m the following three sources: (i) FFS-patient care revenue generated froff m providing healthcare
services to patients through Privia Providers of Owned Medical Groups and Friendly Medical Groups, in addition to management and
administrative services earned for administrative services provided to Non-Owned Medical Groups (“FFS-administrative services”),
(ii) per member per month “PMPM” care management feeff s, including management and administrative feesff , (iii) VBC revenue
collected on behalf of our Privia Providers in the forff m of (a) capitated revenue and shared savings, including quality performance-
based bonuses, and (iv) other revenue from additional services offered to Privia Providers or directly to patients or employers, such as
concierge services, virtual visits, virtual scribes and coding, clinical trials, behavioral health management, and partnerships with self-
insured employers to offeff r direct primary care to their employees. The operations of our Owned Medical Groups, owned ACOs,
owned MSOs and Friendly Medical Groups are refleff cted within our consolidated financial results.

We seek to reimagine the appra oach to managing physician organizations and optimize their performance by (i) focusff ing on technology
and population health, (ii) establishing a single-TIN Medical Group and governance model in each geographic market, (iii) owning
and operating an MSO in each local market, (iv) building ACOs to capture VBC opportunities, and (v) offeriff ng a high quality, low
cost provider network for purchasers and payers.

Trends impacting the U.S. healthcare system

Challell nges Physh icians Confroff nt Today

Physicians across the country faceff tremendous challenges in managing their practices. Physician practices have seen declines in
profitaff bia lity, limited access to capital and strained cash floff ws as the administrative burden to manage patients has increased.
Complexity in payment models, including changes in reimbursement, and outdated technology has also led to physician burn-out and
has hindered physician to patient interactions. Healthcare insurance companies have narrowed their networks, leading to volume
pressures that particularly impact independent practitioners. Physicians are at the center of these issues and are the key to the solution.

Risiii ngii Healthll care Costs

Healthcare spending in the United States reached nearly $4.9 trillion in 2023 or $14,570 per person, according to Centers for Medicare
and Medicaid Services (“CMS”), representing appra oximately 17.6% of U.S. GDP. National health expenditures are projected to reach
$7.7 trillion or 19.7% of GDP by 2032, according to CMS, outpacing both GDP and inflatioff n expectations.

Transitioii n to Vtt BCVV

Historically, healthcare delivery hrr as centered on reactive care to acute events, which resulted in the development of an FFS payment
model. By linking payments to volume of encounters and pricing for higheff r complexity interventions, the FFS model does not reward
prevention, but rather unintentionally incentivizes the treatment of acute care episodes as they occur. With our experience working in
all reimbursement environments and expertise in VBC and assisting providers in the transition to VBC, Privia enables providers to
accelerate and navigate this transition.

We accelerate our go-to-market strategy using on the ground market intelligence and a data driven approach to add new practices to
our medical group. As our Medical Groups grow, we transition our markets to VBC programs as demonstrated by the increase in our
attributed risk lives across various programs.

Our Market Opportunity

Our growth strategy is centered on capturing opportunities in existing markets and entering multiple new markets nationally over the
next decade.

According to Statista, there were approximately 1,000,000 total physicians and providers in the U.S. as of May 2024. Nephron
Research estimated in its December 2024 research report titled “Healthcare Services 2025 Outlook” that the “physician enablement”
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market in which we participate represents up to $2.4 trillion of that total healthcare spend. We believe the fleff xibility of our model
uniquely positions us to address this large market opportunity.

We understand that healthcare is local and that providers have insight into the needs of their patients and their community. With these
issues in mind, Privia has been purposr e-built to address a large market opportunity. Unlike industry prr layers who focff us only on point
solutions or narrow patient cohorts, we offer a national platforff m with localized solutions designed to meet the needs of physicians,
patients and payers. We offer these dedicated providers the benefitsff of a larger organization while maintaining significant provider
autonomy.

Privia collabora ates with an anchor medical group or a health system that has strong physician leadership and interest in embracing and
amplifyingff VBC in its local market. We then develop a network around primary care providers and specialists.

Our goal since inception has been to solve problems physicians face regardless of reimbursement environment or patient type. As
such, we deploy our solution across the healthcare continuum. Our model is designed forff all provider specialties and reimbursement
environments and with all payer types.

The Privia Platform and Business Model

Single-TIN Medical Group: In each of our markets, we establa ish a primary crr are centric single-TIN Medical Group that facilitates
payer negotiation, clinical integration and alignment of finff ancial incentives. Our Medical Group governance structurt e allows Privia
Providers to build a clinical culturt e that adapts to consumers’ and a region’s unique and evolving needs. Privia Providers in our
Medical Groups collabora ate in physician-organized delivery meetings to review performance data, share best practices, create an
environment of accountability, and advance evidence-based medicine while maintaining significant provider autonomy. At the local
leadership level, Privia Physicians across differeff nt practice locations, or care centers, meet regularly with supporu t froff m Privia
performance team members to drive local population health initiatives, engagement and performance. At the market Medical Group
level, Privia Physicians, along with Privia team members, advise on priorities, set annual objectives, and approve payer contracts and
performance distribution. Finally, at the national level, our Privia Physicians receive input from each market and establish priorities
for operational improvements and clinical priorities. We believe that this integrated governance structurt e allows our Privia Physicians
to focus on taking care of patients. The strucr ture also allows Privia Providers to share ideas in a broader forum, sharing best practices
with each other.

Management Services Organization: Our market-level MSOs leverage our scale to reducd e administrative work, increase effiff ciency,
and lower direct costs for ourff Privia Providers. Our payer contracting team works with multiple private and government payers across
markets to construcr t and participate in VBC programs. Our team of performance consultants conduct business operations reviews and
provide advice on optimizing our Privia Physicians’ finff ances and productivity. Our procurement team develops opportunities to
reduce provider expenses through participation in group purchasing. Our analytics team enables our Privia Providers to make more
data-driven decisions on financial, operational, and clinical initiatives, resulting in same store practice growth across both FFS and
VBC programs. Our clinical operations and inforff matics team works to include the “doctor’s voice” in our technology solutions to
drive savings and optimize patient outcomes. Our innovative technology improves data security, bolsters the patient-provider
relationship, and offers patients a seamless, coordinated experience.

Accountable Care Organizations: Our physician-led, local market-based ACOs aim to lower costs, engage patients, reduced
inappropriate utilization, and improve coordination and patient quality metrics to drive VBC. Our scale and quality metrics allow us to
enhance reimbursements for deff livering high-quality care. The Privia Technology Solution identifies quality gaps, sends patient
satisfaction surveys, automates patient outreach and education, and generates reports and alerts to improve care coordination. Our
platform proactively shares critical information at various points along the continuum of care to advance population health and
streamline provider workfloff w. Our integrated tools result in cost savings for Privia Providers in both commercial and federal programs
by diverting costly patient encounters.

In 2023, Privia operated ten ACOs that delivered care to more than 194,000 Medicare beneficiaff ries, achieving shared savings of
$176.6 million through the MSSP, a shared savings increase of 34.1% over 2022. Our per capita expenditures per member per year
were 8% lower than the median MSSP ACO and 21% lower than total FFS Medicare. On a per capita or rate of use basis, our
weighted average realized emergency department visits was 16% lower than the median MSSP ACO and 25% lower than total FFS
Medicare; our weighted average outpatient facility spend was 18% lower than the median MSSP ACO and 33% lower than total FFS
Medicare; and our weighted average inpatient facility spend was 14% lower than the median MSSP ACO and 27% lower than total
FFS Medicare. Since 2014, we have delivered total shared savings across government programs and commercial payers of more than
$1.2 billion, including $690 million through participation in the MSSP. Our approaa ch has been successfulff across Commercial,
Medicare Advantage, MSSP, and Medicaid, from simpler pay-for-performance programs to more complex partial capitation and risk-
based programs.

For the 2024 MSSP performance year, Privia had a total of nine ACOs serving over 192,000 Medicare beneficiaries across the District
of Columbia and eleven states, including Califorff nia, Connecticut, Florida, Georgia, Marylrr and, Montana, North Carolina, Tennessee,
Texas, Virginia and Washington state. Out of the nine ACOs, fivff e were participating in the MSSP Enhanced Track with potential
upside and downside finff ancial risk. For the 2025 MSSP performance year, Privia will have nine ACOs participating in the MSSP
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serving approxa imately 196,000 Medicare beneficiaff ries. Five of the nine ACOs are participating in the MSSP Enhanced Track in the
2025 MSSP performance year.

Network forff Purchasers and Payers: Our Medical Groups enable providers to connect across our platform to better understand the
holistic needs of each patient and connect them with other providers to address their individual medical needs. This is accomplished
by leveraging data from numerous sources and utilizing provider input based on local knowledge to develop aligned virtual preferred
networks that are designed to address the unique needs of government and commercial payers as well as individual employers. We
build these networks within our platform to enhance both the provider and the patient experience by removing administrative burden
and enhancing efficieff nt and coordinated patient communication. This capability also allows us to work with health systems to increase
alignment with employed, affiff liated and independent physicians to optimize resource utilization through our model.

Payers: We align incentives with our payer partners by linking performance to rewards and enter into custom contracts serving all
demographics and populations across the continuum of care.

Employers: We work with employers to deliver customized medical benefitsff packages supporu ted by our provider networks. Our
enhanced primary crr are model offerff s quality care to their employees while lowering per-member, per-year costs. Our networks connect
primary care and specialty providers to coordinate and streamline employee care.

The PriPP via TechTT nologyo Solution: Our Purpose-Bu- ilt, End-to-EndEE Technologyo -EnaEE bledll Platll fott rm

Our end-to-end, cloud-based technology-enabled platforff m streamlines the provider, patient and care team workflows focusff ing on each
of the folff lowing aspects: (i) patient access through various avenues (patient portal, mobile app and search engine optimization), (ii)
pre-visit analytics and preparation, (iii) in-person or virtual care delivery arr nd (iv) post visit analytics, care-coordination and reporting.
Our technology-enabled platforff m enables us to scale operations across approxia mately 4,800 implemented providers in multiple
markets, enhance performance across multiple payer contracts and deliver supeu rior quality care to patients across the demographic
spectrum.

Our technology-enabled platforff m supports providers, including by leveraging machine learning and artificial intelligence to reduce or
automate certain administrative tasks. In addition, our technology-enabled platforff m helps us scale operationally, as our product
designers and engineers collabora ate closely with clinical and operational teams to optimize workfloff ws as we enter new markets and
new payer contracts. Our platforff m is built on a modern cloud-based technology stack employing agile development cycles. Our
technology architecturt e utilizes API standards forff ease of implementing new functionalities and integrating with multiple external
systems.

Patient Access: We optimize practices’ web presence so patients can finff d and schedule an appointa ment with a provider online and
receive appointment reminders. We offer a mobile app and patient portal that allow patients to access personal health information and
stay connected with their providers. by equipping physicians with the tools they need to deliver quality, affordable care when, where,
and how patients need it. We also provide 24/7 Nurse Triage Call Center and 24/7 On-demand Virtuat l Visits for immediate or primary
care.

Pre-visit: Our technology and tools embed insights directly into our EMR so providers can assess both patients’ health and practice
performance. We acquire data from across the healthcare ecosystem for a single view of the patient. Privia’s solutions identify
opportunities beforff e the patient visit, using huddle reports and patient stratification. Our platforff m allows providers to identify patient
attribution, open quality gaps, open coding gaps, assess patient risk level and determine care management eligibility.

During Visit: The Privia Technology Solution integrates workfloff ws designed to allow providers and care teams to close quality gaps,
prioritizes key risk adjustment gaps, recaptures prior diagnoses and embeds suspect medical conditions within the EMR.

Between Visits: We also provide patient education tools, automated standing orders based health event data triggers, transitional and
chronic care management, and care plans. We use patient-satisfactff ion feedff bad ck to increase practices’ online visibility. Our system
sends secure messages to patients within the patient portal and messages are sent on behalf of the provider and care team. Our
proprietary care team application is integrated within the EMR and patient portal enabling clinical assessments and templates to guide
care team’s workflows. We also provide a resource hub and training platforff m forff Privia Providers.

Virtii ual VisitVV Capabia litiesii

Our virtual health capabia lities are fully integrated with our patients’ EMR so our primary care providers can readily access data fromff
virtuat l visits. Our patients can also use the telehealth platform to schedule a virtual visit with a provider of their choice, an in-person
follow-up visit or a referral to a specialist.

Virtuat l visit volume increased rapidla y durd ing the COVID-19 pandemic and we continue to offeff r virtual visits, including through our
24/7 Virtual Clinic.

As of December 31, 2024, over 1.2 million distinct Privia Health patients have completed over 3.7 million virtual visits. Of all patients
seen by a Privia Provider virtually, over 90% did not return to the same doctor or another doctor in the same specialty for a follow up
visit within seven days. During the year ended December 31, 2024, approximately 7% of our visit volume was delivered virtuat lly
across our markets and specialties.
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Governance and Physh ician Leadership Culture

Our multipurpose governance model includes a local governance structurt e tailored to each market and is intended to improve aspects
of our patient, physician and payer relationships. Privia Physicians hold the majority of board positions in our Owned Medical Groups
and ACOs, including sole authority over matters related to the practice of medicine, and we either have exclusive authority over
certain strategic issues such as mergers and acquisitions, and termination of our MSA or veto authority relative to certain strategic
decision making. In addition, our National Physician Advisory Council (“NPAC”) brings together the clinical and executive local
market leadership across the country to provide valuable input to improve our common technology-enabled platforff m, physician faciff ng
data reporting, common quality initiatives, marketing and product performance.

Under the auspices of the NPAC, various individual specialty collabora atives meet both locally and nationally to address common
issues, bring best practices and models of success to the forefront. As an example, Privia Women’s Health focuses on advancing VBC
and performance in women’s health, including participation in building VBC-contracting models with bundled payments and episodes
of care, and including remote patient monitoring in pregnancy. The pediatric collabora ative brings forward strategies to engage patients
and famff ilies in continuing pediatric care through continuous educd ation, information, structurt al changes and other ways of keeping
patients and family safe including virtuat l visits, vaccination programs, and triaging forff in person visits.

Our Growth Strategy

Our growth strategy is centered on capturing opportunity in existing markets and entering new markets through the folff lowing
strategies:

Organic Growth in Existing Practices

• Patient panel and volume growth through enhanced patient experience and value-based clinical model, which increases
retention and drives new patient referrals;

• New provider growth through strategic expansion, succession planning, and use of advanced practice practitioners;

• Expansion of practice services such as more convenient virtual care and in-offiff ce ancillaries; and

• Revenue optimization through enhanced payer contracting strategies and strong revenue cycle performance which drives
effiff ciency and higher revenue realization.

Moving Markets to VBC

• Focus on same store growth of patients attributed to value-based contracts in each existing geographic market;

• Increase our revenue opportunity on a per patient basis by continuing to improve performance and continuing to take
increasing levels of risk in existing value-based programs across commercial, MSSP, Medicare Advantage, Medicaid and
other existing and emerging direct payer and employer contracting programs; and

• Develop new products and programs in partnership with aligned payers that are built with and around our network of
physicians and providers.

White Space Opportunities in Existing Markets

• We intend to add primary crr are and specialist practices in existing markets to enhance growth. Our data-driven approaa ch
allows us to identify primary crr are and specialist provider groups that we believe may benefitff from our platform;

• Expand Privia Women’s Health and Privia Pediatrics platforff ms;

• Develop value-oriented ancillary services for our Medical Groupsu . This includes leveraging existing platforff ms of providers
and patients to provide ancillary srr ervices (e.g., clinical labora atory, imaging and pharmacy) within our Medical Groups;u

• Expand relationships with self-iff nsured employers, businesses, schools, universities, and third-party administrators seeking
population health and virtuat l care solutions;

• Continue to pursue direct contracting opportunities, including direct primary care and onsite / near-site clinics fulff ly integrated
with our local Privia networks; and

• Expand our clinical research program by designing and executing on clinical trials across multiple therapeutic areas.

New Market Development

• Our data-driven market selection process identifieff s expansion opportunities and informs our approach to opening new
geographies; and

• We evaluate the broader market landscape forff opportunities on a continuous basis and proactively develop relationships
before committing to enter a market.
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Acquisitions and Investments in Full Service Care Models

• Our growth playbook also factors in the opportunity to acquire minority or majority ownership of provider groups or
clinically integrated networks in existing and new markets and we may also open de-novo, wholly or partially owned, sites of
care in existing and new markets.

Sales, Marketing and Business Development

We aspire to continue growing our national platforff m by expanding geographically into new markets and increasing density within our
existing markets. Our business development, sales and marketing initiatives focus on the following avenues to drive growth:

• Anchor health systems and medical groups—We establish customized anchor partnerships with leading medical groupsu
and health systems in new markets developed froff m long-term relationships led by our business development team. We use a
data driven approach to qualify, segment, and evaluate new market opportunities. We collabora ate with leading medical
groups and health systems looking to capitalize on the opportunity to create next generation physician led medical groupsu and
transition their local markets to VBC.

• Existing market provider growth—Our in-market and national sales and marketing teams work together to add new
medical groups, physician practices and individuad l providers in existing markets. We accelerate our go-to-market strategy
using on the ground market intelligence and a data driven approach. Our enterprise sales forff ce is comprised of an in-house
group of sales professionals organized by market. Our sales operations team supporu ts our sales forff ce with lead generation,
while our growth analytics team conducts financial and operational analysis on our value proposition for prospeff ctive partners.
Our provider recruitment team assists our existing practices in hiring new providers, froff m sourcing through onboarding.

• Consumer sales and marketing—As our medical groups gru ow in each market, we look to transition the market to value-
based programs by increasing the patient panels of our providers and adding attributed risk lives across various VBC
programs. Our marketing and communications team operates our brand management, enterprise web presence and care center
websites, and creates other forff ms of patient communication and engagement materials. Our branding and marketing strategy
to drive growth to our practices have continued to result in increased engagement with new and existing patients and
expanded enterprr ise web presence.

Our marketing strategy focusff es on increasing the overall brand awareness of Privia Health and of our Medical Group brands in each of
our markets. We run targeted advertisements through print, direct mail, Google search, and social media for prff ovider and patient
acquisition. We also develop thought leadership content such as whitepapers, e-brochures, and blog posts and use public relations to
secure earned media placements. Additionally, we participate in industry crr onferencesff , and collabora ate with media outlets, industry
associations, event venues, and local businesses to increase brand awareness. In each of our markets, local independent doctors unite
together to form the larger Privia Medical Group. The local practice locations maintain their legacy brand, but also adopt the
overarching Privia Medical Group brand.

Competitive Landscape

We compete in a highly fraff gmented and competitive U.S. healthcare industry.rr We face competition in each geographic market froff m a
variety of community-based healthcare provider organizations, including large physician practices, independent physician
associations, hospitals and health systems, physician-hospital organizations as well as emerging companies, vertically integrated
healthcare companies, and private equity firms acquiring and rolling up specialty physician practices. In addition, nationally, we faceff
competition for talent, resources, physicians, and payer contracts froff m existing and emerging companies in the physician enablement
industry srr egment. We believe our practice model and breadth of services offereff d to all patient types is unique, and we thereforeff
compete with different companies across certain lines of business, including companies with: dedicated brick-and-mortar locations
which often target patients covered by Medicare Advantage plans; dedicated, direct primary care locations which often target a
commercial or employer-based patient population; the abia lity to organize providers into accountable care organizations, allowing
physicians to participate in VBC arrangements; and the ability to partner with physicians groups to enable better care delivery
primarily for seniors. These competitors may be narrower in their competitive footprff int and may not address all the key stakeholders
we serve simultaneously. Our indirect competitors also include episodic point solutions, such as telemedicine offerings, as well as
urgent care providers. Our competitive success is contingent on our ability to address the needs of our key stakeholders effiff ciently and
cost effeff ctively compared with competitors. We expect to face increasing competition, both froff m current competitors, who may be
well establa ished and enjon y greater resources or other strategic advantages to compete forff some or all key stakeholders in our markets,
as well as new entrants into our market.

Given the size of the healthcare industry,rr we expect additional competition, including potentially from new companies, smaller
emerging companies which could introduce new solutions and services, as well as other incumbent players in the healthcare industry,rr
private equity firms or froff m broader industry prr layers who could develop their own offeriff ngs and may have subsu tantial resources and
relationships to leverage. With the emergence of new technologies and market entrants, we expect to face increasing competition over
time, which we believe will generally increase awareness of the need for modernized care models and other innovative solutions.
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Intellectual Property

We believe that our intellectuat l property rights are important to our business. We rely on a combination of trademarks, service marks,
copyrights and trade secrets to protect our proprietary technology and other intellectuat l property. As of December 31, 2024, we
exclusively own six (6) registered trademarks in the United States, including Privia Health. In addition, we have registered domain
names forff websites that we use or may use in our business.

We seek to control access to and distribution of our proprietary irr nformation, including our algorithms, source and object code, designs,
and business processes, through security measures and contractuat l restrictions. We seek to limit access to our confidff ential and
proprietary information to a “need to know” basis and enter into confidff entiality and nondisclosure agreements with our employees,
consultants, customers and vendors that may receive or otherwise have access to any confidff ential or proprietary information. We also
obtain written invention assignment agreements from our employees, consultants, and vendors that assign to us all right, interest, and
title to inventions and work product developed durd ing their employment or service engagement with us. In the normal course of
business, we provide our intellectuat l property to external parties through licensing or restricted use agreements. We have established a
system of security measures to help protect our computer systems froff m security breaches and computer viruses. We have employed
various technology and process-based methods, such as clustered and multi-layer firff ewalls, intrusion detection systems, vulnerabia lity
assessments, threat intelligence, content filteff ring, endpoint security (including anti-malware and detection response capabilities), email
security mechanisms, and access control mechanisms. We also use encryptrr ion techniques for daff ta at rest and in transit. For additional
information on risks associated with our intellectuat l property and information technology systems, see “Risk Factors—Technology,
Cybersecurity and Privacy Risks.”

Government Regulations

Our operations, those of our Owned Medical Groups, Non-Owned Medical Groups, and Privia Providers are subject to extensive and
complex laws and regulations at the federalff , state and local levels relating to, among other issues, billing and coding for, and
documentation of, services and properly handling overpayments; relationships with physicians and other referral sources and referral
recipients, including, for example, state or attorney general notice or approvaa l requirements forff certain relationships; restrictions
related to multi-specialty practices; appra opriateness and adequacy of medical care; quality of medical equipment and services; patient,
workforce, and public safety; qualifications and supervision of, and reimbursement for services provided by, medical and support
personnel; the provision of services via telehealth, including technological standards and coverage restrictions or other limitations on
reimbursement; the confidff entiality, maintenance, interoperabia lity, exchange, and security of medical records and other health-related
and personal inforff mation, including data breach, ransomware and identity theft iff ssues; the development and use of artificial
intelligence and other predictive algorithms, including those used in clinical decision supporu t tools; restrictions on the provision of
medical care, including reproductive care; permitting, facility and personnel licensure, certification and accreditation requirements;
enrollment standards and requirements for paff rticipation in government healthcare programs; corporate practice of medicine and fee-
splitting; consumer disclosures and price transparency; the distribution, maintenance and dispensing of pharmaceuticals and controlled
subsu tances; relationships between healthcare providers and drug and medical device companies; debt collection, balance billing and
billing for out of neff twork services; communications with patients and consumers; advertising and marketing; operating policies and
procedurd es; activities regarding competitors; insurance and the assumption of finff ancial risk by healthcare entities, including allowablea
types of finff ancial risk; addition of faciff lities and services; and environmental protections.

If any of our operations or those of our Owned Medical Groups, Non-Owned Medical Groups, or Privia Providers fail to comply with
these or other applicable laws and regulations, which are subject to change, any such failure could result in liabia lities, including civil
penalties, money damages, lapses in reimbursement, loss of faciff lity licenses, accreditations, or certifications, revocation of billing
privileges, exclusion of one or more entities and/or facilities froff m participation in the Medicare, Medicaid and other fedff eral and state
health care programs, termination of various relationships or contracts, lawsuits and criminal penalties. Medicare and Medicaid
payments may be suspended pending even an investigation of what the government determines to be a credible allegation of fraud. We
could also be required to make changes to our business model and/or practices, which could increase operating expenses, negatively
affeff ct our business relationships, and decrease access to new business opportunities. In addition, different interpretations or
enforcement of, or amendments to, these and other laws and regulations in the futurff e could subject current or past practices to
allegations of impropriety or illegality or could require us to make changes in our operations, faciff lities, equipment, personnel, services,
capital expenditures and operating expenses. The costs of compliance with, and the other burdens imposed by, these and other laws or
regulatory arr ctions may increase operational costs, result in interruptu ions or delays in the availabia lity of systems and/or result in a
decline in patient volume or Privia Provider or Medical Group attrition. Any action against us for violation of these laws or
regulations, even if we successfulff ly defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses, divert our management’s
attention froff m the operation of our business or result in reputational harm.

We expect that our industry wrr ill continue to be subju ect to subsu tantial regulation, the scope and effect of which are difficult to predict.
Our activities could be subject to investigations, audits and inquiries by various government and regulatory arr gencies and commercial
payers with whom we contract at any time in the futff urt e. Adverse finff dings from such investigations and audits could bring severe
consequences that could have a material adverse effecff t on our business, results of operations, finff ancial condition, cash floff ws,
reputation and stock price. In addition, commercial payers could require pre-payment audits of claims, which can negatively affeff ct
cash floff w, or terminate contracts forff repeated deficiencies.
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Furthermore, if a state in which we currently operate, or in which we seek to expand, views the participation of the Company or its
Medical Groups in risk-sharing arrangements as the assumption of insurance risk, the arrangement may falff l within the purview of state
insurance or managed care laws and regulations, and we or the Medical Group may be required to obtain a state insurance or managed
care license or similar registration. These laws and regulations may subject the entity involved to oversight by state regulators,
including through periodic reporting or audits, and requirements forff financial reserves. Some of these laws may be vague and state
regulators may have interpretations that differ froff m ours. Even if a state regulatory arr gency does not directly oversee the transfer of risk
by a payer to a downstream entity, the state may require the licensed payer to include certain oversight mechanisms in payer contracts,
which could increase our or our Medical Groups’ administrative costs and have an adverse effect on our business, cash floff ws or results
of operations. If we or our Medical Groups fail to comply with insurance laws and regulations, including licensure and oversight
requirements, we may be required to make changes to our operations and could be subject to civil and/or criminal penalties, denial of
future licensure applications and termination of payer contracts. These laws and regulations may affect the operation of, for example,
ACOs, direct primary care programs, provider-sponsored organizations, independent practice associations, and provider capitation
models. At the state level, our ability to conduct business and the strucrr ture of our operations depends on each state’s laws, regulations,
and policies governing, among other issues, the corporate practice of medicine, fee-splitting, and the assumption of finff ancial risk.

Corporate Ptt raPP ctictt e and Fee-Sp- litting Laws

At the state level, our ability to conduct business and the strucr ture of our operations depends on each state’s laws, regulations, and
policies governing, among other issues, the corporate practice of medicine, fee-splitting, and the assumption of finff ancial risk. In
several states, laws and regulations, guidance froff m professional licensing boards or state attorneys general and judicial doctrines
prohibit corporr ations and other entities not owned by physicians or other permitted health profesff sionals from practicing medicine and
other professions. These laws and doctrines have been interpreted in some states to prohibit entities not owned by permitted
profesff sionals from employing physicians and other profesff sionals and to prohibit such entities froff m undertaking activities that could be
seen as exercising control over healthcare provider professional judgment. Some states also have adopted restrictions on direct or
indirect payments to, or entering into fee-ff splitting arrangements with, physicians and unlicensed persons or business entities. These
restrictions vary by state and are often vague and subjeb ct to interpretation by state medical boards, state attorneys general and other
regulatory arr uthorities. We attempt to strucr ture our arrangements with healthcare providers to comply with applicable state law.
However, we cannot provide assurance that governmental offiff cials responsible for enforcing these laws will not assert that we, or
transactions in which we are involved, violate these laws. These laws may also be interprrr eted by courts in a manner inconsistent with
our interpretations. Possible sanctions for violations of these restrictions include loss of a physician’s license and civil and criminal
penalties. In addition, agreements between the Company and physicians may be considered void and unenforceable, our MSAs and
management fees could be adversely affected, and we may be required to restrucr ture the Company’s relationships with Medical
Groups and Privia Physicians, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

Federal Anti-tt Ki- ckback StaSS tute, Se taSS rk Law and Similii arll Stattt e Ltt aws

Some healthcare laws appla y to the financial relationships we have or our Medical Groups have with physicians and others who either
refer or influff ence the referff ral of patients to our Medical Groups and Privia Physicians or who are the recipients of referrals. The
federal Anti-Kickbakk ck Statutt e, for example, is a criminal law that prohibits, among other things, the solicitation, receipt, offeff ring or
payment of any remuneration with the intent of generating referrals or orders for services or items that may be paid for byff a federalff
healthcare program. The OIG has enacted safe harbor regulations that outline practices deemed protected from prosecution under the
federal Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e. While we and our Medical Groupsu endeavor to comply with applicable safe harbors, certain current
arrangements, including joint ventures and financial relationships with physicians and other referral sources and persons and entities to
which our Medical Groups refer patients, may not qualify fff orff safe harbor protection. Failure to qualify fff orff a safe hff arborr does not mean
the arrangement necessarily violates the federalff Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e, but may subject the arrangement to greater scrutiny. The Stark
Law is a strict liability civil law that prohibits physicians from making referrals for “designated health services” payable by Medicare
or Medicaid to entities with which the physician or an immediate famff ily member of the physician has a finff ancial relationship, unless
an exception appla ies. Allegations of violations of the fedff eral Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e may also be brought under the federal Civil
Monetary Penalty Law, which requires a lower burden of proof than other fraff ud and abusa e laws. The Stark Law furtff her prohibits
entities that have received such referrals from filinff g claims with Medicare (or billing another individual, entity or third party payor) forff
those referred services. The financial relationships of our Medical Groups with referring physicians and their immediate family
members must comply with the Stark Law. We and our Medical Groups attempt to strucr ture those relationships to meet an exception
to or otherwise comply with the Stark Law, but the regulations implementing the Stark Law, including the requirements to meet
exceptions, are detailed and complex. We do not always have the benefitff of significant regulatory orr r judicial interpretation of the Stark
Law and its implementing regulations. Additionally, violations of the federalff Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e or Stark Law, improper billing forff
services to federal healthcare programs, or improper retention of overpayments froff m federalff healthcare programs may be the basis for
finding a violation under the federal False Claims Act (the “FCA”), either under a suit brought by the government or by a private
person under a qui tam, or “whistleblower,” suit. Many states have also passed anti-kickbak ck statutt es and physician self-referral
prohibitions similar to the federal Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e and the Stark Law. However, in many of the states we operate, these state
self-referraff l prohibitions are often drafteff d broadly to cover all payers (i.e., not restricted to Medicare and other federalff health care
programs) or certain programs within the state such as the state Medicaid program or state workers’ compensation program. Generally,
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however, the exceptions or exemptions under state fraud and abusa e laws, are less robust and developed than their federal counter parts.
If we, our Medical Groups or participants in our ACOs fail to comply with these or other applicable laws and regulations, which are
subju ect to change, any such failure could result in significant penalties, adversely impact our business, results of operations, finff ancial
condition and/or result in reputational harm.

Data Protecttt iontt

The data protection landscapea is rapidla y evolving, and the Company, its Medical Groups and ACO participants, are and may become
subju ect to numerous state and federal laws, requirements and regulations governing the collection, use, disclosure, retention and
security of health-related and other personal inforff mation. For example, the HIPAA privacy and security regulations extensively
regulate the use and disclosure of personal health information (“PHI”) and require covered entities, including healthcare providers and
health plans, and vendors (known as “business associates”) that perform certain services that involve creating, receiving, maintaining
or transmitting PHI on behalf of covered entities or other business associates, to implement administrative, physical and technical
safeguards to protect the privacy and security of PHI. These laws are complex and subju ect to change and interprrr etation, and our
approach to compliance with such laws may include reliance on safe hff arborr s or other regulatory rrr ulr es, including those related to
organized healthcare arrangements, which are themselves complex, require resources and investment to manage ongoing compliance,
and are subju ect to change and interpretation, particularly in the current regulatory err nvironment. In addition to HIPAA, there are
numerous other laws, regulations, and legislative and regulatory irr nitiatives at the federal anff d state levels governing the confidff entiality,
privacy, availabia lity, integrity and security of health-related information and other types of personal information. In many cases, the
state laws are more restrictive or impose more obligations than, and may not be preempted by, the HIPAA privacy and security
regulations. State laws vary in scope, may apply to employees and business contacts in addition to patients, and may be subju ect to new
and varyingrr interpretations by courts and government agencies, creating complex compliance issues and potentially resulting in
exposure to additional expense, adverse publicity and liabia lity. The potential effects of these laws are farff -reaching and may require the
Company, its Medical Groups, and their third-party service and technology vendors to modify data use, storage, transmission and
processing practices and policies, or our approach to compliance with other similar laws, and to incur subsu tantial costs and expenses in
order to comply. Failure to comply with these and any other comprehensive privacy laws passed at the state or federalff level may result
in regulatory err nforff cement action and reputational harm. We expect that new or modified laws, regulations, regulatory grr uidance and
industry srr tandards concerning privacy, data protection and information security, including those related to specific types of personal
data, will continue to be proposed and enacted in various jurisdictions, which could impact our operations and cause us to incur
subsu tantial costs.

Healthll care Refoe rm

The healthcare industry hrr as been and continues to be impacted by healthcare reforff m efforts. For example, the Affordaff bla e Care Act
affeff cts how healthcare services are covered, delivered and reimbursed and expanded health insurance coverage through a combination
of public program expansion and private sector health insurance reforff ms. Changes in the law’s implementation, subsu equent legislation
and regulations, state initiatives and other factff ors, including potential changes to or repeal of the Affordable Care Act as a result of
changes in the political landscapea , have and may continue to affeff ct the number of individuals that elect to obtain public or private
health insurance or the scope of such coverage. Reducd tions in the number of insured individuals or the scope of insurance coverage
may have an adverse effectff on our business. In addition, Medicare and Medicaid policies are subju ect to change, including as a result of
changes in the presidential administration and Congress. Legislation and administrative actions at the federalff level may impact funding
for, or the strucrr ture of, tff he Medicaid or Medicare program, and may shape administration of the Medicaid program at the state level
and Medicare Advantage Programs. Other recent health reform initiatives and proposals at the federal and state levels include those
focused on price transparency and out-of-network charges as well as pharmacy and pharmacy benefit manager reform effortff s, which
may impact prices, the relationships between hospitals, patients, payers, and providers, total cost of care and patient outcomes, and
lead to further uncertainty in other participants in the healthcare industry,rr including employers.

General Corporate Information

Privia Health Group, Inc. (NASDAQ: PRVA) waRR s incorporated in Delaware in 2016. Our Telephone number is (571) 366-8850. Our
website is priviahealth.com. The information contained on, or that can be accessed through, our website is not incorporated by
reference into this filinff g and you should not consider any inforff mation contained on, or that can be accessed through, our website as
part of this filing.

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and, if applicable, amendments to
those reports filed or furff nished pursuant to Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are availabla e freff e of
charge on or through the Privia Health Investor Relations website at ir.priviahealth.com., as soon as reasonably practicable afteff r we
electronically file such material with, or furff nish it to, the Securities and Exchange Commission, or the SEC. The SEC’s website, http://
www.sec.gov, contains reports, proxy and inforff mation statements, and other information regarding issuers that fileff electronically with
the SEC.

We announce material inforff mation to the public through a variety of means, including filings with the SEC, press releases, public
conference calff ls, and our website. We use these channels to communicate with investors and the public about our Company, our
products and services, and other matters. Therefore, we encourage investors, the media, and others interested in our Company to
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review the inforff mation we make public in these locations, as such information could be deemed to be material information.
Information on or that can be accessed through our websites is not part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and the website
addresses are included as inactive textual references only.

Human Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2024, across Privia Health Group, Inc., we had 1,140 employees in 44 states and the District of Columbia. None
of our employees are represented by labor unions ora covered by collective bargaining agreements. We consider our relationship with
our employees to be good and we have not experienced any work stoppages or reducd tions in force. We believe our geographically
dispersed employees are a competitive advantage. While certain employees work onsite, the majority of our workforce is either remote
or a blend of in-office and remote. Our fleff xible workforce strategy allows us to hire the qualified talent irrespective of geographic
constraints across many funcff tional roles. Our internal systems and processes are designed to ensure our remote employees are
productive, contribute meaningfulff ly, and are abla e to exceed expectations in their roles.

Talent Development and Engagement

At Privia Health, we value all of our employees and the exceptional talent they bring to our organization, in order to support our
physicians, providers, care center staff, and patients. One of our strategic corporate goals is to grow and develop our workforce, and
we have establa ished ongoing leadership development and retention programs intended to support employees in their career
progression. This includes an Emerging Leaders Program, a Manager Onboarding program, individual coaching, and ad hoc formal
and inforff mal training sessions.

Employm ee Health and Wellnell ss

Our goal is to comprehensively supporu t our employees, no matter who they are or where they are in life.ff To further this goal, Privia
has introduced nationwide access to virtuat l mental healthcare as well as comprehensive medical coverage for plan participants. Our
Employee Assistance Program (“EAP”) provides support to all employees and their family members who may be experiencing times
of crisis. Additionally, we have access to management training on important topics like helping parents returt n to work or identifyingff
burnout. In addition to these on-demand services, we also offer Mental Health First Aid certification so our managers can recognize
and respond to a person experiencing a mental health emergency.

Put Peoplo e FirFF strr

Privia Health employees are committed to improving patient care through their support of the physicians, providers, and care center
staff.ff The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee assists our Board of Directors in its oversight of talent management,
including corporate culture, employee experience, recruir ting, retention, attrition, career development and progression, succession, and
employee relations.

Privia Health has been honored to be named a Top Workplace for the last three years by Energage locally and nationally both as a
large-size company and a healthcare organization. In 2024, we earned additional culture excellence awards froff m other organizations,
highlighting our effortff s in employee appra eciation, our cullturt e of respect b, b lelonging,onging, andd contiinuous llearningningr , employee well-being,
profesff sional development, purporr se and values, leadership, innovation, compensation and benefits, and work-life fff leff xibility.

Serving Our Communities

We encourage and actively support our employees who want to have a meaningful and positive impact on their communities and
charitabla e causes by giving their time, talents and resources. The Company supporu ted various charitabla e organizations throughout the
year, focusff ed on heart health, fooff d disparities across our geographies, and holiday donations for certain communities.

Additionally, we have a task forff ce that is activated in advance of weather events or impending natural disasters. The task force
coordinates outreach to each employee in the potential impact area and remains in touch throughout the durd ation and recovery. The
task force assesses impact and provides resources to address the most pressing, time-sensitive needs. Should a disaster occur that
impacts employees in any of our geographies, the Privia Employee Disaster Relief Fund, originally establa ished in August 2017, is
reopened. Through donations to the relief fund,ff employees are abla e to support their colleagues who applied for heff lp.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

RISK FACTORS

Investing in our common stock involves a high dgg egdd regg e of ro isk. You should cl arefulff ly considerdd the risks and uncertainties desdd cribed
below, together with all of the othett r information contained in thitt s rii eport, including our consolidatdd ed financial statements att nd the
related notes thereto, befoe re making a decidd siii on to invest in our common stock. The risks and uncertainties descrdd ibed below are not the
only oll nes we facff e. It is not possible to predict or idendd tifyi all such facff tors. Addidd tional risks akk nd uncertainties thattt we are unaware of,o
or that we currently believe are not material, ml ay alsoll become imporm tant factors trr hat aftt feff ct us. If aII ny of the folff lowing risks okk ccur, our
business, financial condition, operating results and prospects ctt ould bl e materially and adverserr ly affeff cted. In tdd hattt event, the price of
our common stock could dll ecdd line, and you could ll ose all or part of yo our investment.

Risk Factor Summaryy

The folff lowing is a summary of risks factff ors that could materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

• We conduct business in a heavily regulated industry,rr which increases our costs and could restrict the conduct of our business,
and if the Company or our Medical Groups fail to comply with the extensive applicable healthcare laws and government
regulations, which may change from time to time, we could suffeff r adverse finff ancial impacts, be required to make significant
changes to our operations, or experience reputational harm, any or all of which may adversely affect our business.

• Our business model relies on a complex legal framework that governs our relationships with Medical Groupsu and Privia
Providers. Legal challenges or shifting interprr etations of applicable laws could require us to make significant changes to our
operations, which could adversely affect our business.

• Our business, financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected by changes and uncertainty in the
healthcare industry,rr including health reform initiatives and other changes to laws and regulations.

• We, our Medical Groups and Privia Providers, may be subju ect to legal proceedings, including litigation, governmental
investigations and claims, and payer audits.

• Risks associated with VBC arrangements may negatively impact our business, operations, and financial condition.

• If federalff or state healthcare programs or commercial payers reducd e reimbursement rates we receive or alter payment terms, if
we and our Medical Groups are unable to retain and negotiate favorable contracts with private third-party payers, if insured
individuals move to health plans with greater coverage exclusions or restrictions or narrower networks, or if our Medical
Groups’ volume of uninsured or underinsured patients increases, or if patient responsibility accounts are not able to be
collected, our revenues may decline, adversely affecting our financial condition and results of operations.

• The reimbursement process is complex and may involve delays and other uncertainties, which may adversely affectff our
business, operations, and revenues.

• The information that we or our Medical Groups provide to Medicare Advantage plans could be inaccurate, incomplete or
unsupportabla e, which could impact result in harm to our business, operations and finff ancial condition.

• Third-party payer controls designed to reducd e costs and other payer practices to decrease or review utilization, surgical
procedurd e volumes or reimbursement for services rendered may reduce our revenues.

• If the Company and its Medical Groups are unable to effectively compete, including by innovating and evolving our service
offeriff ngs, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be adversely impacted.

• Our sales and implementation cycle can be long and unpredictabla e and requires considerable time and expense, which may
cause our results of operations to fluctuate.

• Our performance depends on our ability to effiff ciently price the Privia Technology Solution and our Privia operating model
and to contract with Medical Groups, Privia Providers, health system partners, ACO participants and third-party payers.

• The success of our business depends on the execution of our growth strategy, which may not prove viable and we may not
realize expected results, or if the estimates and assumptions we use to determine the size of our total addressabla e market, or
TAM, are inaccurate, our future growth rate may be impacted and our business could be harmed.

• If certain of our vendors do not meet our needs, our business, ability to operate, finff ancial condition, cash floff ws, results of
operations, and relationships with our Medical Groups, Privia Providers and their patients could be negatively impacted.

• If we are not able to maintain and enhance our reputation and brand recognition, including through the maintenance and
protection of trademarks, our business and results of operations will be harmed.

• The operations of the Company and its Medical Groupsu are concentrated in the fourff teen states and the District of Columbia,
which makes us sensitive to regulatory, economic, public health, environmental, competitive and other conditions and

12



changes in these jurisdictions, and we may not be able to successfulff ly establa ish a presence in new geographic markets.

• Changes in treatment methodologies, trends related to the usage of primary care and specialist healthcare services, or the
failure to effeff ctively obtain medical supplu ies and drugs for Medical Groups could cause our results of operations to decline.

• Security threats, cybersecurity incidents or other forms of data breaches, catastrophic events and other disruptu ions to our, our
Medical Groups’, our business partners’ or our vendors’ information technology and related systems could compromise
sensitive information related to our business, the Medical Groups or patients, prevent access to critical information, harm
patients, require remediation and other corrective action, which can be expensive, and expose us to liabia lity, which could
adversely affect our business, operations and reputation.

• If we cannot timely implement the Privia Technology Solution for Privia Physicians and new Medical Groups, or promptly
resolve Privia Provider and patient concerns, or if the Privia Technology Solution faiff ls to operate as we expect, our business
and results of operations may be adversely impacted, we could be subject to litigation, and our reputation may be harmed.

• If we are unable to obtain, maintain and enforce intellectuat l property protection for ourff technology or if the scope of our
intellectuat l property protection is not sufficiently broad, others may be able to develop and commercialize technology
subsu tantially similar to ours, and our ability to successfulff ly commercialize our technology may be adversely affected.

• Third parties may allege that we are infriff nging, misappropra iating or otherwise violating their intellectuat l property rights and
in some instances initiate formal legal proceedings, the outcome of which would be uncertain and could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

• If we are unable to protect the confidff entiality of our trade secrets, know-how and other proprietary and internally developed
information, the value of our technology could be adversely affected.

• Any restrictions on our use of, or ability to license, data, or our failure to license data and integrate third-party technologies,
could have a material adverse effectff on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

• Our use of “open source” softwff are could adversely affect our ability to offeff r our services and subject us to possible litigation.

• We faceff risks associated with healthcare technology initiatives, including those related to sharing patient data and
interoperabia lity, as well as our use of certain artificial intelligence and machine learning models.

• Our use, disclosure, and other processing of personal inforff mation, including health-related information, is subju ect to HIPAA,
other federal anff d state privacy and security regulations, and contractuat l obligations, and our actuat l or perceived failure to
comply with those regulations or contractuat l obligations could result in significant liabia lity or reputational harm and, in turn,
a material adverse effeff ct on our patient base and revenue.

• We depend on our senior management team and other key employees, and the loss of one or more of these employees or an
inability to attract, recruit, motivate, develop and retain other highly skilled employees could harm our business.

• The operations and growth strategy of the Company and its Medical Groups depend on our ability to recruir t and retain
qualified talent, including physicians and non-physician practitioners.

• Our management team has limited experience managing a public company, and our corporate culture has contributed to our
success, and if we cannot maintain this culture as we grow, our business may be harmed.

• Our overall business results may suffeff r froff m an economic downturn or deterioration of public health conditions associated
with a pandemic, epidemic or outbrt eak of an infectious disease.

• We have a history orr f net losses, we anticipate increasing expenses in the futurff e, and we may not be able to maintain
profitaff bia lity.

• Our ability to use our net operating losses to offset future taxable income may be subju ect to certain limitations.

• Our indebtedness, Revolving Credit Agreement terms, or any failure to raise additional capital or generate cash floff w to
expand our operations could adversely affect our business and growth prospects or restrict our current and futurff e operations.

• We may fail to maintain effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting, which may adversely affect investor confidff ence.

• Negative publicity relating to our business, industry,rr Medical Groups or Privia Providers and evolving expectations related to
ESG initiatives may have a material adverse effecff t on our business or finff ancial results.

• Provisions of our corporate governance documents could make an acquisition of us more diffiff cult, may prevent attempts by
our shareholders to replace or remove our current management, or may limit our shareholders’ abia lity to obtain a favorable
judicial forum for diff sputes with us.

• Our operating results and stock price may be volatile, the market price of our common stock could drop significantly and you
may not receive any returt n on your investment in our stock.
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Legal and Regulatory Risks

We conduct business in aii heavily rll egulatll edtt industrytt , wyy hich increases our costs att nd could rll estrict thett conduct of oo ur busineii ss, and
if the CompanCC y on r our Medical GroGG ups faiff l tii o ctt omply wll ith ttt hett extensive appla icll able hll ealthcare laws and governmrr ent regulatll iott ns,
which may change from time to ttt imett , we e could suffu erff adverserr financii ial impii acts, bs e requireii d to make signi ificant changes to our
operations, os r expeee rience repuee tational harm,rr any on r all of which may adverserr ly affeff ct our business.

Participants in the healthcare industry arr re subju ect to extensive and complex laws and regulations at the federalff , state, and local levels
relating to, among other issues:

• billing and coding for, and documentation of, services and properly handling overpayments;

• relationships with physicians and other referral sources and referral recipients, including, for example, state or attorney
general notice or appra oval requirements forff certain relationships;

• restrictions related to multi-specialty practices;

• appra opriateness and adequacy of medical care;

• quality of medical equipment and services;

• patient, workforce, and public safety;

• qualifications and supervision of, and reimbursement for services provided by, medical and support personnel;

• the provision of services via telehealth, including technological standards and coverage restrictions or other limitations on
reimbursement;

• the confidff entiality, maintenance, interoperabia lity, exchange, and security of medical records and other health-related and
personal inforff mation, including data breach, ransomware and identity theft iff ssues;

• the development and use of artificial intelligence and other predictive algorithms, including those used in clinical decision
supporu t tools;

• restrictions on the provision of medical care, including reproducd tive care;

• permitting, facility and personnel licensure, certification and accreditation requirements;

• enrollment standards and requirements for paff rticipation in government healthcare programs;

• corporrr ate practice of medicine and fee-splitting;

• consumer disclosures and price transparency;

• the distribution, maintenance and dispensing of pharmaceuticals and controlled substances;

• relationships between healthcare providers and drug and medical device companies;

• debt collection, balance billing and billing for out of neff twork services;

• communications with patients and consumers;

• advertising and marketing;

• operating policies and procedurd es;

• activities regarding competitors;

• insurance and the assumption of financial risk by healthcare entities, including allowabla e types of finff ancial risk;

• addition of facff ilities and services; and

• environmental protections.

Among these laws are the Stark Law, the federalff Anti-Kickback Statutt e, the FCA, the federal Civil Monetary Penalties Law, the
Eliminating Kickbacks in Recovery Act, HIPAA, Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (“HITECH”),
the Clinical Labora atory Irr mprovement Amendments of 1988 (“CLIA”) and similar state laws. The Company, the Medical Groups and
Privia Providers each have their own compliance obligations with respect to many of these laws and regulations, such as licensure and
certification requirements to provide services and operate facilities and those related to billing and coding compliance. Although we
provide general oversight and managerial support, to the extent permitted by appla icable laws, and generally require compliance with
laws under relevant contracts with the Medical Groups, we do not exercise control over the clinical decisions of practitioners and
supeu rvision of medical practice staff,ff and therefore we cannot provide assurance of their ongoing compliance.
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Some healthcare laws appla y to the financial relationships we have or our Medical Groups have with physicians and others who either
refer or influff ence the referff ral of patients to our Medical Groups and Privia Physicians or who are the recipients of referrals. The
federal Anti-Kickbakk ck Statutt e, for example, is a criminal law that prohibits, among other things, the solicitation, receipt, offeff ring or
payment of any remuneration with the intent of generating referrals or orders for services or items that may be paid for byff a federalff
healthcare program. The OIG has enacted safe harbor regulations that outline practices deemed protected from prosecution under the
federal Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e. While we and our Medical Groupsu endeavor to comply with applicable safe harbors, certain current
arrangements, including joint ventures and financial relationships with physicians and other referral sources and persons and entities to
which our Medical Groups refer patients, may not qualify fff orff safe harbor protection. Failure to qualify fff orff a safe hff arborr does not mean
the arrangement necessarily violates the federalff Anti-Kickback Statutt e, but may subject the arrangement to greater scrutiny. We
cannot offeff r assurance that practices outside of a safe hff arborr will not be found to violate the federal Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e.
Allegations of violations of the federalff Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e may also be brought under the federal Civil Monetary Penalty Law,
which requires a lower burden of proof than other fraff ud and abusa e laws.

The Stark Law is a strict liability civil law that prohibits physicians from making referrals for “designated health services” payable by
Medicare or Medicaid to entities with which the physician or an immediate famff ily member of the physician has a finff ancial
relationship, unless an exception applies. The Stark Law furff ther prohibits entities that have received such referrals from filing claims
with Medicare (or billing another individual, entity or third party payor) forff those referred services. The financial relationships of our
Medical Groups with referring physicians and their immediate family members must comply with the Stark Law. We and our Medical
Groups attempt to strucrr ture those relationships to meet an exception to or otherwise comply with the Stark Law, but the regulations
implementing the Stark Law, including the requirements to meet exceptions, are detailed and complex. We do not always have the
benefit of significant regulatory orr r judicial interpretation of the Stark Law and its implementing regulations. Thus, we cannot provide
assurance that every relationship complies fulff ly with the Stark Law. Unlike the federal Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e, failure to meet an
exception under or otherwise comply with the Stark Law results in a violation of the Stark Law, even if such violation is technical in
nature.

Additionally, violations of the federalff Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e or Stark Law, improper billing forff services to federal healthcare
programs, or improper retention of overpayments froff m federalff healthcare programs may be the basis for finff ding an FCA violation,
either under a suit brought by the government or by a private person under a qui tam, or “whistleblower,” suit.

The data protection landscapea is rapidla y evolving, and the Company, its Medical Groups and ACO participants, are and may become
subju ect to numerous state and federal laws, requirements and regulations governing the collection, use, disclosure, retention and
security of health-related and other personal inforff mation. For example, the HIPAA privacy and security regulations extensively
regulate the use and disclosure of PHI and require covered entities, including healthcare providers and health plans, and vendors
(known as “business associates”) that perform certain services that involve creating, receiving, maintaining or transmitting PHI on
behalf of covered entities or other business associates, to implement administrative, physical and technical safeguards to protect the
privacy and security of PHI. These laws are complex and subju ect to change and interprrr etation, and our approach to compliance with
such laws may include reliance on safe hff arborr s or other regulatory rrr ulr es, including those related to organized healthcare arrangements,
which are themselves complex, require resources and investment to manage ongoing compliance, and are subju ect to change and
interpretation, particularly in the current regulatory err nvironment. In addition to HIPAA, there are numerous other laws, regulations,
and legislative and regulatory irr nitiatives at the federalff and state levels governing the confidff entiality, privacy, availabia lity, integrity and
security of health-related inforff mation and other types of personal information. In many cases, the state laws are more restrictive or
impose more obligations than, and may not be preempted by, the HIPAA privacy and security regulations. State laws vary in scope,
may appla y to employees and business contacts in addition to patients, and may be subju ect to new and varying interprr etations by courts
and government agencies, creating complex compliance issues and potentially resulting in exposure to additional expense, adverse
publicity and liabia lity. The potential effects of these laws are farff -reaching and may require the Company, its Medical Groupsu , and their
third-party service and technology vendors to modify data use, storage, transmission and processing practices and policies, or our
approach to compliance with other similar laws, and to incur subsu tantial costs and expenses in order to comply. Failure to comply with
these and any other comprehensive privacy laws passed at the state or federalff level may result in regulatory err nforcement action and
reputational harm. We expect that new or modified laws, regulations, regulatory grr uidance and industry srr tandards concerning privacy,
data protection and information security, including those related to specific types of personal data, will continue to be proposed and
enacted in various jurisdictions, which could impact our operations and cause us to incur substantial costs.

Additionally, the Telephone Consumer Protection Act (the “TCPA”) imposes specific requirements, including consent requirements
and other restrictions, on communications with patients and consumers, including text messages or other communications that we or
our Medical Groups may use to communicate with and perform outreach to our patients. TCPA violations can result in significant
financial penalties, including penalties or criminal fines imposed by the Federal Communications Commission or through private
litigation or by state authorities.

The Company and its Medical Groups are also subject to various federal and state antitrusr t laws that, for example, restrict exclusive
contracting relationships with healthcare providers, restrict sharing of cost and pricing data, prohibit competitors from taking
collective action to set commercial payer reimbursement rates, and establish integration requirements (financial risk or clinical
integration) for joint ventures or healthcare networks to jointly contract with payers.
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If we or our Medical Groups fail to comply with these or other applicable laws and regulations, which are subject to change, any such
failure could result in liabia lities, including civil penalties, money damages, lapses in reimbursement, loss of facff ility licenses,
accreditations, or certificff ations, revocation of billing privileges, exclusion of one or more entities and/or facilities froff m participation in
the Medicare, Medicaid and other federal anff d state health care programs, termination of various relationships or contracts, lawsuits
and criminal penalties. Medicare and Medicaid payments may be suspended pending even an investigation of what the government
determines to be a credible allegation of fraff ud. We could also be required to make changes to our business model and/or practices,
which could increase operating expenses, negatively affect our business relationships, and decrease access to new business
opportunities. In addition, different interpretations or enforcement of, or amendments to, these and other laws and regulations in the
future could subject current or past practices to allegations of impropriety or illegality or could require us to make changes in our
operations, faciff lities, equipment, personnel, services, capital expenditures and operating expenses. The costs of compliance with, and
the other burdens imposed by, these and other laws or regulatory arr ctions may increase operational costs, result in interruptions or
delays in the availabia lity of systems and/or result in a decline in patient volume or Privia Provider or Medical Group au ttrition. Our
failure to accurately anticipate the appla ication of these laws and regulations to our business or any other faiff lure to comply with current
or future regulatory rrr equirements could create liabia lity for us and negatively affect our business. Any action against us for violation of
these laws or regulations, even if we successfulff ly defend against it, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses, divert our
management’s attention froff m the operation of our business or result in reputational harm.

Our business model reliell s on a complex lee egll al framework trr hatt t governs our relatll iott nshipsii withii Medical GroGG ups and Privia Providerdd s.rr
Legale challell nges or shiftiff ngii interpretations of applicll able lll awll s could require us to mtt ake signi ificant changes to our opeo rations,
which could adverserr ly affeff ct our business.

The strucr ture of our business model is driven by nuanced legal concepts, some of which are subject to varying interprer tations.
Although we and our Medical Groups strive to comply with applicable federal and state laws and regulations, governmental
authorities that administer these laws or other third parties may challenge our current structurt e.

At the state level, our ability to conduct business and the strucr ture of our operations depends on each state’s laws, regulations, and
policies governing, among other issues, the corporate practice of medicine, fee-splitting, and the assumption of finff ancial risk. In
several states, laws and regulations, guidance froff m professional licensing boards or state attorneys general and judicial doctrines
prohibit corporr ations and other entities not owned by physicians or other permitted health profesff sionals from practicing medicine and
other professions. These laws and doctrines have been interpreted in some states to prohibit entities not owned by permitted
profesff sionals from employing physicians and other profesff sionals and to prohibit such entities froff m undertaking activities that could be
seen as exercising control over healthcare provider professional judgment. Some states also have adopted restrictions on direct or
indirect payments to, or entering into fee-ff splitting arrangements with, physicians and unlicensed persons or business entities. These
restrictions vary by state and are often vague and subjeb ct to interpretation by state medical boards, state attorneys general and other
regulatory arr uthorities. We attempt to strucr ture our arrangements with healthcare providers to comply with applicable state law.
However, we cannot provide assurance that governmental offiff cials responsible for enforcing these laws will not assert that we, or
transactions in which we are involved, violate these laws. These laws may also be interprrr eted by courts in a manner inconsistent with
our interpretations. Possible sanctions for violations of these restrictions include loss of a physician’s license and civil and criminal
penalties. In addition, agreements between the Company and physicians may be considered void and unenforceable, our MSAs and
management fees could be adversely affected, and we may be required to restrucr ture the Company’s relationships with Medical
Groups and Privia Physicians, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

The strucr ture of our business also is impacted by federal law. In particular, we seek to structurt e each Medical Group to comply with
applicable Stark Law exceptions. We periodically review our Medical Groups and their relationships with Privia Physicians to ensure
continued compliance and that the regulatory srr afeguards in various agreements are implemented appropriately. Despite our effoff rts, it
is possible that governmental authorities may conclude that our business practices do not comply with the Stark Law and its
implementing regulations, which could result in sanctions such as denial of payment, civil monetary penalties, and exclusion from
federal healthcare programs. Further, we could be subject to significant repayment obligations, as the Stark Law requires entities to
refund amounts received forff items or services provided pursuant to a prohibited referral. Failure to timely repay such amounts may
constitutt e a falff se or fraudulent claim and could result in civil penalties and additional penalties under the FCA.

If we or the Medical Groups are foundff to be in violation of the Stark Law or any other federal or state law affecting our business
model or practices, we could be required to discontinue part of our current business or change our business strucrr ture, operations, or
relationships with third-parties, such as Privia Providers, health system partners or payers, which may require us to incur significant
costs. Any such changes could also negatively affect our business relationships, new business opportunities, and growth plans. In
addition, our failure to accurately anticipate the application of various federal and state laws to our business or otherwise comply with
legal requirements could result in significant legal expenses, divert management’s attention froff m the operation of our business, and
result in adverse publicity, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business.
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Our business, financii ial conditioii n and results of operations may ba e adverserr ly affeff cted by changes and uncertainty in the healthcare
industry, iyy ncii luding heii althll refoe rm initiativtt es and other changes to ltt awll s aw nd regue lations.

The healthcare industry irr s subject to changing political, regulatory arr nd other influff ences, along with various scientific and
technological initiatives and innovations. Regulatory urr ncertainty has increased as a result of decisions issued by the U.S. Supreme
Court in June 2024 that affeff ct review of federal agency actions, including Lopeo r Brighti Enterprises v. Raimondo. These decisions
increase judicial scrutiny of agency authority, shift greater responsibility for statutory interpretation to courts and expand the timeline
in which a plaintiff cff an sue regulators, all of which could have significant impacts on government agency regulation, particularly
within the heavily-regulated healthcare industry,rr and may have broad implications for our business. While the effects of these
decisions will become apparent over the coming months and years, we anticipate an increase in legal challenges to healthcare
regulations and agency guidance and decisions, including but not limited to those issued by HHS and certain of its agencies, such as
the CMS, FDA, and OIG. Federal agencies oversee, regulate and otherwise affect many aspects of our business, including through
Medicare and Medicaid payment and coverage policies, policies affecting size of the uninsured population, administration of state
Medicaid programs, and enforff cement and interpretation of fraff ud and abusa e laws. In addition to increased uncertainty and potential
changes to regulations and agency guidance as a result of legal challenges, the recent U.S. Supreme Court decisions may result in
inconsistent judicial interpretations and delays in and other impacts to the agency rulemaking and legislative processes, among other
effeff cts, any of which could require us to make changes to our operations and have a material negative impact on our business.

The healthcare industry hrr as been and continues to be impacted by healthcare reforff m efforts. For example, the Affordaff bla e Care Act
affeff cts how healthcare services are covered, delivered and reimbursed and expanded health insurance coverage through a combination
of public program expansion and private sector health insurance reforff ms. Changes in the law’s implementation, subsu equent legislation
and regulations, state initiatives and other factff ors, including potential changes to or repeal of the Affordable Care Act as a result of
changes in the political landscapea , have and may continue to affeff ct the number of individuals that elect to obtain public or private
health insurance or the scope of such coverage. Reducd tions in the number of insured individuals or the scope of insurance coverage
may have an adverse effectff on our business. In addition, Medicare and Medicaid policies are subju ect to change, including as a result of
changes in the presidential administration and Congress. Legislation and administrative actions at the federalff level may impact funding
for, or the strucrr ture of, tff he Medicaid or Medicare program, and may shape administration of the Medicaid program at the state level
and Medicare Advantage Programs. Other recent health reform initiatives and proposals at the federal and state levels include those
focused on price transparency and out-of-network charges as well as pharmacy and pharmacy benefit manager reform effortff s, which
may impact prices, the relationships between hospitals, patients, payers, and providers, total cost of care and patient outcomes, and
lead to further uncertainty in other participants in the healthcare industry,rr including employers. Other industry prr articipants, such as
private payers and large employer groups and their affiff liates, may also introduce finff ancial or delivery srr ystem reforff ms.

In addition, payment policies for diff fferent types of providers and for vaff rious items and services continue to evolve, and it is difficff ult to
predict the nature and effect of such changes. VBC arrangements often require providers to satisfy and report certain quality measures
as a prerequisite to realizing value-based revenue enhancements or use quality metrics to calculate increases to or reductions in
payments. Developments that slow or limit the healthcare industry’rr s use of VBC arrangements, or changes in the quality metrics that
providers are required to report, required thresholds, or measurement methodologies, could reducd e our revenues and adversely affect
our business and results of operations.

There is uncertainty regarding whether, when, and what other health reform initiatives will be adopted through governmental avenues
and/or the private sector, the timing and implementation of any such effortff s, and the impact of those efforts on providers as well as
other healthcare industry prr articipants. It is difficult to predict the nature and/or success of current and futurff e health reform initiatives,
any of which may have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash floff w, capital resources and
liquidity.

We, oe ur Medical GroGG ups and Privia Providerdd s,rr may be sa ubjeb ct to legal proce eedindd gs, is ncii ludingii litigatiott n, governmental
investigatiott ns and claims, and payer audits.ii

The Company and its Medical Groups have been and may become subju ect to various legal and governmental proceedings. The
Company, its Medical Groups and Privia Providers may faceff allegations and claims related to various topics, including billing and
coding for healthcare services and other reimbursement issues, malpractice, data privacy and security, labor and employment,
consumer protection, intellectuat l property infriff ngement, misappropriation and other issues related to our acquisitions, securities
issuances or business practices. These matters may include claims for substantial or indeterminate amounts of damages and claims for
injunctive relief. If an unfavff orable outcome occurs in connection with any current or future legal proceedings or other loss
contingencies, we and our Medical Groups may be subjeb ct to significant settlement costs or judgments, penalties, and/or requirements
to modify or limit our operations or services, any of which could negatively impact our business, operations, and growth strategy.
Managing legal proceedings, even if the outcomes are favorable, can be time- and resource-consuming, be disruptr ive to normal
business operations, divert management’s attention froff m the business and result in adverse publicity and reputational harm.

Healthcare companies, in particular, are subject to various reviews, investigations and audits by governmental authorities to verify
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, and Medicare and Medicaid program requirements. Both federal and state governmental
agencies have heightened civil and criminal enforcement efforff ts in recent years and expanded collabora ative program integrity

17



initiatives. These effortff s have led to a number of investigations, prosecutions, convictions and settlements in our industry in grr eneral,
including under federal ciff vil and criminal false claims laws. Further, under the FCA and some similar state laws, private parties may
bring whistleblower lawsuits against companies that allegedly submit false claims for payments to, or improperly retain overpayments
from, the government.

Government agencies, including the OIG, CMS and their agents, such as Medicare administrative contractors (“MACs”), may conduct
audits of our and our Medical Groups’ operations. CMS and state Medicaid agencies contract with recovery audit contractors
(“RACs”) and other contractors to conduct post-payment reviews to detect and correct improper payments in the Medicare program,
including Medicare Advantage, and the Medicaid programs. Other third-party payers may conduct similar audits. In addition, we and
our Medical Groups perform internal audits and monitoring. Depending on the naturt e of the conduct foundff in audits and investigations
and whether the underlying conduct could, for example, be considered systemic, knowing or intentional, their resolution could have a
material, adverse effect on our operations and finff ancial position. Further, negative audit finff dings or determinations that our or our
Medical Groups’ operations violate appla icable laws and regulations may result in repayment obligations or recoupment of previously
paid claims, payment suspension or the revocation of billing or payment privileges, corporate integrity agreements, and civil and
criminal penalties, including significant finff es and damages and other sanctions, such as exclusion from governmental healthcare
programs, any of which could have an adverse effect on our business, operations, and financial condition.

Although the Company, our Medical Groups and/or Privia Providers maintain third-party professional liabia lity insurance coverage,
claims against us could exceed the coverage limits of our insurance policies or particular claims could be excluded froff m coverage.
Profesff sional liabia lity claims in excess of appla icable insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. In addition, any professional liabia lity claim brought against us, our Medical Groups oru Privia
Providers, with or without merit, could result in an increase of professional liabia lity insurance premiums. Insurance coverage varies in
cost and can be difficult to obtain, and we cannot guarantee that we, our Medical Groups or Privia Providers will be able to obtain
insurance coverage in the futurff e on terms acceptabla e to us or at all. If our costs related to insurance and claims increase, our business
and finff ancial condition could be adversely affected.

Risks Related to our Business and Operations

Riskii s akk ssociatedtt withii VBC arrangements may na egativtt ely ill mpii act our busineii ss, operations, as nd financii ial conditioii n.

A significant portion of our business is derived froff m VBC arrangements for heff althcare services, including MSSP and Medicare
Advantage. Generally, VBC contracts tie incentive payments to specific targets for risk adjusted total cost of care, quality related
process and outcome measures, and beneficiaff ry experience of care. The VBC revenues of the Company and its Medical Groupsu are
subju ect to risks including managing establa ished targets relative to utilization by patients, unit cost and the mix of healthcare services,
annual fluff ctuat tions in payment terms for certain VBC arrangements, such as Medicare Advantage payment rates, changes in patient
attribution, and changes in plan design and other terms by payers. CMS has developed several alternative payment models (“APM”s)
that use VBC contract structurt e to incentivize cost-effiff cient and high-quality care forff Medicare beneficiaff ries, including ACOs and
bundled payment models. There are also state-driven and third-party payer VBC initiatives. For example, some states have
implemented APMs or aligned quality metrics across payers. Some private third-party payers are also transitioning toward APMs or
implementing other VBC strategies. For example, many large private third-party payers, such as managed care plans, currently require
physicians to report quality data. While participation in such APMs, including ACOs, has historically been voluntary,rr CMS and
certain other payers have indicated that participation in futurff e programs may be required, and any changes to or elimination of VBC
arrangements by CMS or other payers (including, for example, to prospective trend targets or the requirements for paff rticipation) could
have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, finff ancial condition and cash floff ws.

Regulation of risk-sharing arrangements, including certain VBC arrangements, varies significantly by state. If a state in which we
currently operate, or in which we seek to expand, views the participation of the Company or its Medical Groups in risk-sharing
arrangements as the assumption of insurance risk, the arrangement may falff l within the purview of state insurance or managed care
laws and regulations, and we or the Medical Group may be required to obtain a state insurance or managed care license or similar
registration. These laws and regulations may subject the entity involved to oversight by state regulators, including through periodic
reporting or audits, and requirements forff financial reserves. Some of these laws may be vague and state regulators may have
interpretations that differ froff m ours. Even if a state regulatory arr gency does not directly oversee the transfer of risk by a payer to a
downstream entity, the state may require the licensed payer to include certain oversight mechanisms in payer contracts, which could
increase our or our Medical Groups’ administrative costs and have an adverse effect on our business, cash floff ws or results of
operations. If we or our Medical Groups fail to comply with insurance laws and regulations, including licensure and oversight
requirements, we may be required to make changes to our operations and could be subject to civil and/or criminal penalties, denial of
future licensure applications and termination of payer contracts. These laws and regulations may affect the operation of, for example,
ACOs, direct primary care programs, provider-sponsored organizations, independent practice associations, and provider capitation
models.

Success in VBC contracts requires coordination of teams and a combination of data, analytics, software-supported workflow
management and automation in addition to direct patient interaction. We are dependent on Privia Providers and other providers to
effeff ctively manage the quality and cost of care, and we cannot guarantee nor control the quality and efficiency of services from such
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providers or the attrition of providers, including those with a track record of success in VBC arrangements, or attributed participants.
While we believe we are well-positioned to compete in a value-based reimbursement environment and facilitate the transition fromff
FFS models to VBC arrangements, it is unclear whether VBC arrangements will ultimately achieve their aims and whether they will
decrease aggregate reimbursement. If we or our Medical Groups fail to achieve contract performance standards under any applicable
VBC program, perform at a level below the outcomes demonstrated by our competitors, or otherwise fail to effeff ctively provide or
coordinate the efficient delivery orr f quality health care services, our reputation in the industry mrr ay be negatively impacted, we may
receive reduced reimbursement amounts, including the loss of shared savings or other bonuses, and we may owe repayments to
payers, causing our revenues to decline. In addition, failure to satisfy qualify pff erformance standards may lead to the termination of a
physician’s abia lity to participate in a particular commercial payer product or result in our Medical Groups not being abla e to participate
in a particular VBC arrangement, tiered network or narrow network offering. Reductions in the quality of services furnished by our
Medical Groups, Privia Providers or ACO participants could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

Additionally, the Company monitors and manages quality metrics, including star ratings for Medicare Advantage plans, and submu its
quality data on behalf of its Medical Groups, as well as its ACO participants. Any delays in information froff m payers or issues with the
quality or integrity of data from third-parties, including as a result of the highly complex process required to summarize, organize and
deliver actionable data to Privia Providers, may prevent us, our Medical Groups or ACO participants, froff m making necessary changes
to mitigate potential quality concerns, attribution changes or total cost of care. As more of our and our Medical Groups’ revenues are
derived froff m VBC arrangements, actuat rial modeling and effeff ctive strategies to appropra iately control costs and expenses are necessary
for success, and any failure by us or our Medical Groupsu to adequately predict and control our and the Medical Groupsu ’ costs and
expenses and to make reasonable estimates and maintain adequate accruar ls for incurred but not reported claims, could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations, finff ancial condition and cash floff ws. Furthermore, to the extent that our Medical
Groups’ patients require more care than anticipated or our medical costs and expenses exceed estimates, reimbursement paid under our
VBC arrangements may be insufficient to cover costs. This may negatively impact both our revenue from Medical Groupsu and fromff
management services furnished to Non-Owned Medical Groups. Although we seek to mitigate some of this risk on a case-by-case
basis with stop-loss insurance coverage, we generally have little ability to increase our coverage during the terms of our VBC
arrangements. In addition, there are significant diffiff culties and risks associated with estimating the amount of revenues that we and our
Medical Groups recognize under our VBC arrangements with payers. These estimates affect the timing and the amounts of revenue
recognized and, if our estimates are materially inaccurate, could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations,
financial condition and cash flows.

If feff deral or state healthll care programs or commercial payers rrr educe reimbii urserr ment rates we receive or altell r payment terms, if we
and our Medical GroGG ups are unable to retain and negotiatett favorable cll ontracts withii private ttt hitt rdii -pdd arty payers,rr if insured
individuals mll ove to htt ealth plans with greater coverage exclusions or restrictiott ns or narrower netwott rks, or if our MedMM icdd al Groups’
volume of uninsured or underdd insured patiett nts itt ncii reases, os ur revenues may declinll e.

The revenues of the Company and its Medical Groups depend significantly on reimbursement by governmental and private third-party
payers. Federal and state governments have made, and continue to make, significant changes to the Medicare and Medicaid programs,
including reductions in reimbursement levels. For example, CMS makes annual updau tes to its Medicare Physician Fee Schedule,
including modifications to the Quality Payment Program. Reductions in payments under government healthcare programs may also
negatively impact payments from private third-party payers because, in some cases, third-party payers rely on all or portions of
Medicare payment systems to determine payment rates. In addition, the VBC revenues of the Company and our Medical Groupsu are
subju ect to risks involving annual fluff ctuat tions in payment terms for certain VBC arrangements, such as Medicare Advantage payment
rates, changes in patient attribution, and changes in plan design and other terms by payers. For example, CMS regularly updates its
Medicare Advantage risk adjustment model, the CMS Hierarchical Condition Categories (“HCC”) model, to account for healthcare
utilization and cost data, including by recalibrating the model with newer data, updating condition categories or diagnosis codes, and
adjud sting to coding pattern differences. Changes and variations in the HCC model lead to uncertainty and could significantly affecff t the
payments providers receive, which can adversely impact our business and results of operations.

Private third-party payers, including managed care plans, may reimburse healthcare providers at a higher rate than Medicare, Medicaid
or other government healthcare programs, depending on a variety of factors. Reimbursement rates are set forff th by contract when
providers are in-network. Our and our Medical Groups’ typical agreements with commercial payers only secure reimbursement rates
for, generally, a period of one to three years. Private third-party payers continue to demand discounted fee strucr tures and assumption
by healthcare providers of all or a portion of the financial risk related to the total cost of care of their enrollees. The ongoing trend
toward consolidation among payers tends to increase their bargaining power over feeff structurt es. Payers may also utilize plan strucrr tures
such as narrow networks and tiered networks that limit members’ provider choices, impose significantly higher cost sharing
obligations when care is obtained froff m providers in a disfavored tier or otherwise shift gff reater financial responsibility forff care to
patients, and such plan strucrr tures could be disadvantageous to Privia Providers. Other cost control strategies include restricting
coverage through utilization review, requiring prior authorizations and implementing alternative payment models. If any commercial
payers reduce their reimbursement rates, elect not to cover some or all of the healthcare services our Medical Groups provide, restrict
our ability to add new providers or participate in new producd ts or plans, or restrain the abia lity of Privia Providers to furnish services to
patients through plan structurt es or cost control strategies, our business may be harmed.
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Our futurff e success will depend, in part, on our and our Medical Groups’ abia lity to retain and renew our third-party payer contracts and
enter into new contracts on favff orable terms. The contracts we and our Medical Groups have with payers require us to comply with a
number of terms related to the provision of services and billing forff services. If we or our Medical Groups are unable to negotiate
increased reimbursement rates, maintain existing rates or other favff orable contract terms, effeff ctively respond to payer cost controls or
comply with the terms of the payer contracts, the payments we and our Medical Groups receive for services may be reducd ed and we
may be involved in payer disputes and experience payment denials, both prospectively and retroactively. If a payer terminates or elects
not to renew its relationship with us or our Medical Groups, our ability to retain patients associated with that payer is limited and
consequently could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, finff ancial condition and cash floff ws. Payers,
including those offering Commercial, Medicare Advantage, Medicaid, TriCare and Affordff able Care Act plans have become
increasingly aggressive in attempting to minimize the use of out-of-network providers by disregarding the assignment of payment
from their enrollees to out-of-network providers (i.e., sending payments directly to members instead of to out-of-network providers),
capping out-of-network benefits payable to members, waiving out-of-pocket payment amounts and initiating litigation against out-of-
network providers for interference with contractuat l relationships, insurance fraud and violation of state licensing and consumer
protection laws. Many states have laws and regulations that prevent providers from waiving patient out-of-pocket amounts, including
out-of-network charges, when such providers submu it their fulff l charges to payers. To the extent that we, our Medical Groups oru Privia
Providers are not able to enter into contracts on favff orable terms with payers, including with respect to in-network or out-of-network
designations, our patient volumes may suffeff r and our revenues may decline.

Our revenues and the relationships we and our Medical Groups have with payers may also be impacted by price transparency
initiatives. For example, HHS requires health insurers to publish online charges negotiated with providers for healthcare services,
which could impact our negotiations with payers. In addition, the No Surprises Act places limitations on billing forff certain services
furnished by providers who are not in-network with the patient’s health plan, among other requirements. Price transparency initiatives
may impact the abia lity of the Company and our Medical Groups to set and negotiate prices and the relationships between healthcare
providers, payers and patients, which may reducd e our revenues.

Changes in payer mix could adversely affect the overall reimbursement we and our Medical Groups receive from payers. Such
changes could be driven by an economic downturn that results in more uninsured patients or patients insured by state Medicaid
programs, among other facff tors. If we or our Medical Groups experience changes in payer mix or reductions in reimbursement, have
payer contracts that are not competitive in a given market or are unable to obtain or maintain contracts with certain payers, our
revenues could decrease. Our abia lity to recruir t new physicians to affiff liate with our Medical Groups may also be adversely impacted,
which could adversely affect our growth strategy and finff ancial projections.

An increase in the volume of uo ninsurii ed patiett nts or dtt eterdd ioration in thett collectabitt lityii of patiett nt responsibii lityii accounts ctt ould
adverserr ly affeff ct our finff ancial conditiodd n and results ott f oo peo rations.

There are collection risks related to our and our Medical Groups’ uninsured patient accounts and patient accounts forff which the patient
responsibility amounts (e.g., deductibles, copayments, coverage exclusions) remain outstanding. Any increase in the volume of
uninsured patients or deterioration in the collectability of uninsured and self-pay accounts receivable could adversely affecff t our cash
flows and results of operations.

We and our Medical Groups may experience growth in uninsured patients as a result of a number of factff ors, including conditions
impacting the overall economy and unemployment levels. In addition, federal and state legislatures have in recent years considered or
passed various proposals impacting the size of the uninsured or underinsured population. The number and identity of states that choose
to expand or otherwise modify Medicaid programs and the terms of expansion and other program modifications continue to evolve.
Further, under early COVID-19-related legislation, states that maintained continuous Medicaid enrollment were eligible for a
temporary irr ncrease in fedff eral funds for state Medicaid expenditures. The resumption of redeterminations for Medicaid enrollees in
2023 resulted in coverage disruprr tions and dis-enrollments of Medicaid enrollees, and Medicaid enrollment has generally continued to
decline through 2024 as states complete their redeterminations for these enrollees. In addition, some states have imposed individual
health insurance mandates and other states have explored or offeff r public health insurance options. These variables, among others,
make it difficult to predict the size of the uninsured population and what percentage of our total revenue will be comprised of self-pay
revenues.

We may also be adversely affected by the growth in patient responsibility accounts as a result of increases in the adoption of health
plan structurt es, including health savings accounts and narrow or tiered networks, that shift gff reater payment responsibility for care to
individuals through greater exclusions and copayment and deductible amounts. Further, the abia lity of the Company and its Medical
Groups to collect patient responsibility accounts may be limited by statutory, regulatory arr nd investigatory irr nitiatives. For example, the
No Surprises Act requires providers to send uninsured and self-pay patients a good faith estimate of expected charges forff items and
services and provides a dispute process for biff lls that exceed the good faith estimate by certain predetermined amounts.

A deterioration of economic conditions in the United States could lead to higher levels of uninsured patients, result in higher levels of
patients covered by lower paying government programs, result in fiscal uncertainties for botff h governmental and commercial payers, or
limit the economic ability of patients to make payments forff which they are responsible. If we and our Medical Groupsu experience
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growth in self-pff ay volume or deterioration in collectability of patient responsibility accounts, our financial condition or results of
operations could be adversely affected.

The reimbii urserr ment process is cii omplexll and may involve deldd ayll s and othett r uncertainties, which may adverserr ly affeff ct our business,
operations, as nd revenues.

The Company and its Medical Groups may encounter significff ant delays and other uncertainties under both FFS and VBC
reimbursement models, which could adversely affect our business and financial condition. The billing and collection process is
complex and varies across states and among payers, including as a result of freff quent insurance coverage changes, geographia c coverage
differences, differiff ng interpretations of contract coverage and other payer and provider issues, such as ensuring appropra iate
documentation. Third-party payers may disallow, in whole or in part, requests forff reimbursement based on determinations that the
patient is ineligible for coverage, other coverage exclusions or determinations that services were not medically necessary or not
adequately documented. We and our Medical Groups are subject to commercial and governmental payer audits and may be required to
make repayments based on the findings of those audits. In addition, determining appla icable primary and secondary coverage for our
patients is a complex, resource-intensive process, and errors in coordination of benefitsff determinations may result in refundsff to payers.
Revenues are subju ect to estimating risk as a result of the complexity of the billing and collection process, including related to
determining amounts not paid by the primary payer that will ultimately be collectible through secondary coverage or from the patient.
Retroactive adjustment by, and refundsff to, payers may change amounts realized and recognized as revenue from third-party payers.

Further, there can be lengthy delays between provision of services and ultimate payment. Under VBC arrangements, payment of any
shared savings, bonuses, withholds and similar payments is received only after the close of the relevant measure period (e.g., calendar
year), and only after the payer has reconciled cost of care, FFS reimbursement paid, as appla icable, reported quality data, and patient
attribution. Delays and uncertainties in the reimbursement process may adversely affect accounts receivable, increase the costs of
collection and cause us to incur additional borrowing costs.

Before receiving reimbursement from governmental healthcare programs and commercial payers under either FFS or VBC models,
we, our Medical Groups and Privia Providers must be appropriately enrolled and credentialed with the relevant programs and payers.
Enrollment rulr es, including limitations on retroactive billing, vary by program. If we or our Medical Groups do not enroll a Privia
Provider in a timely manner, the Medical Group may be precluded froff m billing forff any services rendered to a beneficiary prr rior to the
effeff ctive date of enrollment. Failure to timely or accurately submu it required information to payers may result in reimbursement delays
or denials that could result in adverse finff ancial impacts to Privia Providers’ medical practices (leading to attrition) or adversely affect
our operations, cash floff ws and revenues, and CMS may impose penalties on providers that submu it incomplete or inaccurate
information. Further, providers are generally required to periodically revalidate enrollment and credentialing information and provide
updates to payers of significant changes. Failure to comply with these and other requirements could result in revocation of enrollment
and billing privileges and denial of future applications.

The infii orff matiorr n thatt t we or our Medical GroGG ups provide to Medicare Advadd ntage plantt s could be inaccurate, ie ncii ompletll e ortt
unsupporpp table,ll which could impacm t risk adjustment scores and ultimately result in harm to our business, operations and finff ancial
conditiodd n.

The Company (on behalf of some Medical Groups) and its Medical Groups submu it claims and encounter data to Medicare Advantage
plans that are used to establa ish Risk Adjustment Factor (“RAF”) scores attributable to Medicare Advantage beneficff iaries. The RAF
scores impact the revenue that the health plans and, in turn, our Medical Groups are credited with for the provision of medical care to
these patients. The data submitted to CMS by each health plan are based partially on medical charts and diagnosis codes that our
Privia Providers prepare and we submu it to the health plans. Each health plan generally relies on us and our Privia Providers to
appropriately document and supporu t the RAF-related data in our medical records and to accurately code claims for medical services
provided to members. Although we, our Medical Groupsu and our payers have implemented auditing and monitoring processes to
collect and provide accurate risk adjud stment data to CMS, these efforts may not be sufficient to ensure the accuracy of such data.
Erroneous claims, encounter records and submu issions to Medicare Advantage plans could result in inaccurate revenue and risk
adjud stment payments, which are subject to correction or retroactive adjustment in later periods. This corrected or adjud sted information
may be refleff cted in financial statements for peff riods subsu equent to the period in which the revenue was recorded. We or our Medical
Groups may be required to refundff a portion of revenues received, which depending the magnitude of the refund,ff could damage our
relationships with the appla icable health plan and could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations, finff ancial
condition and cash floff ws.

Medicare Advantage plans are subject to audit by government agencies. CMS audits Medicare Advantage plans for documentation to
supporu t RAFRR -related payments forff enrollees through its Risk Adjud stment Data Validation (“RADV”RR ) audits, and may seek repayment
based on audit finff dings. CMS has indicated that payment adjustments will not be limited to RAFRR scores for the specific Medicare
Advantage enrollees for which errors are found, butff may also be extrapola ated to the entire Medicare Advantage plan subject to a
particular CMS contract. In February 2rr 023, CMS published a final rulr e updau ting the RADV audit methodology used by CMS to
address overpayments to Medicare Advantage plans based on the submu ission of unsupported risk-adjud sting diagnosis codes. This rule
is the subject of legal challenges. As finalized, the rule allows CMS to extrapola ate RADVRR audit finff dings for any CMS and OIG audits
beginning with payment year 2018. Extrapolation is expected to significantly increase the size of overpayment determinations. The
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OIG conducts audits of Medicare Advantage plans that are similar to RADVRR audits, addressing diagnoses collected and submitted to
CMS forff risk adjud stment purposes. In addition, there is increasing scrutrr iny by the Department of Justice (“DOJ”) with regard to RAF
scores, as the agency has intervened in litigation under the FCA related to RAF scores. Medicare Advantage plans with which we or
our Medical Groups contract may be selected for review by CMS, OIG, DOJ or another government agency or its contractor, and the
outcome of such actions may result in material adjustments to our revenues. A Medicare Advantage plan may seek repayment fromff us,
our Medical Groups or our ACOs if CMS, the OIG or another government entity makes any payment adjustments to the Medicare
Advantage plan as a result of the audit and assessment of RAFRR scores that were supporu ted by our data or the data of our Medical
Groups.

Moreover, we, our Medical Groups or our ACOs may facff e civil and criminal liabia lity under healthcare fraff ud and abusa e laws, including
the FCA, which can result in significant penalties. Further, Medicare Advantage plans may seek to hold us liabla e forff any penalties they
owe under the FCA or other fraud and abusa e laws as a result of inaccurate or unsupportabla e data provided by us. The DOJ has asserted
FCA claims against, and entered into settlement agreements or corporate integrity agreements including significant civil monetary
penalties with, Medicare Advantage plans and providers related to maintaining internal coding policies and provider education that
allegedly resulted in the submu ission of inappropriate diagnosis codes, the inappropriate capture of historical diagnoses that inflated the
organization’s RAFRR scores and resulted in inflateff d payment rates, submu ission of inaccurate information abouta the health status oft
beneficiaries enrolled in Medicare Advantage plans and faiff lure to remove diagnosis codes that were no longer appla icable or supporu ted
by the chart review.

There can be no assurance that a Medicare Advantage plan in which our Medical Groups participate will not be randomly selected or
targeted for review by CMS or that the outcome of such a review will not result in a material adjustment in our revenue and
profitaff bia lity, even if we believe the information we submitted to the plan is accurate and supportabla e. Further, although we have built
safeguards into our provider education efforts and unreported diagnoses review, there can be no assurance that CMS, the DOJ, the
OIG, or a whistleblower would not allege such action constitutt es a civil FCA violation or that we could successfulff ly defend against
such allegation. Even if we are successfulff , defending against such a claim could cause us to incur significant legal expenses, divert our
management’s attention froff m the operation of our business and result in reputational harm, any of which could adversely affecff t our
business.

Third-par- ty payer contrott ls designi ed to reduce costs att nd othett r payer practices to decrease or review utiliztt atiott n, surgical procedure
volumes or reimbii urserr ment for services rendereddd may ra educe our revenues.

Controls imposed by Medicare, Medicare Advantage, Medicaid, managed Medicaid and private third-party payers designed to reduced
the intensity of services and surgical volumes, in some instances referred to as “utilization review,” have affected and are expected to
increasingly affect our Medical Groups and Privia Providers. Utilization review entails the review of the course of treatment of a
patient by third-party payers, and may involve prior authorization requirements. The Medicare program also issues national or local
coverage determinations that restrict the circumstances under which Medicare pays forff certain services. Cost control effortff s, including
coverage restrictions, have resulted in an increase in reimbursement denials and delays by governmental and commercial payers,
which may increase costs and administrative burden forff the Company, our Medical Groups and Privia Providers and decrease the
reimbursement we and our Medical Groups receive. Efforff ts by payers to impose more stringent cost controls are expected to continue
and may have a material, adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

If the CompanCC y an nd its Medical GroGG ups are unable tll o ett ffee ctivtt ely cll ompete, oe ur busineii ss, financii ial conditioii n, and resultsll of
operations could bll e adverserr ly impacted.

The healthcare industry irr s highly competitive and we expect competition to continue to increase. We and our Medical Groupsu compete
with healthcare service providers, management services organizations, physician enablement entities, and provider networks,
intermediary entities, data consultants, payers, and other companies managing and faciff litating FFS and VBC arrangements through
tools, talent and technology-enabled, nationally-focused business models. Some of our competitors may have greater financial,
technical, political, and marketing resources, name recognition, broader or more effective service offeriff ngs, or a larger number of
patients, customers, or payers than we do. In addition, some of our competitors have been in business longer than we have or and may
have more mature or effeff ctive tools, strategies and procedures. Generally, other medical groups and healthcare providers in the
markets our Medical Groups serve provide services similar to those our Medical Groups offer,ff but some competing providers may be
more establa ished, have higher caliber facilities and equipment, be located in areas that are easier to access, and offer better access and
a broader array of specialties and services. These competitive advantages may limit the abia lity of the Company and its Medical Groups
to attract and retain skilled talent, patients, and providers in local markets and to expand into new markets. In addition, we and our
Medical Groups may facff e competition froff m new entrants into our markets. Competition for paff tients and providers may adversely
affeff ct contract negotiations and performance as well as patient volumes and other aspects of our business.

Trends toward performance data and price transparency may impact the competitive position and patient volumes of the Company and
its Medical Groups. CMS websites make publicly availabla e certain data on ACOs and on clinicians, medical groups, and various other
types of Medicare-enrolled providers, including QPP performance information. If Privia Providers, our Medical Groups, or ACOs
achieve poor results (or results that are lower than competitors’ results) on performance metrics, our competitive position could be
negatively affected, and we may attract fewer patients or providers. In addition, HHS requires health insurers to publish online charges
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negotiated with providers for healthcare services, and health insurers must provide online price comparison tools to help individuals
get personalized cost estimates forff covered items and services. The No Surprises Act also requires providers to send uninsured or self-
pay patients (in advance of the date of the scheduld ed item or service or upon request) and health plans (prior to the scheduled date of
the item or service) of insured patients a good faith estimate of the expected charges and diagnostic codes. Until additional regulations
are issued, HHS is deferring enforcement of certain No Surprises Act requirements related to good faith estimates, including the
requirement that estimates provided to uninsured or self-pff ay patients include expected charges forff co-providers or co-facilities. It is
not entirely clear how price transparency requirements will affect consumer behavior, relationships between payers and providers, or
the abia lity of providers to set and negotiate prices, but our competitive position and the competitive position of our Medical Groups
could be negatively affected if prices are higher or perceived to be higher than those of our competitors.

Industry crr onsolidation may also negatively impact the competitive position of the Company and its Medical Groups. Other healthcare
industry prr articipants, including payers, are increasingly facff ilitating VBC arrangements and implementing physician alignment
strategies, such as employing physicians, acquiring physician practice groups, participating in ACOs or other clinical integration
models. We and our Medical Groups compete for payeff r relationships with other physician practices and intermediary err ntities such as
non-Privia ACOs, independent physician associations and physician hospital organizations. There is increasing consolidation in the
third-party payer industry,rr including the vertical integration of health insurers with providers, and increasing efforts by payers to
influence or direct a patient’s choice of provider by the use of narrow networks or other strategies. Some payers have developed their
own managed services tools, which they may offeff r to large numbers of physicians. Insurers may have increased negotiating leverage
and other competitive advantages, such as greater access to performance and pricing data, as a result of consolidation within the
industry.rr Consolidation within third-party payer industry mrr ay negatively affect the abia lity of the Company and its Medical Groupsu to
negotiate prices and favff orable terms with health insurers, as well as our ability to successfulff ly market our services to providers. Other
healthcare industry prr articipants, such as large employer groups and their affiff liates, may intensify competitive pressure and affect
market dynamics in ways that are difficult to predict.

If competitors are better abla e to attract patients or providers, make capital expenditures, maintain or upgrade faciff lities and equipment,
recruirr t or align with physicians, expand services, innovate, obtain and perform in favorable third-party payer contracts, including VBC
arrangements, we and our Medical Groups may experience a decline in patient and provider volumes. If we are unable to successfulff ly
compete, our business, financial condition, and results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

If we do not continue to innovate and evolve our service offo erff ings in a way that is usefulff to our MedMM icdd al Groups, Ps riPP via PhyPP sicians
and thett ir patiett nts,tt our health systemtt or hospital partners,rr and thitt rdii -pdd arty payers,rr we may na ot remain competitivtt e, fail to meet our
growth expexx ctattt iott ns, as nd our revenue and resultsll of operations could sll uffeff r.

We believe that the market for heff althcare in the United States is in the midst of structurt al change, with an increased emphasis on VBC
models, technological solutions and a customer-centered focff us. Our success depends on our ability to keep pace with technological
developments, satisfy increasingly sophisticated physician, payer and patient requirements, and the market continuing to evolve
towards a VBC model. Our futurff e finff ancial performance will depend in part on growth in the healthcare market and on our ability to
adapt to emerging demands of the market, including adapting to the ways our Medical Groups, Privia Physicians and their patients,
our health system and hospital partners, and third-party payers interact with our technology-enabled platforff m, the Privia Technology
Solution and our operating model. Our competitors are constantly developing products and services that may be more efficient or
appealing to Medical Groups, Privia Providers and their patients, our health system or hospital partners or third-party payers. To
compete, we must continue to invest significant resources in research and development in order to enhance our existing service
offeriff ngs and introduce new high-quality services and appla ications that such customers will want, while offeriff ng and operating the
Privia Technology Solution at competitive prices. If we faiff l to accurately predict customer preferences related to funcff tionality, or
industry crr hanges needed to service our customers including providers, beneficiaff ries, and payers, or if we are unable to modify our
service offerings on a timely or cost-effective basis, we may lose Medical Groups, Privia Providers, patients, health system or hospital
partners, ACO participants and payer relationships. Our results of operations could also suffeff r if our innovations do not producd e the
desired results including related to contract performance, are not appropriately responsive to the needs of our multiple stakeholders,
are not appropriately timed with market opportunity, or are not effeff ctively brought to market, including as the result of delayed
releases or releases that are ineffectff ive or have errors or defects. As technology continues to develop, our competitors may be abla e to
offeff r results that are, or that are perceived to be, subsu tantially similar to, or better than, those generated by the Privia Technology
Solution, or the Privia operating model. We may be required to compete on additional service attributes and to expend significant
resources in order to remain competitive. If we are unable to successfulff ly compete, our business, financial condition, and results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

Our salesll and implemeii ntattt iott n cyclc e cll an be long and unpredictabltt e all nd requires considerdd able tll imett and expeee nse, which may cause
our resultsll of operations to fluctuate.tt

The sales cycle for physff icians to become affiff liated with our Medical Groups from initial contact with a potential lead to contract
execution, varies widely and is unpredictabla e. Further, once a physician has executed the agreements associated with one of our
Medical Groups, there is a long period of implementation where the physician and his or her staff aff re trained on our EMR, platform
and workfloff ws and credentialed or enrolled in payer arrangements, as applicable. During such implementation period, we are incurring
costs associated with the implementation without any corresponding revenue. Our sales efforts involve educd ating potential Privia
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Providers about our model, market offeriff ngs, the health care industry arr nd the physician practice’s expected return on investment from
becoming affiliaff ted with the Medical Group. It is possible that in the future we may experience even longer sales cycles, especially
with respect to moving into new geographic markets and as markets become more mature and concentrated, which could result in
more upfroff nt sales costs and less predictability in closing our Privia Physician sales. If our sales cycle lengthens or our subsu tantial
upfroff nt sales and implementation investments do not result in sufficient sales to justify off ur investments, it could have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

As we expect to grow rapidly, oura clinician recruir tment costs could outpace our build-up ou f recurring revenue, and we may be unable
to reduce our total operating costs through economies of scale such that we are unable to achieve profitaff bia lity. Any increased or
unexpected costs or unanticipated delays in taking a Privia Physician live on our technology-enabled platforff m, including delays caused
by factors outside our control, could negatively impact our reputation and/or our relationships with Privia Providers and cause our
operating results and growth targets to suffer and negatively affeff ct our revenue and profits.

Our abilityii to effiff ciently price thett Privia Technologyo Solution and our PriPP via opeo rating mn odel could affeff ct our resultsll of operations
and our ability toii attrtt act or retaitt n Mii edMM icdd al Groups, Ps riPP via PhyPP sicians, healthll systemtt or hospital partners,rr ACO participanii ts and
payers.rr

The management and administrative feesff we charge our Medical Groups are generally set as a percentage of the Non-Owned Medical
Group’s FFS collections provided such an arrangement is allowed under state fee splitting laws. Certain states restrict percentage
management fees and, thereforff e, certain markets are structurt ed as a fixff ed annual amount. Generally, if Privia offerff s additional,
optional services, Privia Physicians enter into a separate agreement to purchase such services. We determine these prices based on
factors such as prior experience, the costs inputs associated with the services, market competition and feedbad ck from our Medical
Groups, Privia Physicians, health system or hospital partners and ACO participants, our assessments may not be accurate and we could
be underpricing or overprr icing the Privia Technology Solution and our operating model. Additionally, feesff must generally be fair
market value under fedff eral and state fraud and abusa e laws such as the federal Anti-Kickbakk ck Statutt e and the Stark Law. From time to
time, we may choose to, or be required to, adjud st our pricing, particularly as our applications and service offeriff ngs evolve. Changes to
our pricing model or our inability to effiff ciently price our services could harm our business, results of operations, and financial
condition and impact our ability to predict our future performance.

Our perfor rmance depends odd n our ability toii contratt ct withii Medical GroGG ups, Privia Providerdd s,rr healthll systemtt partners,rr ACO
participants and thitt rdii -pdd arty payers.rr

Our business and operating model depend on our relationships with Medical Groups, Privia Providers, health system partners, ACO
participants and payers. We typically enter into multiyear contracts with our Medical Groups, Privia Providers, health system partners,
ACO participants and payer customers. We expect to derive a significant portion of our revenue from renewal of existing contracts,
including through the expansion of our service offerings, including existing and new offerings, such as ancillary services, additional
medical and medical supporu t services like our virtuat l visits platforff m and clinical research program. Achieving high retention rates and
selling additional appla ications and services are critical to our future business, revenue growth and results of operations.

Factors that may affeff ct our ability to enter into new contracts, execute our sales strategy and achieve our expected retention rates
include, but are not limited to, the folff lowing:

• the price, performance, functionality and security of the Privia Technology Solution;

• Privia Physician and Medical Group adoption of new services;

• our ability to adapt to emerging demands, including adapting to the ways in which providers, patients, payers and other third
parties interact with the Privia Technology Solution and our operating model;

• our ability to innovate, develop complementary srr olutions and evolve our service offerings in a way that is usefulff to providers,
patients and payers;

• our ability to invest in research and development and obtain reasonable returns ont such investments;

• the availabia lity, price and performance of competing solutions; and

• industry crr onsolidation.

If contracts are negotiated with lower feeff levels or other less favff orable terms, if we determine it is necessary to adjud st our pricing
model, if customers faiff l to purchase or utilize additional products and services we offer,ff or if contracts are not renewed, our revenues
may decline and future growth may be constrained. If a Medical Group or Privia Provider terminates their relationship with us after
implementation has begun, we would lose the resources invested in that relationship and the opportunity to leverage those resources to
build relationships with other Privia Providers over the same period of time. If a health system partner that is the majoa rity owner of a
Non-Owned Medical Group terminates our partnership or affiliatioff n, we may not be able to identify an aff lternative partner to
implement the operating model or restrucr ture in a way to retain a suffiff cient number of Privia Physicians, which may restrict our ability
to continue operations in that market. Even if we identify aff n alternative partner or are otherwise able to continue operations, we may
be subju ect to contractuat l prohibitions that could adversely affect our ability to operate, such as limitations on our ability to retain Privia
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Providers in the market. If we are not able to establa ish, retain or maintain on favorable terms any of these contractuat l relationships, our
business, operations and finff ancial condition may be adversely impacted.

The success of oo ur busineii ss depends odd n thett execution of oo ur growth strategye , wyy hich may na ot prove viable all nd we may na ot realizell
expexx cted results.

Our business strategy is to grow rapidly by increasing Privia Physicians in existing markets and acquiring new Medical Groups, ACOs
Independent Physician Associations and Clinically Integrated Networks in new geographical markets. New market growth is
significantly dependent on partnering with anchor medical practices or health systems or hospitals in such new geographic markets.
Likewise, our growth strategy is dependent on growing same-store sales for our Medical Groups by offeriff ng new revenue enhancing
services, such as our virtuat l visit platform, assisting our Medical Groups in recruir ting new clinicians, and partnering or contracting
with commercial payers to enter new VBC arrangements on behalf of our Medical Groups. We seek growth opportunities both
organically and through alliances with other parties in the healthcare industry.rr

Our growth strategy involves a number of risks and uncertainties, including that:

• we and our Medical Groups may not be able to contract with payers on terms favff orable to us or at all;

• we and our Medical Groups face competition forff payer contracts and this competition may intensify,ff including as a result of
ongoing consolidation in the healthcare industry;rr

• we may not be able to recruirr t or retain a sufficient number of new Medical Groups, and we and our Medical Groupsu may not
be able to recruir t or retain a sufficient number of Privia Physicians or patients, to execute our growth strategy, or to fully
implement our operating model in new markets, and we may incur substantial recruir ting and marketing costs;

• we may fail to integrate new Privia Providers or their support staff into our operating model;

• when expanding our business into new markets, compliance with additional laws and regulations may slow our expected
growth or limit our potential market of availabla e physicians or the services and solutions we may offer; and

• we may fail to realize expected synergies, financial, strategic or other benefits from same-store sales or expansion into new
markets or facff e challenges successfulff ly integrating new Medical Groups or Privia Providers into our operating model and the
Privia Technology Solution.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to successfulff ly capitalize on growth opportunities and otherwise execute our growth
strategy, which may negatively impact our business model, revenues, results of operations and finff ancial condition.

If we fail to manage oua r growth ett ffee ctivtt ely, we may be ua nable tll o ett xeee cute our business plan, maintain highi levels oll f so takeholderdd
service and patiett nt satisfas ctiott n, or adequateltt y all ddress competitive challenges.

We have experienced, and may continue to experience, rapia d growth and organizational change, which has placed, and may continue
to place, significant demands on our management and our operational and financial resources. We may also seek growth opportunities
through strategic acquisitions and partnerships. Additionally, our organizational strucr ture may become more complex as we improve
our operational, financial and management controls, as well as our reporting systems and procedurd es. We may require significant
capital expenditures and the allocation of valuable management resources to grow and change in these areas. We must effectively
increase our headcount and continue to effeff ctively train, manage and retain our employees. We will be unable to manage our business
effeff ctively if we are unable to alleviate the strain on resources caused by growth in a timely and successfulff manner. If we fail to
effeff ctively manage our anticipated growth, the quality of our services may suffer,ff which could negatively affect our brand and
reputation and harm our ability to attract and retain Medical Groups, Privia Providers, patients and employees. If we faiff l to evaluate
and execute new business opportunities properly, we may not achieve anticipated benefits and may incur increased costs.

In addition, as we expand our business, it is important that we continue to maintain a high level of stakeholder service and satisfaction.
As our Privia Physician base continues to grow, we will need to expand our population health, patient services and other personnel,
either through employment or contractuat l arrangements to provide personalized stakeholder service. If our Medical Groupsu are not
able to continue to provide high quality cost effeff ctive healthcare services with high levels of patient satisfaction, our reputation, as
well as our business, results of operations and finff ancial condition could be adversely affected, including a faiff lure to realize the benefits
of any VBC arrangements.

If the estimatett s and assumptions we use to determine thett size of our total addrtt essable mll arket, or TAM, are inaii ccurate, oe ur future
growth rate may be ia mpii acted and our business could be harmed.

Market estimates and growth forecasts are subject to significant uncertainty and are based on assumptions and estimates that may not
prove to be accurate. The estimates and forecasts in this report relating to the size and expected growth of the TAM for availablea
physicians with which our Medical Groups can affiff liate may prove to be inaccurate. Even if the markets in which we compete meet
our size estimates and forecasted growth, our business could faiff l to grow at similar rates, if at all.

The principal assumptions relating to our determination of the TAM includes determining the total number of physicians in the
geographic market reducd ed by hospital employed physicians and other Privia Physicians in the market that are unlikely to change their
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existing relationships. This calculation may not take into account physicians who are not currently availabla e because of an exclusive
arrangement with an intermediary entity or because the physician is locked out of moving while awaiting payment pursuant to a VBC
arrangement. We also evaluate the variation in physician reimbursement by commercial payers in each market to determine if there is
a suffiff ciently large TAM to allow us to affiliate with a suffiff ciently large number of physicians. We also evaluate the variation in
physician reimbursement by commercial payers in each market to determine if there is sufficient economic opportunity to allow
physicians to embrace our Privia operating model. Our TAM is also based on the assumption that the strategic approaa ch that our
solution enables for potential Privia Physicians will be more attractive to our availabla e physicians than many competing opportunities.
If these assumptions prove inaccurate, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

If certain of our vendors drr o ndd ot meet our needs, is f ti hett re are matertt ial price increases or reductions in reimburserr ment rates on
vendor services and products,tt if they expexx rience service disdd ruptu iott ns as a result oll f fo acff tors outside odd f oo ur contrott l, or if we are unable
to effeff ctivtt ely all ccess new or replacee ement services or products,tt our business, ability toii operate, fe inff ancial conditidd on, cash floff ws,
results of operations, as nd relationships with our MedMM icdd al Groups, Ps riPP via ProPP viders and thett ir patiett nts ctt ould be negate ivtt ely ill mpii acted.

The abia lity of the Company and its Medical Groups to offeff r services and solutions and to maintain business operations is dependent on
maintaining relationships with third-party vendors and entering into new relationships to meet changing business needs. Any
deterioration in vendor relationships or failure to enter into agreements with vendors in the future could harm our business and our
ability to pursue our growth strategy. If any third-party vendors of the Company or its Medical Groups are unable or unwilling
(including as a result of a product recall, shortage or dispute) to provide the services necessary to supporu t our business, if our vendors
do not meet our needs forff the services or products they supplu y (including as a result of vendors updau ting or replacing services and
products), if we experience material price increases from vendors or reducd tions in reimbursement rates that we are unable to mitigate,
if we are not able to access new or replacement services on a cost-effeff ctive basis or at all, or if vendors are unable to scale as fast as
our operations grow or provide services required to meet the changing needs of our business, it could have a material adverse effectff on
our operations. We and our Medical Groups may incur subsu tantial costs, delays and disruptr ions to our business in transitioning such
services to internal platforms or other third-party vendors. Any of the foregoing could materially harm our competitive position,
business, results of operations, finff ancial condition and cash flows. We and our Medical Groups have vendors that may be the sole or
primary source of certain services, products or technology critical to the services either we, our Medical Groups or Privia Providers
furnish, which augments the aforementioned risks with respect to these vendors.

For example, we are dependent on our EMR vendor, athenahealth, Inc., with which the Privia Technology Solution is integrated, and
which is utilized by most of our Medical Groups. Our business could be adversely affected if that relationship were disruptu ed. The
Privia Technology Solution is not currently usable with other EMRs, and moving Privia Providers to another EMR provider would
require considerable effortff , time and expense. In addition, our dependency and the dependency of most of our Medical Groups onu
athenahealth, Inc., heightens risks related to service disruprr tions or potential cybersecurity incidents experienced by, cessation of
operations of, off r price increases by this vendor. Furthermore, changes to the athenahealth, Inc. platforff m could require us, our Medical
Groups or Privia Providers to make finff ancial or operational investments or changes to respond to such changes to the platform. A
material change in our relationship with athenahealth, Inc., whether resulting froff m a dispute, a change in government regulation, other
factor or the loss of this relationship, could impair our ability to provide services to Privia Providers and could have a material adverse
effeff ct our business, financial condition and results of operations. Additionally, service certain of the Company’s service providers,
including technology or AI-related service providers, may experience service disruptu ions from a variety of factff ors outside of the
Company’s control ranging from severe or extreme weather to cybersecurity incidents and geopolitical conflict,ff and our operations
could be negatively impacted by any disruptu ion or vulnerabia lities in the services they provide resulting froff m such facff tors outside our
control.

If we are not able tll o mtt aintii aitt n aii nd enhance our repuee tation and brand recogno ition, includindd g thrtt ough the maintii entt ance and
protecttt iott n of to ratt demarks, our business and results ott f oo peo rations willii be harmed.

We believe that maintaining and enhancing our reputation and brand recognition is critical to our relationships with Medical Groups,
Privia Providers, patients, ACO participants, and payers, and to our ability to attract new Medical Groups, Privia Physicians and
patients. The promotion of our brand may require us to make subsu tantial investments and we anticipate that, as our market becomes
increasingly competitive, these marketing initiatives may become increasingly diffiff cult and expensive. Our marketing activities may
not be successful or yiff eld increased revenue, and to the extent that these activities yield increased revenue, the increased revenue may
not offsff et the expenses we incur and our results of operations could be harmed. In addition, any factff or that diminishes our reputation
or that of our management, including failing to meet the expectations of our Medical Groups, Privia Physicians, ACO participants,
health system or hospital partners, patients, or payers, or any adverse publicity or litigation involving or surrounding us, one of our
Medical Groups, or our management, could make it substantially more difficult for us to attract new Privia Physicians, New Medical
Group, or retain existing Privia Providers and Medical Groups. Similarly, because our existing Medical Groups ofteff n act as references
for us with prospective Privia Physicians or new Medical Groups, any reputational concerns could impair our ability to secure
additional new Privia Physicians and Medical Groupsu . In addition, negative publicity resulting froff m any adverse government
investigation or payer audit could injure our reputation. If we do not successfulff ly maintain and enhance our reputation and brand
recognition, our business may not grow and we could lose our relationships with Privia Physicians, Medical Groupsu , ACO
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participants, health system or hospital partners, patients, or payers, which could harm our business, results of operations and finff ancial
condition.

The registered or unregistered trademarks or trade names that we own or license may be challenged, infringed, circumvented, declared
generic, lapsa ed or determined to be infringing on or dilutive of other marks. We may not be able to protect our rights in these
trademarks and trade names, which we need in order to build name recognition with patients, payers and other third parties. In
addition, third parties may in the futurff e fileff for registration of trademarks similar or identical to our trademarks. If they succeed in
registering or developing common law rights in such trademarks, and if we are not successfulff in challenging such third-party rights,
we may not be able to use these trademarks to commercialize our technologies in certain relevant jurisdictions. If we are unable to
establa ish name recognition based on our trademarks and trade names, we may not be able to compete effectively and our brand
recognition, reputation and results of operations may be adversely affected.

The opeo rations of the CompanCC y an nd its Medical GroGG ups are concentratedtt in the fouff rteentt stattt estt and thett Distriii ct of Columbia in
which we opeo rate, we hich makes us sensitivii e to rtt egulatorll y,r economic, pc ublic healthll , environmentaltt , cll ompem titivtt e and othertt
conditiodd ns and changes in these jurisdictiott ns, as nd we may na ot be able tll o stt uccessfulff lyll establisll h a presence in new geographo ic
markets.tt

A substantial portion of our revenue is driven by our Medical Groups in the fourff teen states and the District of Columbia, in which we
operate. As a result, our exposure to many of the risks described herein are not mitigated by a diversification of geographic focusff .
Furthermore, this concentration of the operations of the Company and its Medical Groups makes our business particularly sensitive to
regulatory, economic, environmental (including natural disasters), competitive and other conditions and changes in these jurisdictions.
Any material change in payment programs or regulatory,rr economic, public health, environmental or competitive conditions in these
states or the District of Columbia could have a disproportionate effeff ct on our operating results and finff ancial condition, and could
disruptr the operations of our Medical Groups and Privia Providers.

The risks of geographic concentration could decrease as we expand the operations of the Company and its Medical Groupsu to other
regions of the United States, but expansion is resource-intensive and we may encounter significant barriers to entry in new markets.

We anticipate that furff ther geographic expansion may require us to make a substantial investment of management time, capital and/or
other resources. There can be no assurance that we will be abla e to continue to successfulff ly expand our operations in any new
geographic markets.

Changes in tii rett atmett nt methodologidd es, ts rett nds rdd elatll edtt to the usage of pra imary care and spes cialisll t healthcare services, as nd othertt
factortt s orr utsitt de our control that impact demdd and forff medical services may ra educe our revenues.

Patient volumes and case-mix trends related to the usage of primary care and specialist healthcare services may be impacted by factors
beyond the control of the Company and its Medical Groups, such as changes in volume of certain high acuity services, variations in
the prevalence and severity of outbrt eaks of influff enza, COVID-19 and other illnesses, seasonal and severe weather conditions, changes
in treatment regimens and medical technology and other advances. Further, trends in physician treatment protocols and health plan
design, such as health plans that shift increased costs and accountability for care to patients, could reducd e the volume of certain
procedurd es and treatments rendered by Privia Providers in favor of lower intensity and lower cost treatment methodologies or result in
patients seeking care froff m other providers or failing to obtain appropra iate, medically necessary care. These and other factff ors beyond
the control of the Company and its Medical Groups may reducd e the demand for services we offeff r and decrease the reimbursement that
we receive, which could have a material, adverse effect on our business, financial position, and results of operations.

The faiff luii re to obtain mii edicdd al supplu iell s and drugs fgg orff Medical GroGG ups at favorff able pll rices or in suffiu cient volumes could cll ause our
results of operations to declinll e.

Costs of medical supplu ies and drugsr may continue to increase due to market pressure from pharmaceutical companies and vendors,
new product releases, product shortages and other facff tors including import/export restrictions, such as new, expanded or retaliatory
tariffs, sanctions, quotas or trade barriers (including recent U.S. tariffs imposed or threatened to be imposed on China, Canada and
Mexico and other countries and any retaliatory actions taken by such countries). If our we or our Medical Groups are unable to obtain
sufficient supplies or are unable to access new or replacement products, it could negatively impact the abia lity of our Medical Groupsu to
provide services to patients. Higher costs and insuffiff cient supplies could adversely affect our business, results of operations, finff ancial
condition, and cash floff ws.

Technology, Cybersecurity and Privacy Risks

Security thii reats,tt cyberserr curity inii cidents or ott ther forms of do atdd a btt reaches, catastropho ic events and other disruii ptu iott ns to our, our
Medical GroGG ups’, o’ ur busineii ss partners’rr or our vendors’rr infon rmatiott n techtt nology ano d relatll edtt systemtt s could compromise sensitiveii
infon rmatiott n relatll edtt to our business, the MedMM icdd al Groups or patiett nts,tt prevent access to ctt riticii al infon rmatiott n, harm patiett nts, rett quire
remediatiott n and othett r correctivtt e actiott n, which can be expexx nsive, and exposee e us to ltt iall bilityii , wyy hich could all dverserr ly affeff ct our
busineii ss, operations and reputattt iott n.

Information technology is a critical component of the day-to-day business operations of the Company and its Medical Groupsu . Our
business is highly dependent on maintaining effective inforff mation systems, in part because VBC arrangements involve extensive data
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processing and analytics, as well as the integrity and timeliness of the data we use to serve our Privia Providers’ patients, supporu t our
Medical Groups and Privia Providers, monitor and manage our ACOs and management services organizations (including satisfactff ion
of reporting obligations) and to otherwise operate our business. We and our Medical Groups, directly and through our vendors and
other third parties, collect and store on networks, devices and third-party technology platforms sensitive information, including
intellectuat l property, proprietary and confidff ential business information, protected health information of patients and personally
identifiabla e inforff mation of our employees and patients. Our Medical Groups use EMRs and medical devices that are integral to the
provision of patient care, and these systems and devices are increasingly connected to the internet and other downstream technology
platforms. We have implemented multiple layers of security measures to protect the confidff entiality, integrity and availabia lity of our
data, networks, systems and devices. Our and the Medical Groups’ systems interface with and rely on third-party provided systems
that we do not directly control, such as the athenahealth EMR and platforms that support the interoperabia lity of the healthcare
infrastructurt e forff treatment, payment and operations. Third-party technology platforms are increasingly important to our business and
continue to grow in complexity and scope. We rely on third-party providers to have appropriate controls (including with respect to
their own downstream third-party vendors) that protect confidff ential information and other sensitive or regulated data that is on their
systems or otherwise in their control. Our contracts with such third-party providers typically include terms holding them to our
security standards.

We, our Medical Groupsu and our vendors have been and continue to be the target of attempted cybersecurity and other threats that
could have a security impact, including effortff s by third parties, including threat actors, to access, misappropriate, corrupt oru
manipulate our information or disrupt our opeu rations. Despite our implementation of security measures, we expect to continue to
experience an increase in cybersecurity threats in the future, as the volume, intensity and sophistication of cyberattacks continue to
increase, particularly within the healthcare industry.rr Threats froff m malicious persons and groups, new vulnerabia lities and advanced
new attacks against our, our Medical Groups’, Privia Providers’ medical practices’, or our vendors’ information systems and devices
create risk of cybersecurity incidents, including ransomware, data exfiltrff ation, malware and phishing incidents as well as social
engineering attacks. As cybersecurity threats continue to evolve, we and our Medical Groups may not anticipate certain techniques
used to obtain unauthorized access to, or to sabota age, information systems, and we may not be able to implement effeff ctive protective
measures. We and our Medical Groups may experience security incidents that remain undetected for an extended period, or, even if
identified, we may be unable to adequately investigate or remediate incidents or breaches due to attackers using tools and techniques
designed to circumvent controls, avoid detection, and remove or obfuscate forff ensic evidence. The rapid evolution and increased
adoption of artificial intelligence technologies may intensify our cybersecurity risks. Moreover, hardware, softwff are or appla ications that
we, our Medical Groups and vendors use may have inherent vulnerabia lities or defects of design, manufactff urt e or operations or could be
inadvertently or intentionally implemented or used in a manner that could compromise information security.

As cyber threats continue to evolve and the volume and sophistication of threats increases, we may be required to expend significant
additional resources to continue to modify or enhance security measures and investigate and remediate any potential vulnerabia lities in
our information technology systems and infrastructurt e. Although to date no cyberattack or other information or security breach has
resulted in material losses or other material consequences to us, there can be no assurance that our controls and procedurd es in place to
monitor and mitigate the risks of cyber threats will be sufficff ient and/or timely. We, our Medical Groups or our vendors could be
subju ect to incidents that bypass security measures, impact the integrity, availabia lity or privacy of PHI or other data subju ect to privacy
laws or disrupt ourrr or their inforff mation systems, devices or business, including the abia lity to provide various healthcare services. In
such an event, we or our Medical Groups may incur subsu tantial costs, including but not limited to, costs associated with remediating
the effects of the cybersecurity incident, costs forff security measures to guard against similar futurff e incidents and costs to recover data.
In addition, the occurrence of cybersecurity incidents or other forms of data breaches or disruptr ions could result in harm to patients;
business interruptu ions and delays; the loss, misappropriation, corruptu ion or unauthorized access of data; litigation and potential
liabia lity under privacy, security, breach notification and consumer protection laws (including penalties imposed under HIPAA),
common law theories or other appla icable laws; reputational damage; and forff eign, federal and state governmental inquiries, any of
which could have a material, adverse effect on our financial position and results of operations and harm our business relationships and
reputation. While we and our Medical Groups have in place insurance coverage designed to address certain aspects of cyber risks,
such insurance coverage may be insuffiff cient to cover all losses or all types of claims that may arise. Further, to the extent there are
successfulff cyberattacks at other healthcare services companies, consumer confidff ence in the integrity and security of personal
information and critical operations data in the healthcare industry grr enerally could be shaken, which could have a material, adverse
effeff ct on our business, financial position or results of operations.

In addition to the risk of cyber threats, information systems may be vulnerabla e to damage froff m a variety of other sources, including
telecommunications or network faiff lures, human acts such as inadvertent or intentional misuse by employees or contractors and natural
disasters. Despite precautionary measures, we, our Medical Groups or our vendors and other third-parties (or their downstream third-
party vendors) that we rely upon may experience system failures and disruptu ions. Although we have disaster recovery systems and
business continuity plans in place, we cannot provide assurance that there will not be disruptr ions in or other faiff lures of our disaster
recovery systems, and we cannot provide assurance that our business continuity plans suffiff ciently protect against extended technology
or service outages of our third-parties. The occurrence of any system failure could result in interruptu ions, delays, the loss or corruption
of data and cessations or interruptu ions in the availabia lity of systems, any of which could have a material, adverse effect on patient care,
our financial position and results of operations and lead to reputational harm.
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If we or our MedMM icdd al Groupsu expexx rience failures or intii ertt ruptu iott n in services we receive through tgg hitt rdii -pdd arty internet infrn astructure,
bandwidth providerdd s,rr EMR aMM nd othett r vendors,rr our business, ability toii operate, fe inff ancial conditiodd n, cash flowll s, results oftt
operations, as nd relationshipsii withii our MedMM icdd al Groups, Ps riPP via ProPP viders and thett ir patiett nts ctt ould be negate ivtt ely ill mpii acted.

The Company and its Medical Groups rely on internal systems as well as third-party supplu iers, including network and infrastructure
equipment providers, to maintain our platform and related services. Failure to adequately manage updates or enhancements to such
platforms or interfaces between platforff ms or implementation of new technology could place us at a competitive disadvantage, disruptrr
operations and have a material, adverse impact on our business and results of operations. Further, our ability to maintain our
technology-enabled platforff m, including our virtuat l health services, is dependent on the development and maintenance of the
infrastructurt e of the internet (including a reliabla e network connection with the necessary speed, data capacity and security for
providing reliabla e internet access and services), reliabla e telephone and facsff imile services and other services furnished by third parties.
Although we maintain redundancy with respect to the critical components of our platform, we do not currently maintain redundant
systems or faciff lities forff some of the services on which we depend. The Privia Technology Solution is designed to operate without
perceptible interruptr ion in accordance with our service level commitments.

We have, however, experienced limited interruptu ions in these systems in the past, including temporary srr lowdowns in the performance
of our EMR and platform, and we may experience similar or more significant interruptu ions in the futurff e.

Interruptu ions in third-party systems or services, or our own systems or our Medical Groups’ systems, whether due to system failures,
cyber incidents, physical or electronic break-ins or other events, could affect the security or availabia lity of our platform or services and
Medical Group services, including EMR access, patient scheduling, patient and Privia Physician portals; prevent or limit access to the
Privia Technology Solution or other services by Privia Physicians and their patients; result in noncompliance with privacy laws and
regulations; result in the loss of proprietary or personal inforff mation; hurt our relationships with Medical Groups, Privia Physicians,
patients, payers, and other network participants; and expose us and our Medical Groups to third-party liabia lities. In the event of a
catastrophic event with respect to one or more of these systems or facilities, we and our Medical Groups may experience an extended
period of system unavailabia lity, which could result in substantial remediation costs and harm our business relationships and our
business. Any interruptu ion or delay in third-party systems and services could harm our competitive position, business, financial
condition, results of operations and prospects.

We and our Medical Groups take steps to monitor the performance of third-party vendors, including in our agreements with such
parties, but our oversight controls could prove inadequate. Since we do not fully control the actions of vendors and other third parties,
including our Medical Groups and Privia Providers, we are subju ect to the risk that their decisions or operations could adversely impact
us and our Medical Groups, and replacing such third-party vendors could create significant delay and expense. If these third-party
vendors faiff l to satisfy their obligations to us or our Medical Groups, timely comply with legal or regulatory rrr equirements, or deliver
high-quality services, the operations and reputation of the Company and its Medical Groups could be compromised, we may not
realize the anticipated economic and other benefits from these arrangements, and we could suffeff r adverse legal, regulatory arr nd
financial consequences. In addition, these third parties facff e their own technology, operating, business and economic risks, and any
significant faiff lures by them, including the improper use or disclosure of confidff ential Company or Medical Group information or
failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations, or any failure by them to effeff ctively oversee, monitor or protect against their
own downstream third-party vendors’ risks (so-called “fourth-party risk”), could result in reputational harm or otherwise expose the
Company and its Medical Groups to liabia lity.

For additional risks related to our third-party vendors, see “If“ certain of our vendors drr o ndd ot meet our needs,dd if there are material price
increases or reducdd tions in reimburserr ment rates on vendor services and products, if ti hett y ee xperee ience service disruii ptu ions as a result of
factors orr utsitt de of our controt l, or if we are unable to effe ecff tively access new or replace ement services or products, our business, ability
to operate, finff ancial condition, cash flows, results of operations, and relationships with our Medical Groups, Privia Providers and
their patients ctt ould bl e negatively ill mpacted.”

If we cannot timely imtt plm emll ent thett Privia Technologyo Solution for PriPP via PhyPP sicians and new MedMM icdd al Groups, os r promptly resolve
Privia Providerdd and patiett nt concerns, os r if ti hett Privia Technologyo Solution faiff ls toii operate as we expexx ct, ott ur busineii ss and resultsll of
operations may be aa dverserr ly impacted, we could bll e subjeb ct to litigatiott n, and our repuee tation may be harmed.

The Privia Technology Solution, our end-to-end, cloud-based technology-enabled platforff m, provides patients with the ability to
schedule services with our Privia Physicians and communicate and interact with providers, and it allows our Privia Providers to
streamline patient charting and identify gff aps in care and conduct virtual visits (via video, phone or the internet), among other
functions. The seamless onboarding of Privia Physicians onto the Privia Technology Solution, including training on conversion to and
the use of our EMR and the credentialing of Privia Physicians and other providers with applicable federal health care programs and
commercial payers is essential to a timely transition to our technology-enabled platforff m. As of December 31, 2024, practices on the
Privia Platform were converted from appra oximately 50 different EMR vendors. If we face unanticipated implementation diffiff culties or
Medical Groups, Privia Physicians or support staff are unable or unwilling to smoothly transition to the Privia Technology Solution,
we risk delaying the go live date of our new Medical Groups. Delays could cause us to incur significant costs and negatively impact
our revenue, and Privia Providers could become dissatisfied, which could negatively impact our reputation, our relationships with
Privia Providers, our ability to attract and retain new providers or our ability to negotiate and perform in payer contracts.
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We also face risks related to the operation of our Privia Technology Solution. Proprietary software development is time-consuming,
expensive and complex, and may involve unforeseen difficff ulties. We may encounter technical obstacles, and it is possible that we may
discover additional problems that prevent our proprietary software from operating properly. We are currently implementing softwff are
for a number of new applications and services. If our solutions do not function reliabla y or faiff l to satisfy user expectations, we may lose
or fail to grow our Medical Groups, Privia Provider relationships and patient volumes, we or our Medical Groups could facff e liabia lity
claims, and our Medical Groups, affiff liate providers, health system partners, and ACO participants may attempt to terminate their
relationships with us. This could damage our reputation and impair our ability to attract or maintain Medical Groups, Privia Providers,
patients and relationships with commercial payers.

Medical Groups, Privia Providers and their patients depend on our call center support services to resolve their operational concerns
including technical issues relating to the Privia Technology Solution and services and patient billing inquiries. It is diffiff cult to predict
demand for call center support services, and if demand increases significantly, we may be unable to provide satisfactory srr upport
services in the short- and long-term to our Privia Physicians and their patients, particularly as we increase the size of our Privia
Physicians and patient bases. We also may be unable to modify the forff mat of our supporu t services to compete with changes in support
services provided by competitors. If we are unable to address our Privia Physicians and their patients’ needs in a timely fashion or
further develop and enhance our supporu t services, or if a Privia Physician or patient is not satisfied with the quality of work performed
by us or with the call center support services rendered, then we could incur additional costs to address the situation or, in certain
markets, be required to issue credits or incur penalties related for such untimely or poor performance. In addition, our profitabia lity may
be impaired and our Privia Physicians and their patients’ dissatisfaction with our supporu t services could damage our ability to retain
Medical Groups, Privia Physicians and their patients. Such Medical Groups or Privia Physicians may not renew their contracts, seek to
terminate their relationship with us or renew on less favff orable terms. Moreover, negative publicity related to our Medical Groupsu and
Privia Physician relationships, regardless of its accuracy, may further damage our business by affecting our reputation or abia lity to
compete for neff w Privia Physicians in the market. If any of these were to occur, our revenue may decline and our business, financial
condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

Our business dependd ds on our ability toii effeff ctivtt ely ill nvii est in,ii implm emenll t impii rovements to and propeo rly mll aintii aitt n oii ur infon rmationtt
technology ano d other busineii ss systemtt s.

Our inforff mation technology strategy and execution are critical to our continued success. We must continue to invest in long-term
solutions that will enable us to anticipate our Medical Groupsu , Privia Providers, ACOs, and commercial payers’ needs and
expectations, enhance both Privia Providers’ and patients’ experience, act as a differeff ntiator in the market and protect against
cybersecurity risks and threats. Our success is dependent, in large part, on maintaining the effectiveness of existing technology
systems and continuing to deliver and enhance technology systems that support our business processes in a cost-efficient and resource-
effiff cient manner. Increasing regulatory arr nd legislative changes may place additional demands on our information technology
infrastructurt e, which could impact availabia lity of resources for other projects tied to our strategic initiatives. In addition, recent trends
toward greater patient engagement in health care require new and enhanced technologies, including more sophisticated applications
for mobile devices. Connectivity among technologies is becoming increasingly important. We must also develop new systems to meet
current market standards and keep pace with continuing changes in information processing technology, evolving industry arr nd
regulatory srr tandards and patient needs. Failure to do so may present compliance challenges and impede our ability to deliver services
in a competitive manner. Further, because system development projeo cts are long-term in nature, they may be more costly than
expected to complete and may not deliver the expected benefits upon completion. Our faiff lure to effeff ctively invest in, implement
improvements to and properly maintain the uninterruptu ed operation and data integrity of our information technology and other
business systems could adversely affect our results of operations, finff ancial position and cash floff w.

If we are unable tll o ott btain,ii maintain and enforff ce intellecll tual property ptt rotectiott n for ouff r techtt nology oro if the scope of ouro
intellectual propeo rty ptt rotectiott n is nii ot suffiu ciently broad, othett rs may be aa ble tll o dtt eveldd op anll d commercialize techtt nologyo substantiallytt
similaii r to ott urs,rr and our abilitii y ttt o stt uccessfulff lyll commercializeii our techtt nologyo may be aa dverserr ly affeff cted.

Our business depends, in part, on internally developed technology and content, including software, databases, confidff ential information
and know-how, the protection of which is crucrr ial to the success of our business. We rely on a combination of trademark, trade-secret,
and copyright laws and confidff entiality procedurd es and contractuat l provisions to protect our intellectuat l property rights in our internally
developed technology and content and our brand. We may, over time, increase our investment in protecting our intellectuat l property
through additional trademark, patent and other intellectuat l property filinff gs that could be expensive and time-consuming to develop and
maintain, both in terms of initial preparation and ongoing registration requirements and the costs of defending our rights. These
measures, however, may not be sufficient to offer us meaningful protff ection. If we are unable to establish or protect our intellectualt
property and other rights, our competitive position and our business could be harmed, as third parties may be able to commercialize
and use technologies and softwff are products that are substantially the same as ours without incurring the development and licensing
costs that we have incurred. Any of our owned or licensed intellectuat l property rights could be challenged, invalidated, circumvented,
infringed or misappropriated, our trade secrets and other confidff ential information could be disclosed in an unauthorized manner to
third parties, or our intellectuat l property rights may not be sufficient to permit us to take advantage of current market trends or
otherwise to provide us with competitive advantages, which could result in costly redesign effortff s, discontinuance of certain offeriff ngs
or other competitive harm.
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Monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectuat l property is diffiff cult and costly. From time to time, we seek to analyze our competitors’
services, and may in the future seek to enforce our rights against potential infriff ngers. However, the steps we have taken to protect our
intellectuat l property rights may not be adequate to prevent infriff ngement, misappropriation or other violations of our intellectualt
property. We may not be able to detect unauthorized use of, or take appropriate steps to enforce, our intellectuat l property rights. Any
inability to meaningfully protect our intellectuat l property rights could result in harm to our ability to compete and reduce demand forff
our technology. Moreover, our failure to develop and properly manage new intellectuat l property could adversely affectff our market
positions and business opportunities. Also, some of our services rely on technologies and softwff are developed by or licensed froff m third
parties, and we may not be able to maintain our relationships with such third parties or enter into similar relationships in the futurff e on
reasonable terms or at all.

Uncertainty may result froff m changes to intellectuat l property legislation and from interprr etations of intellectuat l property laws by
applicable courts and agencies. In addition, advances in AI technology may exacerbar te these risks, including the risk that existing
intellectuat l property laws may not adequately protect against advances in AI technology, which may also give rise to a proliferff ation of
infringement which we may not be able to address effecff tively, and the risk that the use of generative AI tools could result in us
inadvertently disclosing trade secrets or other confidff ential information.

Accordingly, despite our effortff s, we may be unable to obtain and maintain the intellectuat l property rights necessary to provide us with
a competitive advantage. Our faiff lure to obtain, maintain and enforce our intellectuat l property rights could therefore have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Third parties may allell gee that we are infii riff ngii ing, misaii ppropra iating on r otherwiseii violatintt g thett ir intellectual propeo rty rtt ightgg s att nd in
some instantt ces initiate formal legal proce eedindd gs, ts hett outcome of wo hich would bll e uncertain and could have a matertt ial adverserr
effeff ct on our business, financii ial conditioii n and results ott f oo peo rations.

Our commercial success depends on our ability to develop, commercialize and protect our technology-enabled platformff , the Privia
Technology Solution and the Privia operating model, and use our internally developed technology without infringing,
misappropriating or otherwise violating the intellectuat l property or proprietary rights of third parties. Intellectuat l property disputes can
be costly to defend, may divert management’s attention or resources and may cause our business, operating results and finff ancial
condition to suffer.ff As the market for heff althcare in the United States expands and more patents are issued, the risk increases that there
may be patents issued to third parties that relate to our technology of which we are not aware or that we must challenge to continue our
operations as currently contemplated. Whether merited or not, we may face allegations that we, our partners or parties indemnified by
us have infringed, misappra opriated or otherwise violated the patents, trademarks, copyrights or other intellectuat l property rights of
third parties. Such claims may be made by competitors seeking to obtain a competitive advantage or by other parties. Additionally, in
recent years, individuals and groups have begun acquiring intellectuat l property assets for the purpose of making claims of
infringement and attempting to extract settlements froff m companies like ours. We may also face alff legations that our employees have
misappropriated the intellectuat l property or proprietary rights of their former employers or other third parties. It may be necessary for
us to initiate litigation to defenff d ourselves in order to determine the scope, enforceability and validity of third-party intellectualt
property or proprietary rights, or to establa ish or enforff ce our respective rights. We may not be able to successfulff ly settle or otherwise
resolve such adversarial proceedings or litigation. If we are unable to successfulff ly settle future claims on terms acceptabla e to us, we
may be required to defenff d such claims, regardless of their underlying merit, that can be time-consuming, divert management’s
attention and financial resources and can be costly to evaluate and defend. Results of any such litigation are difficult to predict and
may require us to stop commercializing or using our technology, obtain licenses, modify our services and technology while we
develop non-infringing subsu titutes or incur subsu tantial damages, settlement costs or faceff a temporary orr r permanent injunction
prohibiting us froff m marketing or providing the affected services. If we require a third-party license, it may not be availabla e on
reasonable terms or at all, and we may have to pay substantial royalties, upfroff nt fees or grant cross-licenses to intellectuat l property
rights for ourff services. We may also have to redesign our services so they do not infringe, misappropriate or violate third-party
intellectuat l property rights, which may not be possible or may require subsu tantial monetary expenditures and time, durd ing which our
technology may not be availabla e forff commercialization or use. Even if we have an agreement to indemnify uff s against such costs, the
indemnifying paff rty may be unable to upholu d its contractuat l obligations. If we cannot or do not obtain a third-party license to the
infringed technology at all, license the technology on reasonable terms or obtain similar technology from another source, our revenue
and earnings could be adversely impacted.

From time to time, we may be subju ect to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary crr ourse of business with respect to intellectualt
property. We are not currently subju ect to any claims from third parties asserting infriff ngement of their intellectuat l property rights.
Some third parties may be able to sustain the costs of complex litigation more effectively than we can because they have subsu tantially
greater resources. Even if resolved in our favor, litigation or other legal proceedings relating to intellectuat l property claims may cause
us to incur significant expenses, and could divert our technical personnel and management’s attention froff m the operation of our
business. In addition, there could be public announcements of the results of hearings, motions or other interim proceedings or
developments, and if securities analysts or investors perceive these results to be negative, it could have a material adverse effecff t on the
price of our common stock. Moreover, any uncertainties resulting froff m the initiation and continuation of any legal proceedings could
have a material adverse effect on our ability to raise the funds necessary to continue our operations. Assertions by third parties that we
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infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate their intellectuat l property rights could therefore have a material adverse effecff t on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

If we are unable tll o ptt rotect the confin dentialitytt of our tratt de secrets,tt know-how and other proprietary and intii ertt nally dll eveldd opedll
infon rmatiott n, the value of our techtt nologyo could bll e adverserr ly affeff cted.

We may not be able to protect our trade secrets, know-how and other internally developed information adequately. Although we use
reasonable efforff ts to protect this internally developed inforff mation and technology, our employees, consultants, Privia Providers and
other parties (including independent contractors and companies with which we conduct business) may unintentionally or willfulff ly
disclose our information or technology to competitors. Enforff cing a claim that a third-party illegally disclosed or obtained and is using
any of our internally developed inforff mation or technology is difficult, expensive and time-consuming, and the outcome is
unpredictabla e. In addition, courts outside the United States are sometimes less willing to protect trade secrets, know-how and other
proprietary information and the laws regarding such protections vary among jurisdictions. We rely, in part, on non-disclosure,
confidff entiality and assignment-of-iff nvention agreements with our employees, independent contractors, and consultants with which we
conduct business to protect our trade secrets, know-how and other intellectuat l property and internally developed informff ation.
However, we may faiff l to enter into such agreements with all of our employees, independent contractors, consultants, customers and
other companies, and these agreements may not be self-eff xecuting, or they may be breached and we may not have adequate remedies
for such breach. Moreover, third parties may independently develop similar or equivalent proprietary information or otherwise gain
access to our trade secrets, know-how and other internally developed information and the value of our technology could be adversely
impacted.

Any rn estrictions on our use of off r ability to licii ense, de ata, or oudd r faiff luii re to license data att nd integrate e ttt hitt rdii -pdd arty technologio es, cs ould
have a matertt ial adverserr effeff ct on our business, financii ial conditioii n and results of operations.

We depend upon licenses froff m third parties forff some of the technology and data used in the Privia Technology Solution. We expect
that we may need to obtain additional licenses froff m third parties in the future in connection with the development of our services. In
addition, we obtain a portion of the data that we use from government entities, public records and from third parties forff specific
engagement and uses. We believe that we have all rights necessary to use the data that is incorporated into our services. We cannot,
however, assure you that our licenses forff information will allow us to use that information forff all potential or contemplated
applications. In addition, our ability to continue to offeff r integrated healthcare to our patients depends on maintaining our platform,
which is partially populated with data disclosed to us by our partners with their consent. If these partners revoke their consent forff us to
maintain, use, de-identify aff nd share this data, consistent with applicable law, our data assets could be degraded.

In the futurff e, data providers could withdraw their data froff m us or restrict our usage forff any reason, including if there is a competitive
reason to do so, if legislation is passed restricting the use of the data or if judicial interpretations are issued restricting use of the data
that we currently use to support our services. In addition, data providers could faiff l to adhere to our quality control standards in the
future, causing us to incur additional expense to appropra iately utilize the data. If a subsu tantial number of data providers were to
withdraw or restrict their data, or if they fail to adhere to our quality control standards, and if we are unable to identify aff nd contract
with suitabla e alternative data suppliers and integrate these data sources into our service offerings, our ability to provide appropriate
services to our Privia Physicians, Medical Groups, health system or hospital partners, patients, and commercial payer customers could
be materially adversely impacted, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operations.

We also integrate into our internally developed appla ications and use third-party softwff are to support our technology infrastructurt e.
Some of this software is proprietary and some is open source softwff are. These technologies may not be availabla e to us in the future on
commercially reasonable terms or at all and could be diffiff cult to replace once integrated into our own internally developed
applications. Most of these licenses can be renewed only by mutual consent and may be terminated if we breach the terms of the
license and faiff l to cure the breach within a specified period. Our inability to obtain, maintain or comply with any of these licenses
could delay development until equivalent technology can be identified, licensed and integrated, which could harm our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Most of our third-party licenses are non-exclusive and our competitors may obtain the right to use any of the technology covered by
these licenses to compete directly with us. Our use of third-party technologies exposes us to increased risks, including, but not limited
to, risks associated with the integration of new technology into our solutions, the diversion of our resources from development of our
own internally developed technology and our inability to generate revenue from licensed technology sufficient to offset associated
acquisition and maintenance costs. In addition, if our data supplu iers choose to discontinue supporu t of the licensed technology in the
future, we might not be able to modify or adapt our own solutions.

Our use of “open source” softo watt re could all dverserr ly affeff ct our ability toii offeff r our services and subjeb ct us to possibli e lll itll igtt atiott n.

We use open source software in connection with our technology-enabled platforff m, the Privia Technology Solution and our Privia
operating model. Companies that incorporate open source softwff are into their technologies have, froff m time to time, facff ed claims
challenging the use of open source softwff are and/or compliance with open source license terms. As a result, we could be subject to
suits by parties claiming ownership of what we believe to be open source software or claiming noncompliance with open source
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licensing terms. Some open source softwff are licenses require users who use softwff are containing open source software to publicly
disclose all or part of the source code to such software and/or make availabla e any derivative works of the open source code, which
could include valuable proprietary code of the user, on unfavff orable terms or at no cost. While we monitor the use of open source
software and try to ensure that none is used in a manner that would require us to disclose our internally developed source code or that
would otherwise breach the terms of an open source agreement, such use could inadvertently occur, in part because open source
license terms are ofteff n ambiguous. Any requirement to disclose our internally developed source code or pay damages for breach of
contract could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations and could help our
competitors develop services that are similar to or better than ours.

If an author or other third-party that distributes such open source softwff are were to allege that we had not complied with the conditions
of one or more of these licenses, we could be required to incur significant legal expenses defending against such allegations and could
be subju ect to significant damages, enjoined froff m the commercialization of our services that contained the open source software,
engaged in costly redesign effortff s, and required to comply with onerous conditions or restrictions on these services, which could
disruptr the distribution of services. From time to time, there have been claims challenging the ownership rights in open source
software against companies that incorporate it into their producd ts and the licensors of such open source software provide no warranties
or indemnities with respect to such claims. As a result, we could be subject to lawsuits by parties claiming ownership of what we
believe to be open source software. Litigation could be costly for us to defend, have a negative effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations, or require us to devote additional research and development resources to change our services.
Some open source projects have known vulnerabia lities and architecturt al instabilities and are provided on an “as-is” basis, which, if not
properly addressed, could negatively affect the performance of our platform. If we inappropriately use or incorporate open source
software subju ect to certain types of open source licenses that challenge the proprietary nature of our technology-enabled platforff m and
service, we may be required to re-engineer our platform, discontinue the commercialization of our platform or take other remedial
actions, any of which could adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations.

We face risks akk ssociatedtt withii healthll care technologyo initiativtt es, is ncii ludingii those relatll edtt to sharing patiett nt data att nd interopeo rability,ii
as well as our use of certain artifii cial intelligence and machine learning models.

The federalff government is working to promote the adoption of health information technology to improve healthcare, including through
the nationwide health information network exchange. As the health information technologies have become widespread, the focus has
shifted to increasing patient access to health care data and interoperabia lity. The 21st Century Crr ures Act and its implementing
regulations promote inforff mation sharing by prohibiting inforff mation blocking by healthcare providers and certain other entities.
Information blocking is definff ed as engaging in activities likely to interfere with the access, exchange or use of electronic health
information, except as required by law or specified by HHS as a reasonable and necessary activity. In addition, HHS incentivizes the
adoption and meaningful usff e of certified EMR technology through its Promoting Interoperabia lity Programs. In a finff al rule published in
July 2024, MIPS-eligible clinicians (including group practices) that commit information blocking will not be considered meaningful
EMR users during the calendar year for of the performance period in which OIG refers its determination to CMS, resulting in a zero
score in the MIPS Promoting Interoperabia lity category, which would negatively affect reimbursement. Under the same rule, a provider
that is an ACO, ACO participant, or ACO provider or supplier and that commits information blocking may be ineligible to participate
in the MSSP for a period of at least one year.

Our business utilizes, and may invest in the futurff e in, AI, predictive analytics and other AI technologies to add AI-based applications
to our offeriff ng to drive efficiencies in our business, offeff r new applications, upgru ade our solutions and security, and enhance our
capabilities. In addition, certain of our third-party vendors utilize AI in furniff shing products and services to us and our Medical Groups.
These efforts, including the design and introduction of new producd ts and services or changes to existing products and services, may
result in new or enhanced governmental or regulatory srr crutr iny, litigation, ethical concerns, or other complications that could adversely
affeff ct our business, reputation, or financial results. Further, information systems, AI and other predictive analytics are susceptible to
flaws, biases, malfunctions or manipulations, which may disrupt ouru and our Medical Groups’ operations, result in erroneous decision-
making, elevate our and our Medical Groups’ cyber risk profile, or expose us to liabia lity. Current and futurff e initiatives related to health
care technology (including AI and other predictive algorithms), data sharing and interoperabia lity may require changes to the operations
of the Company and its Medical Groups, impose new and complex compliance obligations and require investments in infraff structurt e.
For example, HHS finalized a rulr e in December 2023 imposing transparency requirements forff AI and other predictive algorithms that
are part of certified health information technology. Federal and state legislative and regulatory brr odies, including at the executive level,
continue to signal increased scrutiny and potential rulrr emaking surrounding the creation, adoption, and leveraging of AI- based or AI-
enhanced tools, systems, and funcff tions. The Company and its Medical Groups may be subject to financial penalties or other
disincentives or experience reputational damage forff failure to comply with applicable laws and regulations. Changes to existing
regulations, their interpretation or implementation or new regulations could impede our use of AI and also may increase our estimated
costs in this area. Further, if we are not successfulff in our effortff s to innovate, the performance of our various products, services, and
business, as well as our reputation, could suffeff r or we could incur liabia lity through the violation of laws or contracts to which we are a
party. Any of these factors could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations.

The AI field isff complex and rapidla y evolving, and we faceff significant competition froff m other companies in our industry.rr Our efforts in
developing and deploying AI may not succeed and our competitors may be abla e to deploy the technology faster. We may further be
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exposed to competitive risks related to the adoption and application of new technologies by establa ished market participants or new
entrants, and others, and market acceptance of AI is uncertain. The speed of technological development may prove disruprr tive to some
of our markets if we are unable to maintain the pace of innovation. Further, profesff sionals specializing in development, deployment,
and enterprr ise adoption of AI represent a niche pool of qualified individuals. Other participants in our market may be more effectff ively
equipped in terms of financial position and underlying technological resources to recruir t and/or retain such individuals. To compete
effeff ctively we must also be responsive to technological change, potential regulatory drr evelopments, and public scrutiny.

Our use, de isdd closll ure, and other processingii of personal infii orff matiorr n, includindd g health-relatll edtt infon rmatiott n, is subjeb ct to HIPAII A,
othett r federff al and state privacy ac nd securityii regue lations, as nd contratt ctual obligll atiott ns, as nd our actual or perceived failure to comply
withii those regulatll iott ns or contratt ctual obligll atiott ns could rll esult ill n sii ignigg fii cant liabilityii or repuee tational harm arr nd, idd n tii urn, a matertt ial
adverserr effeff ct on our patiett nt base and revenue.

As discussed above undea r “We conduct business in a heavily regulate ed industry,r which increases our costs att nd could rl estrict thett
conduct of our business, and if the ComCC pany or ourm Medical Groups fail to comply with the extenee sive applicable healthcare laws and
government regulations, which may ca hange from time to time, we could sll uffeff r penalties, be required to make skk ignigg fici ant changes to
our operations, or experee ience reputational harm, any or all of wo hich may aa dverserr ly affeff ct our business”, numerous state and federal
laws and regulations govern the collection, dissemination, use, privacy, confidff entiality, security, availabia lity, integrity, and other
processing of PHI and personal inforff mation, including HIPAA.

HIPAA requires covered entities, like us, our Owned or Non-Owned Medical Groups, and their business associates to develop and
maintain policies and procedurd es with respect to PHI that is used or disclosed, including the adoption of administrative, physical and
technical safeguards to protect such information. Our Medical Groups may be all participants in an “Affiliated Covered Entity” or an
“Organized Health Care Arrangement” under HIPAA, which groups of legally separate covered entities that consider themselves a
single covered entity due to affiff liation, some common control or ownership, or through clinical integration and/or care coordination.
Participation in an affiliated covered entity or an organized health care arrangement allows us to share certain HIPAA compliance
effortff s but also provides forff joint and several liabia lity forff HIPAA violations among all the participants in the Affilff iated Covered
Entity. In addition to our statust as a covered entity, our management services organizations and ACOs may also be “business
associates” to our Medical Groups and ACO participants.

Entities that are found to be in violation of HIPAA as the result of a breach of unsecured PHI, a complaint about pra ivacy practices or
an audit by the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services (“HHS”), may be subju ect to significant civil, criminal and
administrative finff es and penalties and/or additional reporting and oversight obligations if required to enter into a resolution agreement
and corrective action plan with HHS to settle allegations of HIPAA non-compliance. HIPAA also authorizes state attorneys general to
file suit on behalf of their residents. Courts may award damages, costs and attorneys’ fees related to violations of HIPAA in such
cases. While HIPAA does not create a private right of action allowing individuals to sue us in civil court for violff ations of HIPAA, its
standards have been used as the basis for dutd y of care in state civil suits such as those for neglff igence or recklessness in the misuse or
breach of PHI.

HIPAA furff ther has certain patient notification requirements forff breaches or non-permitted use or disclosure of PHI, which include
thresholds for reporting to HHS and local media, and such public reporting may also increase the risk of civil suits related to privacy
incidents.

Numerous other federalff and state laws and regulations protect the confidff entiality, privacy, availabia lity, integrity and security of PHI
and other types of personal inforff mation. These laws and regulations are often uncertain, contradictory, and subject to changed or
differing interpretations, and we expect new laws, rules and regulations regarding privacy, data protection, and information security to
be proposed and enacted in the futurff e, any of which could impact our business. For example, the Californiff a Consumer Privacy Act of
2018, as amended (the “CCPA”) affordff s consumers certain privacy protections and rights, including the right to request that a business
delete their personal inforff mation unless it is necessary for the business to maintain forff certain purposes, to direct a business to correct
errors in their personal inforff mation, and to limit the use and disclosure of sensitive information. They have the right to know if their
personal inforff mation is being sold or shared and the right to opt out of the “sale” or “sharing” of personal information, as those terms
are definff ed under the CCPA. Further, the CCPA provides forff civil penalties for violff ations, as well as a private right of action for daff ta
breaches that may increase data breach litigation. Compliance with the evolving landscape of privacy, data protection and information
security laws and regulations could be time-consuming and expensive and require changes to our current processes and practices, and
any faiff lure by us or our Medical Groups to comply with these and any other comprehensive privacy laws passed at the state or federalff
level may result in regulatory err nforff cement action, civil litigation and reputational harm.

While we have implemented data privacy and security measures in an effortff to comply with applicable laws, regulations, and
contractuat l obligations relating to privacy and data protection, some PHI and other personal information or confidff ential informff ation is
transmitted to us by third parties, who may not implement adequate security and privacy measures. Additionally, we transmit PHI and
other personal inforff mation or confidff ential inforff mation to third parties, which carries the risk of breach despite our security and privacy
measures. Further, any PHI or other personal inforff mation residing with a Privia Physicians’ legacy practice entity pursuant to our
Supporu t Services Agreement with such entity may not be subju ect to adequate security and privacy measures, which may result in a
breach of its Business Associate Agreement, or BAA, with the relevant covered entity. Although a business associate may be
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independently found liabla e forff a breach of the privacy or security requirements of HIPAA, we could also be held liabla e forff such breach
as the covered entity, result in government-imposed fines, orders requiring that we or these third parties change our or their practices,
or criminal charges, any or all of which could adversely affect our business.

Additionally, we publish privacy policies and other documentation regarding our collection, processing, use and disclosure of personal
information. Although we endeavor to comply with our published policies and other documentation, we may at times faiff l to do so or
may be perceived to have failed to do so. Moreover, despite our effortff s, we may not be successfulff in achieving compliance, including
if our employees, contractors, service providers or vendors faiff l to comply with our published policies and documentation. Such
failures can subju ect us to potential local, state and fedff eral action if they are foundff to be deceptive, unfaiff r, or misrepresentative of our
actuat l practices. Claims that we have violated individuals’ privacy rights or faiff led to comply with data protection laws or appla icable
privacy notices, even if we are not found liabla e, could be expensive and time-consuming to defend, result in reputational harm, or have
a material adverse impact on our business and our financial results.

Human Capital Risks

We depend on our senior management teatt m and othett r key employm ees, as nd the losll s of oo ne or more of these employeeso or an
inability toii attrtt act, recruit, moii tivate, de eveldd op anll d retaitt n oii ther highi ly skilled employees coo uld hll arm orr ur busineii ss.

Our success depends largely uponu the continued services of our senior management team and other key employees. Employee
attraction and retention may be difficult due to many factors, including fluctuations in economic and industry crr onditions; employee
expectations; the effeff ctiveness of our talent strategies and benefitff s and well-being programs, including compensation; the effectiveness
of our training programs and our ability to effeff ctively integrate employees into our business and operating model; and fluff ctuat tions in
the labor market, including rising wages and competition forff talent, which has increased due to persistent labora shortages and wage
inflation. In addition, the shift to remote or hybrid work arrangements at many companies, including us, have significantly increased
competition for highly-skilled personnel, who are no longer limited to opportunities within a particular geographic area. A lack of
employee engagement, including as a result of working remotely, may reduce efficiency and productivity; increase turt nover, burnout
and absa enteeism; and otherwise adversely affect our business and impede the achievement of our strategy. We rely on our leadership
team in the areas of operations, provision of medical services, information technology and security, marketing, and general and
administrative funcff tions. From time to time, there may be changes to our management team resulting froff m the hiring or departurt e of
executives or key employees, which could disrupt our busu iness. Our employment agreements with our executive officers and other key
personnel do not require them to continue to work for us forff any specified period and, thereforff e, they could terminate their
employment with us at any time. The loss of one or more of the members of our senior management team, or other key employees,
could harm our business. Changes in our executive management team may also cause disruptrr ions in, and harm to, our business.
Furthermore, our business and results of operations could be adversely affected if we fail to adequately plan for and successfulff ly carry
out the succession of our key executives and senior leaders. For additional information, see “Business - Human Capia tal Resources.”

The opeo rations and growth stt trategtt y ogg f to hett Company an nd its Mtt edMM icdd al Groups depend on our ability toii recruit aii nd retain qualifiedll
talent, itt ncii ludingii physh icians and non-physiyy cian practitiii oners.rr

The operations and growth strategy of the Company and its Medical Groups depend on the efforts, abilities, and experience of Privia
Providers and other medical supporu t personnel. Changes in the healthcare industry’rr s labor market have generally increased labor costs
and competition for quaff lifieff d and experienced individuals. In some markets in which our business operates or may consider operating,
there are shortages of physicians, non-physician clinicians or other medical supporu t personnel. We and our Medical Groups haveu
experienced, and expect to continue to experience, difficulty in hiring and retaining qualified individuals at acceptabla e salary rrr anges.
We may be required to enhance wages and benefitff s to recruir t and retain physicians, non-physician clinicians and medical supporu t
personnel. If the Company and its Medical Groups are unable to recruirr t or retain a sufficient number of qualified personnel at an
acceptabla e cost, we may not be able to fully implement our operating model in existing or new markets or execute our growth strategy.

In particular, the success of our business depends, in part, on the number, specialties, and quality of Privia Physicians, the utilization
practices of these physicians, maintaining good relations with these physicians, and physician expenses, such as salary arr nd medical
malpractice expenses, as well as our ability to recruirr t a sufficient number of Privia Providers from the overall pool of physicians and
non-physician practitioners and state-level restrictions on autonomous practice by non-physician practitioners. Our operating model
and growth strategy rely on aggregating a sufficient number of Privia Physicians in each Medical Group, as the number of Privia
Physicians in a particular market impacts our attributed lives for VBC purposes, our costs and our Medical Groups’ costs, and our
revenues froff m management services. The departurt e of a large number of Privia Physicians or certain of our Affiff liated Practices could
negatively impact our financial performance and abia lity to perform under our VBC arrangements. Further, the loss of any Privia
Physician could result in that physician’s patient population shifting their care preferences to a non-Privia provider, which could
negatively affect our revenues. We may not be able to recruirr t new providers to replace the services of the departing Privia Physician,
and we may not be able to satisfy certain obligations under third-party payer programs. We and our Medical Groupsu may faceff
increased challenges recruiting and retaining quality physicians as the physician population reaches retirement age, particularly if there
are shortages of physicians willing and abla e to provide comparable services. Further, the ability to recruirr t and contract with physicians
is closely regulated. For example, the types, amount and durd ation of compensation and assistance that can be provided when recruirr ting
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physicians is limited by the federal Anti-Kickbak ck Statutt e, the Stark Law, and other applicable laws and regulations intended to
prevent fraff ud and abusa e.

The Company and its Medical Groups continue to face increasing competition recruirr ting and retaining quality physicians and non-
physician clinicians, including from health systems, independent physician practice management companies, and health insurers and
private equity-backed companies seeking to acquire or affiff liate with physicians or physician practices. Healthcare providers and
companies with which we and our Medical Groups compete forff personnel may have greater resources than we have. Our ability to
recruirr t and retain physicians and non-physician clinicians may be negatively impacted if we are unable to provide adequate managerial
supporu t, supporu t personnel, or technologically advanced equipment and facilities. In addition, our ability to compete forff personnel may
be affeff cted by the unenforceabia lity of non-compete restrictions under state and federalff laws and regulations, such as the Federal Trade
Commission’s recently-vacated rule banning non-compete restrictions for workers. If we or our Medical Groups hire individuals
formerly associated with competitors, their former employers may attempt to enforce non-compete provisions and similar restrictions,
resulting in a diversion of our time and resources. Further, forff mer employers may pursue legal claims against us or our Medical
Groups on the basis of interference with contractuat l relationships. Labor costs associated with hiring and retaining qualified personnel
may negatively affectff our results of operations, finff ancial condition, and cash floff ws.

For additional risks related to attracting and retaining highly qualified personnel, see “We depend on our senior management team and
other key emkk ploym ees, and the loss of oo ne or more of these employeeso or an inability to attract, recruit, motivate, develop and retain
other highlgg y sll killed employeo es could hll arm our business.”

Failure to attrtt act and retain talent withinii our growth att nd busineii ss developmll ent teatt ms could ill mpii ede odd ur growth.

We believe that our future growth will depend on the continued development of our growth team and its ability to obtain new Privia
Physicians while our implementation team and practice consultants manage existing affiliate physician relationships. Additionally, we
rely upon our business development staff to identify aff nd develop potential relationships with new Medical Groups and health system
or hospital partners. Identifyingff and recruir ting qualifieff d personnel and training them requires significant time, expense and attention
especially given the complexity of our business and the Privia operating model. It can take six months or longer beforeff a new sales
representative is fulff ly trained and productive. Our business may be adversely affected if our effortff s to expand and train our direct sales
force and business development staff do not generate a corresponding increase in revenue. In particular, if we are unable to hire and
develop suffiff cient numbers of productive direct sales and business development personnel or if new personnel are unable to achieve
desired productivity levels in a reasonable period of time, our expected growth will be impeded.

Our management teatt m has limiteii d expeee rience managia ngii a public company.n

Most members of our management team have limited experience managing a publicly traded company, interacting with public
company investors and complying with the increasingly complex laws pertaining to public companies. Our management team may not
successfulff ly or effiff ciently manage us as a public company that is subject to significant regulatory orr versight and reporting obligations
under the federal securities laws and the continuous scrutiny of securities analysts and investors. These obligations and constituents
require significant attention froff m our senior management and could divert their attention away froff m the day-to-day management of
our business, which could adversely affect our business, results of operations and finff ancial condition.

Our corporate culture has contributedtt to our success, and if wi e cannot maintii aitt n tii hitt s cii ultull re as we grow, ww e could lose the
innovation, creativity and teatt mwork frr osff tered by ob ur culture and our business may be harmed.

We believe that our culture has been and will continue to be a critical contributor to our success. We expect to continue to hire
aggressively as we expand, and we believe our corporate culture has been crucrr ial in our success and our ability to attract highly skilled
personnel. If we do not continue to develop our corporate culture or maintain and preserve our core values as we grow and evolve, we
may be unable to fosff ter the innovation, curiosity, creativity, focus on execution, teamwork and the facilitation of critical knowledge
transfer anff d knowledge sharing we believe we need to supporu t our growth. Moreover, liquidity availabla e to our employee security
holders could lead to disparities of wealth among our employees, which could adversely impact relations among employees and our
culture in general.

For additional risks related to our corporate culture, see “We depend on our senior management team and other keykk employm ees, and
the loss of oo ne or more of these employeeso or an inability to attract, recruit, motivate, develop and retain othett r highlgg y sll killed
employm ees could hll arm our business.”

Macroeconomic Risks

Our overall bll usiness resultsll may sa uffeff r froff m an economic downturn.

During periods of high unemployment and inflation, governmental entities often experience budget deficitsff as a result of increased
costs and lower than expected tax collections. Budget deficff its at the federalff level and within some state and local government entities
have had a negative impact on spending for many health and human services programs, including Medicare, Medicaid and similar
programs, which represent significant payer sources forff our Medical Groups. We anticipate that budget deficff its, the growing
magnitude of Medicare and Medicaid expenditures and the aging of the U.S. population, among other factff ors, will continue to place
pressure on government healthcare programs. Other risks we face during periods of economic weakness and high unemployment
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include potential declines in the numbers of patients seeking care, potential increases in the uninsured and underinsured populations,
which could negatively impact payer mix, a contracting of discretionary spending by patients, which could negatively affect demand
for the services of our Privia Providers, and increased difficulties collecting patient responsibility amounts (co-payments, deductibles,
coverage exclusions).

A deterdd ioration of po ublic healthll conditiodd ns associatedtt withii a pandemic, ec pideee mic or outbreak of an infen ctiott us diseii ase in tii hett
markets itt n wii hich we operate could all dverserr ly impact our busineii ss.

If a pandemic, epidemic, outbreak of infectious disease, or other widespread health crisis affeff cts our markets, our business and
operations could be adversely affected. Any such crisis could diminish the public trusr t in healthcare faciff lities and providers,
particularly those that are treating or have treated patients affeff cted by infectious diseases, and cause changes in the utilization of
healthcare services. If any of our Medical Groups or Privia Providers are involved, or perceived as being involved, in treating patients
with an infectious disease, patients might avoid seeking needed care or cancel elective procedurd es, and our reputation may be
negatively affected. Patient volumes may decline or volumes of insured and underinsured patients may increase, depending on the
economic circumstances surrounding the pandemic, epidemic or outbreak. In addition, a pandemic, epidemic or outbreak might
adversely affect the business and operations of the Company and Medical Groups by causing a temporary srr hutdown or diversion of
patients froff m Medical Groups, causing disruptr ions or delays in supplu y chains forff materials and products, or by causing staffiff ng
shortages. Further, we, our Medical Groups and Privia Providers could be unable to implement clinical initiatives to manage
healthcare conditions of patients and appra opriately document patient risk profileff s, and any such public health crisis could impact our
ability to accurately project medical cost trends. A pandemic, epidemic or outbreak could also increase the clinical disease burdens of
patients over time, reducd e preventive care to manage more acute clinical conditions and have other effeff cts that could result in
unexpected increased medical expenses in future periods. Although we have business resiliency plans to address circumstances
including a futurff e pandemic, the potential impact of, aff s well as the response of the public and appla icable governments to, a futureff
pandemic, epidemic or outbreak is diffiff cult to predict and could adversely affect our business, results of operations, and financial
condition.

Financial Risks

We have a history of net losll ses, we anticipate itt ncii reasing expeee nses in the futurff e, and we may not be able tll o mtt aintii aitt n pii rofio taii bility.ii

We reported net income (loss) of $14.4 million, $23.1 million, and $(8.6) million forff the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, respectively. Our accumulated deficit is $(179.2) million and $(193.6) million as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
We expect our aggregate costs will increase substantially in the forff eseeable future and we may experience losses as we expect to
invest heavily in increasing and expanding our operations, hiring additional employees and operating as a public company. These
effortff s may prove more expensive than we currently anticipate, and we may not succeed in increasing our revenue sufficieff ntly to
offsff et these higher expenses. To date, we have financed our operations principally from revenue earned froff m our Medical Group’s
billing and collection for heff althcare services furnished by Privia Providers, revenues earned froff m VBCs with our ACOs, the
incurrence of indebtedness and the sale of our equity. We may not generate positive cash floff w froff m operations or achieve profitabia lity
in any given period, and our limited operating history may make it diffiff cult for you to evaluate our current business and our future
prospects.

We have encountered and will continue to encounter risks and difficulties freff quently experienced by growing companies in rapidlya
changing industries, including increasing expenses as we continue to grow our business. We expect our operating expenses to increase
significantly over the next several years as we continue to hire additional personnel, expand our operations and infraff structure, and
continue to expand to reach more patients. In addition to the expected costs to grow our business, we also expect to incur additional
legal, accounting and other expenses as a newly public company. These investments may be more costly than we expect, and if we do
not achieve the benefitff s anticipated from these investments, or if the realization of these benefits is delayed, they may not result in
increased revenue or growth in our business. If our growth rate were to decline significantly or become negative, it could adversely
affeff ct our financial condition and results of operations. If we are not able to achieve or maintain positive cash floff w in the long term,
we may require additional finff ancing, which may not be availabla e on favff orable terms or at all and/or which could be dilutive to our
stockholders. If we are unable to successfulff ly address these risks and challenges as we encounter them, our business, results of
operations and finff ancial condition could be adversely affecff ted. Our faiff lure to achieve or maintain profitaff bia lity could negatively impact
the value of our common stock.

Our ability toii use our net opeo rating ln osll ses to ott ffso et future taxablaa e ill ncii ome may be subject to certain limitations.

In general, under Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“the Code”), a corporation that undergoes an
“ownership change” is subject to limitations on its ability to utilize its pre-change NOLs to offset future taxable income or taxes. A
Code Section 382 ownership change generally occurs if one or more stockholders or groups of stockholders who own at least 5% of a
corporation’s stock increase their ownership by more than 50 percentage points over their lowest ownership percentage within a
rolling three-year period. Similar rules may apply under state tax laws. As of December 31, 2024, we had approxia mately $47.2 million
of federal and $30.1 million of state (post-apportioned state NOL) NOL carryforwards. During the year ended December 31, 2024, we
utilized the remaining federal NOL carryforwards for years before 2018 which would have otherwise began to expire in 2034. All
remaining federalff NOL carryforwards are indefinite-lived. The state NOL carryforwards begin to expire in 2034. Changes in the
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ownership of our stock in the future, including as a result of futurff e offerings, and some of which are outside of our control, could
result in an ownership change under Section 382 of the Code (or appla icable state law) after such date, which could significantly limit
our ability to utilize our existing and futurff e NOL carryforwards arising at any time prior to such ownership change.

We face risks akk ssociatedtt withii our indii ebdd tedness, which could adverserr ly affeff ct our business and growth prospects.tt

As of December 31, 2024, there was no amount outstanding under our Revolving Credit Facility and $125.0 million of borrowing
availabia lity under our Revolving Credit Facility. Our indebtedness, or any additional indebtedness we may incur, could require us to
divert funds identified for otheff r purposrr es for debt service and impair our liquidity position. If we cannot generate sufficient cash flowff
from operations to service our debt, we may need to restructurt e or refinff ance our debt, reducd e or delay capital expenditures, dispose of
assets or issue equity to obtain necessary funds. We cannot assure you that we will be able to refinance any of our indebtedness on a
timely basis, on satisfactory orr r commercially reasonable terms or at all. There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain
sufficient fundsff to enable us to repay or refinff ance our debt obligations on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. If we cannot meet
our debt service obligations, the holders of our indebtedness may accelerate such indebtedness and, to the extent such indebtedness is
secured, foreclose on our assets. In such an event, we may not have sufficient assets to repay all of our indebtedness.

Our indebtedness and the cash floff w needed to satisfy off ur debt have important consequences, including:

• limiting funds otheff rwise availabla e forff financing our capia tal expenditures by requiring us to dedicate a portion of our cash
flows froff m operations to the repayment of debt and the interest on this debt;

• making us more vulnerabla e to rising interest rates; and

• making us more vulnerabla e in the event of a downturn in our business.

Any faiff lure to make payments of interest and principal on our outstanding indebtedness on a timely basis would likely result in
penalties or defaults, which would also harm our ability to incur additional indebtedness. Any refinff ancing of our indebtedness could
be at higher interest rates and may require us to comply with more onerous covenants.

Fluctuations in interest rates can increase borrowing costs. Such increases in interest rates directly impact the amount of interest we
are required to pay and reducd e earnings accordingly. In addition, developments in tax policy, such as the disallowance of tax
deductions for interest paid on outstanding indebtedness, could have an adverse effect on our liquidity and our business, financial
conditions and results of operations.

We expect to use cash floff w froff m operations to meet current and future financial obligations, including funding our operations, debt
service requirements and capital expenditures. The abia lity to make these payments depends on our financial and operating
performance, which is subject to prevailing economic, industry arr nd competitive conditions and to certain financial, business, economic
and other factors beyond our control.

The tertt msrr of our Revolving CreCC dit Aii greement restrict our current and futurff e opeo rations, ps articularll ly our abiliii ty toii respond to
changes or to ttt akett certain actions.

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains a number of restrictive covenants that impose significant operating and financial
restrictions on us and may limit our ability to engage in acts that may be in our long-term best interests, including restrictions on our
ability to:

• incur additional indebtedness or other contingent obligations;

• create liens;

• make investments, acquisitions, loans and advances;

• consolidate, merge, liquidate or dissolve;

• sell, transferff or otherwise dispose of our assets;

• pay dividends on our equity interests or make other payments in respect of capital stock; and

• materially alter the business we conduct.

The restrictive covenants in the Revolving Credit Agreement require us to satisfy certain financial condition tests, as described in
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Our
ability to satisfy those tests can be affected by events beyond our control.

A breach of the covenants or restrictions under the Revolving Credit Agreement could result in an event of default under such
document. Such a default may allow the creditors to accelerate the related debt, which may result in the acceleration of any other debt
to which a cross-acceleration or cross-default provision applies. In the event the holders of our indebtedness accelerate the repayment,
we may not have sufficient assets to repay that indebtedness or be able to borrow suffiff cient fundsff to refinance it. Even if we are abla e to
obtain new financing, it may not be on commercially reasonable terms or on terms acceptabla e to us. As a result of these restrictions,
we may be:
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• limited in how we conduct our business;

• unable to raise additional debt or equity financing to operate during general economic or business downturns; or

• unable to compete effeff ctively or to take advantage of new business opportunities.

These restrictions, along with restrictions that may be contained in agreements evidencing or governing other future indebtedness, may
affeff ct our ability to grow in accordance with our growth strategy.

Our faiff luii re to raise additioii nal capitaii l or generate ctt ash floff ws necessary to expanxx d our operations and invii est in nii ew technologio es in
the futurff e could reduce our ability toii compete stt uccessfulff lyll and harm orr ur results of operations.

We may need to raise additional fundsff , and we may not be able to obtain additional debt or equity financing on favff orable terms or at
all. If we raise additional equity financing, our security holders may experience significant dilution of their ownership interests. If we
engage in additional debt finff ancing, we may be required to accept terms that restrict our ability to incur additional indebtedness, force
us to maintain specified liquidity or other ratios or restrict our ability to pay dividends or make acquisitions. In addition, the covenants
in our Credit Agreement may limit our ability to obtain additional debt, and any failure to adhere to these covenants could result in
penalties or defauff lts that could furff ther restrict our liquidity or limit our ability to obtain finff ancing. If we need additional capital and
cannot raise it on acceptabla e terms, or at all, we may not be able to, among other things:

• develop and enhance our patient services;

• continue to expand our organization;

• hire, train and retain employees;

• respond to competitive pressures or unanticipated working capital requirements; or

• pursue acquisition opportunities.

In addition, if we issue additional equity to raise capital, your interest in us will be diluted.

General Risks

As a public reporee ting cn ompany,n we are obligll atedtt to maintain proper and effeff ctivtt e intii ertt nal control over financii ial reporting in n oii rderdd
to comply withii Sectiott n 404 of the SarSS banes-OxlOO eyll Act. If we fail to maintain effeff ctivtt e intii ertt nal control over finaii ncial reportingii , wegg
may na ot be able tll o att ccurateltt y rll eport our financii ial resultsll or reporee t thett m in aii timely manner, which may adverserr ly affeff ct investortt
confidff encedd in us.

Reporting obligations as a public company place a considerable strain on our financial and management systems, processes and
controls, as well as on our personnel. As a public company, we are required to document and test our internal control over finff ancial
reporting pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbaner s-Oxley Act so that our management can certify aff s to the effeff ctiveness of our internal
control over finff ancial reporting. Section 404(a) of the Sarbaner s-Oxley Act (“Section 404(a)”) requires that management assess and
report annually on the effectiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting and identify aff ny material weaknesses in our
internal control over finff ancial reporting. Section 404(b) of the Sarbaner s-Oxley Act requires our independent registered public
accounting firff m to issue an annual report that addresses the effectiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting. Our
compliance with Section 404(a) has required to incur subsu tantial expenses and expend significant management efforts.

If we identify mff aterial weaknesses in our internal control over finff ancial reporting in the future, our management will be unable to
assert that our disclosure controls and procedurd es and our internal control over finff ancial reporting is effective. If we are unable to
assert that our internal control over finff ancial reporting is effective, or if our independent registered public accounting firff m is unable to
express an unqualified opinion as to the effectiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting, investors may lose confidff ence in
the accuracy and completeness of our financial reports, the market price of our common stock could be adversely affectff ed and we
could become subju ect to litigation or investigations by Nasdaq, the SEC, or other regulatory arr uthorities, which could require additional
financial and management resources.

Negate ivtt e publicity relating to on ur busineii ss, industrytt , Myy edMM icdd al Groups or Privia Providerdd s mrr ay have a matertt ial adverserr effeff ct on our
financii ial results.ll

We may be negatively affected if another company in our industry, orrr if one of our Medical Groups or Privia Providers, engages in
practices that subju ect our industry orr r business to negative publicity. Negative publicity may result froff m judicial inquiries, unfavff orable
outcomes in lawsuits, social media, regulatory orr r governmental actions with respect to our services. Negative publicity may cause
increased regulation and legislative scrutr iny of industry prr ractices as well as increased litigation or enforcement action by civil and
criminal authorities. Additionally, negative publicity may increase our costs of doing business and adversely affect our profitabia lity by
impeding our ability to market our services, constraining our ability to price our services appropriately for the risks we are assuming,
requiring us to change the services we offeff r or increasing the regulatory brr urdens under which we operate.

For additional risks related to negative publicity of our Medical Groups or Privia Providers, see “If“ we are not able to maintain and
enhance our reputate ion and brand recognition, including through the maintenance and protection of to rat demarks, our business and
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results of operations will be harmed.” and “If wII e cannot timely implm ement thett Privia Technology Solution forff Privia Physh icians and
new MedMM ical Groups, or resolve Privia Providerdd and patients ctt oncerns, including any technical and billing issuii es, in a timely mll anner,
we may la ose MedMM ical Groups, Privia Providers and their patients,tt and our reputate ion may be harmed.”

Increased attentiott n to, antt d evolving expeee ctattt iott ns for, enviroii nmental, social, all nd governance (“ESGEE ”) initiatives could ill ncii rease
our costs, hs arm orr ur repuee tation, or othett rwise adverserr ly impacm t our busineii ss.

Companies across industries are facing increasing scrutr iny froff m a variety of stakeholders related to their ESG and sustainabia lity
practices. Expectations regarding voluntary Err SG initiatives and disclosures may result in increased costs (including but not limited to
increased costs related to compliance, stakeholder engagement, contracting and insurance), enhanced compliance or disclosure
obligations, or other adverse impacts to our business, financial condition, or results of operations.

While we may at times engage in voluntary irr nitiatives (such as voluntary drr isclosures, certifications, or goals, among others) to
improve the ESG profilff e of the Company, such initiatives may be costly and may not have the desired effeff ct. Moreover, we may not
be able to successfulff ly complete such initiatives due to factors that are within or outside of our control. Even if this is not the case, our
actions may subsequently be determined to be insufficient by various stakeholders, and we may be subject to investor or regulator
engagement on our ESG efforts, even if such initiatives are currently voluntary.rr

Certain market participants, including major institutional investors and capital providers, use third-party benchmarks and scores to
assess companies’ ESG profiles in making investment or voting decisions. Unfavff orable ESG ratings could lead to increased negative
investor sentiment towards us, which could negatively impact our share price as well as our access to and cost of capital. To the extent
ESG matters negatively impact our reputation, it may also impede our ability to compete as effectively to attract and retain employees,
which may adversely impact our operations.

In addition, we continue to evaluate our ESG disclosure practices in light of increasing levels of regulation with respect to ESG
matters, such as the recently-enacted Califorff nia laws related to greenhouse gas emissions and climate-related finff ancial risks reporting
and the SEC’s climate rulrr e, either of which may require us to incur significant additional costs to comply, and impose increased
oversight obligations on our management and board of directors.

Increasingly, different stakeholder groups have divergent views on sustainability and ESG matters, which increases the risk that any
action or lack thereof with respect to sustainability or ESG matters will be perceived negatively by at least some stakeholders and
adversely impact our reputation and business. Anti-ESG sentiment has gained some momentum across the United States, with several
states having enacted or proposed “anti-ESG” policies or legislation. If we do not successfulff ly manage ESG-related expectations
across stakeholders, it could erode stakeholder trust, impact our reputation, and adversely affect our business.

These and other changes in stakeholder expectations will likely lead to increased costs as well as scrutr iny that could heighten all of the
risks identified in this risk facff tor. Additionally, our business partners may be subju ect to similar expectations, which may augment or
create additional risks, including risks that may not be known to us.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock

The requireii ments ott f bo eingii a public company mn ay strain our resources and distrdd act our managea ment, wtt hich could mll ake it diffii cult
to manage oua r business, particularly sll ince we are no lonll ger an “em“ ergir ngii growth company.”n

As a public company, we incur legal, accounting and other expenses that we did not previously incur as a privately held company. We
are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, and certain requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, the listing
requirements of Nasdaq and other appla icable securities rulr es and regulations. Compliance with these rulr es and regulations have
increased our legal and financial compliance costs, made some activities more diffiff cult, time-consuming or costly and increased
demand on our systems and resources. We will continue to experience such increased costs and challenges particularly because we are
no longer an “emerging growth company.” The Exchange Act requires that we fileff annual, quarterly and current reports with respect to
our business, financial condition and results of operations. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires, among other things, that we establish and
maintain effeff ctive internal controls and procedurd es for finff ancial reporting. Furthermore, the need to establa ish the corporate
infrastructurt e demanded of a publu ic company may divert our management’s attention froff m implementing our growth strategy, which
could prevent us from improving our business, financial condition and results of operations. We have made, and will continue to
make, changes to our internal controls and procedurd es for finff ancial reporting and accounting systems to meet our reporting obligations
as a public company. However, the measures we take may not be sufficient to satisfy our obligations as a public company. These
additional obligations could have a material adverse effecff t on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, changing laws, regulations and standards relating to corporate governance and public disclosure are creating uncertainty
for public companies, increasing legal and financial compliance costs and making some activities more time consuming. These laws,
regulations and standards are subju ect to varying interprr etations, in many cases due to their lack of specificity, and, as a result, their
application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by regulatory arr nd governing bodies. This could result in
continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance
practices. We intend to invest resources to comply with evolving laws, regulations and standards, and this investment may result in
increased general and administrative expenses and a diversion of our management’s time and attention froff m revenue-generating
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activities to compliance activities. If our effortff s to comply with new laws, regulations and standards diffeff r froff m the activities intended
by regulatory orr r governing bodies due to ambiguities related to their appla ication and practice, regulatory arr uthorities may initiate legal
proceedings against us and there could be a material adverse effecff t on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Provisions of our corporatrr e gtt overnance docdd uments could mll ake an acquisition of uo s more difdd fiff cult and may prevent attempts by our
shareholders to replacee e or remove our current managea ment, ett ven if bi eneficiaff l to ott ur shareholders.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws and the Delaware General Corporation Law
(the “DGCL”) contain provisions that could make it more diffiff cult for a third-party to acquire us, even if doing so might be beneficial
to our shareholders. Among other things, these provisions:

• allow us to authorize the issuance of undesignated preferred stock, the terms of which may be establa ished and the shares of
which may be issued without shareholder appra oval, and which may include supeu rmajority voting, special approval, dividend,
or other rights or preferences supeu rior to the rights of shareholders;

• provide for a classified board of directors with staggered three-year terms;

• prohibit shareholder action by written consent and shareholder special meetings as well as permit removal of directors only
for cause;

• establish advance notice requirements for nomff inations for elections to our Board or for proposff ing matters that can be acted
upon by shareholders at shareholder meetings.

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains a provision that provides us with protections similar to Section 203 of
the DGCL, and will prevent us froff m engaging in a business combination with a person unless board or shareholder appra oval is
obtained prior to the acquisition. These provisions could discourage, delay or prevent a transaction involving a change in control of
our company. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more diffiff cult for you and other shareholders to elect
directors of your choosing and cause us to take other corporate actions you desire, including actions that you may deem advantageous,
or negatively affect the trading price of our common stock. In addition, because our Board is responsible for appointa ing the members
of our management team, these provisions could in turt n affecff t any attempt by our shareholders to replace current members of our
management team.

These and other provisions in our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, amended and restated bylaws and Delaware law
could make it more diffiff cult for shareholders or potential acquirers to obtain control of our Board or initiate actions that are opposed
by our then-current Board, including delay or impede a merger, tender offer or proxy contest involving our company. The existence of
these provisions could negatively affect the price of our common stock and limit opportunities for youff to realize value in a corporate
transaction.

Our amendeddd and restated certificate ott f io ncii orporrr atiott n desdd ignagg tes thett Court of Co hancCC ery or f to he Sttt attt e ott f Do elawarll e as thett exclusive
forum forff certain litigii atiott n thatt t may be initiated by ob ur shareholders, which may limit our shareholderdd s’rr abilitii y ttt o ott btain aii
favorable jll udiciadd l forff um for disdd pus tes with us.

Pursuant to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative forum,ff
the Court of Chancery orr f the State of Delaware is the sole and exclusive forum forff (1) any derivative action or proceeding brought on
our behalf, (ff 2) any action asserting a claim of breach of a fidff ucd iary duty owed by any of our directors, offiff cers or other employees to
us or our shareholders, (3) any action asserting a claim against us arising pursuant to any provision of the DGCL, our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation or our amended and restated bylaws or (4) any other action asserting a claim against us that is
governed by the internal affairs doctrine; provided that forff the avoidance of doubt, the forum selection provision that identifies the
Court of Chancery orr f the State of Delaware as the exclusive forff umr for certain litigation, including any “derivative action”, will not
apply to suits to enforce a dutd y or liabia lity created by the Securities Act, the Exchange Act or any other claim for which the federalff
courts have exclusive jurisdiction. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation furff ther provides that any person or entity
purchasing or otherwise acquiring any interest in shares of our capital stock is deemed to have notice of and consented to the
provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation described above. The forum selection clause in our amended and
restated certificate of incorporation may have the effect of discouraging lawsuits against us or our directors and offiff cers and may limit
our shareholders’ abia lity to obtain a favorable judicial forum for diff sputes with us.

Our opeo rating rn esultsll and stock price may be volatile, ae nd the market price of our common stock may da rodd p bo elowll the price you pay.

Our quarterly operating results are likely to fluff ctuat te in the futff urt e. In addition, securities markets worldwide have experienced, and are
likely to continue to experience, significant price and volume fluff ctuat tions. This market volatility, as well as general economic, market
or political conditions, could subjeb ct the market price of our shares to wide price fluff ctuat tions regardless of our operating performance.
Our operating results and the trading price of our shares may fluff ctuat te in response to various factors, including:

• market conditions in our industry orr r the broader stock market;

• actuat l or anticipated fluctuations in our quarterly financial and operating results;
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• introduction of new solutions or services by us or our competitors;

• the operating and stock price performance of comparable companies;

• issuance of new or changed securities analysts’ reports or recommendations;

• sales, or anticipated sales, of large blocks of our stock;

• additions or departurt es of key personnel;

• regulatory orr r political developments;

• litigation and governmental investigations;

• changing economic conditions;

• negative publicity relating to us or our competitors;

• investors’ perception of us;

• events beyond our control such as weather and war including the ongoing conflicff t between Russia and Ukraine and Israel and
Palestine and other global confliff cts; and

• any default on our indebtedness.

These and other factff ors, many of which are beyond our control, may cause our operating results and the market price and demand for
our shares to fluctuate substantially. Fluctuat tions in our quarterly operating results could limit or prevent investors froff m readily selling
their shares and may otherwise negatively affect the market price and liquidity of our shares. In addition, the trading market for ourff
shares may be subject to increased volatility. In addition, in the past, when the market price of a stock has been volatile, holders of that
stock have sometimes instituted securities class action litigation against the company that issued the stock. If any of our shareholders
brought a lawsuit against us, we could incur subsu tantial costs defending the lawsuit. Such a lawsuit could also divert the time and
attention of our management from our business, which could significantly harm our profitaff bia lity and reputation.

Future sales and issuances of our outsttt antt dingii shares could cll ause the market price of our common stock to drop signi ificantly, evenll
if our business is doidd ngii well.

Sales of a subsu tantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market have occurred and could occur at any time. These
sales, or the perception in the market that the holders of a large number of shares intend to sell shares, could reducd e the market price of
our common stock. All of our common stock sold pursuant to an offering covered by a registration statement, including common stock
sold by stockholders rather than the Company, will be freely transferabff le. In addition, shares of our common stock issued or issuable
under our equity incentive plans to employees and directors have been registered on one or more Form S-8 registration statements and
may be freff ely sold in the public market upon issuance, except forff shares held by affiff liates who have certain restrictions on their abia lity
to sell. The market price of our stock could decline if the holders of our shares of common stock sell them or are perceived by the
market as intending to sell them.

Because we have no current plans to ptt ay regue lar cash divdd idendd ds on our common stock, yk ou may na ot receive any rn eturn on
investment unlesll s you sell your common stock for a price greatertt than that which you paid forff it.

We do not anticipate paying any regular cash dividends on our common stock. Any decision to declare and pay dividends in the futureff
will be made at the discretion of our Board and will depend on, among other things, our results of operations, finff ancial condition, cash
requirements, contractuat l restrictions and other factors that our Board may deem relevant. In addition, our ability to pay dividends is,
and may be, limited by covenants of existing and any futurff e outstanding indebtedness we or our subsu idiaries incur. Thereforeff , any
return on investment in our common stock is solely dependent upon the appra eciation of the price of our common stock on the open
market, which may not occur. For additional inforff mation, see “Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters
and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities - Dividend Policy.”
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 1C. CYBERSECURITY

Item 106(b) Cybersecurity Risk Management and Strategy

Infon rmation and Cybersecurity Riskii Management and Stratt tegyef y y g gy

Our appra oach to risk management, including cybersecurity risk, is designed to identify,ff assess, prioritize and manage major risk
exposures that could affect our ability to execute our corporate strategy and fulfill our business objectives. Our cybersecurity risk
management program is designed based on industry srr tandards and informed by the National Institute of Standards and Technology
Cybersecurity Framework. We perform risk assessments in which we map and prioritize identified cybersecurity risks, including risks
associated with our use of third- and fourth-party vendors, Medical Groups, Privia Providers and Affiliated Practices, based on
probability, immediacy and potential magnitude. These assessments inform our cybersecurity risk management strategies and
oversight processes, and we view cybersecurity risks as one of the key risk categories we face.ff

Our processes forff assessing, identifyingff and managing cybersecurity risks and vulnerabia lities are embedded across our business as part
of our enterprise risk management (“ERM”) program. Among other things, we regularly engage with internal and external
cybersecurity assessors, consultants and auditors to enhance our cybersecurity risk management strategies, review compliance with
evolving standards and evaluate the effectiveness and maturity of our controls and perform regular internal and external risk
assessments including those required by HIPAA; provide annual mandatory privacy and security training for all employees; perform
technical testing and penetration testing to validate the effeff ctiveness of our cybersecurity program; and perform simulated breach
testing and tabla etop exercises to simulate responses to information security incidents. We have establa ished processes to oversee and
manage risks associated with our third- and certain fourth-party service providers, including regular security assessments and
compliance reviews. We use the finff dings from these and other processes to assess our information and cybersecurity practices,
procedurd es and technologies, including for potential enhancements to our risk mitigation strategies. Our Cybersecurity Incident
Response Plan (“CSIRP”), which includes processes to detect triage, assess the severity of, eff scalate, contain, investigate and resolve or
mitigate cybersecurity incidents, as well as to comply with applicable legal obligations and mitigate brand and reputational damage. In
addition, we maintain cyber liabia lity insurance to protect against potential losses arising from cybersecurity incidents. In 2024, we did
not identify aff ny cybersecurity threats or incidents, including as a result of any prior cybersecurity incidents, that have materially
affeff cted or are reasonably likely to materially affeff ct us, including our operations, business strategy, results of operations, or finff ancial
condition. However, despite our effortff s, we cannot eliminate all risks froff m cybersecurity threats or incidents or provide assurances that
we have not experienced an undetected cybersecurity threat or incident. For more information abouta these risks, please see “Item 1A -
Risk Factors” under the caption “Security threats,tt cyberserr curity incidents or ott ther forms of do atdd a breaches, catastrophio c events and
other disruptu ions to our, or ur Medical Groups’, our business partners’rr or our vendors’rr information technology and related syss tems
could cll omprm omise sensitive information related to our business, the MedMM ical Groups or patients,tt prevent access to critical
information, harm patients, rett quire remediation and other corrective action, which can be expensive, and expose us to liability, wyy hich
could all dverserr ly affeff ct our business, operations and reputate ion. ” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
Infon rmation and Cybersecurity Governance and Oversirr ghtif y y g

Our Board of Directors (“Board”) is responsible for overseeing risk management at Privia and, as part of this responsibility, the Board,
assisted by its committees, exercises oversight over our ERM program which is designed and implemented by management. As part of
its broader risk oversight activities, the Board oversees risks froff m cybersecurity threats, both directly and through the Audit
Committee of the Board (“Audit Committee”) and Compliance Committee of the Board (“Compliance Committee”). The Compliance
Committee is responsible for reviewing data security programs, including cybersecurity and procedurd es regarding disaster recovery
and critical business continuity. The Compliance Committee is also responsible for reviewing Privia’s programs and plans established
by management to monitor compliance with data security compliance programs and test preparedness. The Audit Committee assists
our Board in fulff filling its oversight responsibilities with respect to risk management in the areas of internal control over finff ancial
reporting, disclosure controls and procedurd es, and legal and regulatory crr ompliance, and discusses with management policies and
practices with respect to risk assessment and risk management.

Thhe Co limpliance Com imittee rec ieives quarterlyly reports from hth Ce hief Information Security Offiff cer (“CISO”) and Privacy Offiff cer on
iinformatiion secu iri yty iri ksks, iin lcludinguding ycybbersecu iri yty iin iciddents or p iriva ycy events, r lelevan it infor imation abbouta hthe cybeybersecurityity hthreat
lla dndscapea , a d dnd updates on our ycybbersecu iri yty iri ksk ma gnagement strategygy andd a yny poten itial il issu .es The Compliance Committee reports to
the Audit Committee at each regularly scheduled meeting of the Audit Committee, and the Compliance and Audit Committee meet
periodically in joint session to discuss matters of joint interest and responsibility, such as cybersecurity risks. In daddidi ition, hthe f llullff
Boardd r ieceives periiodidi bc b iriefiinff ggs on ycybbersecu iri yty iri ksks froff m thhe CISO.

Our CISO, who leads our information security team and reports to our Chief Technology Offiff cer, is responsible for day-to-day
identification, assessment and management of the inforff mation security risks we face.ff The CISO provides monthly information and
cybersecurity updates to a cross-functional team of executive leaders, who prioritize risks and risk mitigation activities. The CISO has
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held executive technology leadership roles within health systems and physician groups for over 15 years, including Chief Technology
Offiff cer, Chief Information Officer, and Chief Inforff mation Security Offiff cer. The information security team works with our broader
technology team, as well as our compliance and legal teams, to align operations and technology developments with cybersecurity
program objectives.

In addition, we maintain processes forff managing incident assessment and internal escalation. We have establa ished a Cybersecurity
Incident Response Team (“CSIRT”), which is responsible for (1) responding to cybersecurity incidents, (2) maintaining our CSIRP
that is regularly updated in response to organizational changes, technical changes, changes to the threat landscape or in response to
active or previous cybersecurity incidents, and (3) monitoring the prevention, detection, mitigation, and remediation of cybersecurity
incidents. The CSIRT is comprised of the CISO and other key members of management, including the Privacy Offiff cer, Chief
Technology Offiff cer, Chief Audit and Compliance Officff er, General Counsel and other members of management and our technical
response teams as necessary to appropriately respond to an incident, including mitigation, remediation and any required or
recommended disclosure of an incident. Furthermore, as part of management’s oversight of information and cybersecurity risks, we
maintain a Third Party Access Committee, comprised of our CISO, Privacy Offiff cer, and colleagues drawn from across the
organization, including our technology, compliance and legal teams, which is responsible for reviewing and monitoring compliance
for third- and certain fourth-party requests forff and access to certain Company data and information.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our headquarters are located in Arlington, Virginia. Our lease on this space expires on September 30, 2026. We have also leased space
for our other offices throughout the United States. We believe that our headquarters and other offices are adequate for our immediate
needs and that additional or substitute space is availabla e if needed to accommodate growth and expansion.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are currently involved in, and may in the futurff e become involved in, legal proceedings, claims and investigations in the ordinary
course of our business, including medical malpractice and consumer claims. Although the results of these legal proceedings, claims
and investigations cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not believe that the finff al outcome of any matters that we are currently
involved in are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.
Regardless of final outcomes, however, any such proceedings, claims, and investigations may nonetheless impose a significant burden
on management and employees and be costly to defend, with unfavff orable preliminary orr r interim rulings.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not appla icable.
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PART II

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANTRR 'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock has been listed on the Nasdaq Global Select Market under the symbol “PRVA” since April 29, 2021. Prior to that,
there was no public trading market for ourff common stock.

Holders of Record

As of the close of business on February 2rr 1, 2025, there were approxia mately 17 stockholders of record of our common stock. The
actuat l number of stockholders is greater than this number of record holders, and includes stockholders who are beneficial owners, but
whose shares are held in street name by brokers and other nominees. This number of holders of record also does not include
stockholders whose shares may be held in trusr t by other entities.

Stock Perforff mance Graph -

The folff lowing perforff mance gragg ph anda related inforff mation shall not be deemed to be “fileff d” for purposes of Section 18 of to hett
Exchange Act, or otherwise subjeb ct to the liabilities of to hattt section or SectSS ions 11 and 12(a)(2) o2 f to he Sett curities Act of 1933, as
amended, and shall not be incorporated by refee rence into any regie straii tion statement or other documdd ent fileff d by ub s with ttt he SEtt C,
whethett r made befoe re or afteff r the dattt e of to hitt s Aii nnual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K, regardle ess of ao ny general incorporatr ion language in such
filing, except as shall be expee ressly sll et forth btt y sb pes cifici refee rence in such filinff g.

The folff lowing graph and related inforff mation shows a comparison of the cumulative total return for our common stock, RusRR sell 2000
Index, and NASDAQ Health Care Index between April 28, 2021 (the date our common stock commenced trading on the NASDAQ)
through December 31, 2024. All values assume an initial investment of $100 and reinvestment of any dividends. The comparisons are
based on historical data and are not indicative of, nor intended to forff ecast, the futurff e performance of our common stock.
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4/28/2021 6/30/2021 9/30/2021 12/31/2021
Privia Health Group, Inc. (1) $ 100.00 $ 127.68 $ 67.80 $ 74.45
Russell 2000 $ 100.00 $ 102.15 $ 97.69 $ 99.79
NASDAQ Health Care $ 100.00 $ 101.67 $ 95.90 $ 82.74

3/31/2022 6/30/2022 9/30/2022 12/31/2022
Privia Health Group, Inc. (1) $ 76.92 $ 83.80 $ 98.01 $ 65.35
Russell 2000 $ 92.28 $ 76.41 $ 74.74 $ 79.39
NASDAQ Health Care $ 69.12 $ 57.28 $ 54.19 $ 62.22

3/31/2023 6/30/2023 9/30/2023 12/31/2023

Privia Health Group, Inc. (1) $ 79.45 $ 75.14 $ 66.19 $ 66.27
Russell 2000 $ 81.57 $ 85.81 $ 81.41 $ 92.83
NASDAQ Health Care $ 62.61 $ 62.04 $ 58.45 $ 62.73

3/31/2024 6/30/2024 9/30/2024 12/31/2024

Privia Health Group, Inc. (1) $ 56.37 $ 50.01 $ 52.40 $ 56.26
Russell 2000 $ 97.64 $ 94.44 $ 103.20 $ 103.54
NASDAQ Health Care $ 63.95 $ 63.66 $ 67.72 $ 61.13

(1) $100 invested on April 28, 2021 in shares and in indices

The inforff mation abovea shall not be deemed “soliciting material” or to be “fileff d” for purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act, or
otherwise subject to the liabia lities under that section, and shall not be incorporated by reference into any of our other filiff ngs under the
Exchange Act, or the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, regardless of any general incorporation language in those filinff gs.

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The inforff mation required by this item will be set forff th in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-
K by reference.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

There were no unregistered sales of equity securities durd ing the year ended December 31, 2024.

Dividend Policy

We currently intend to retain all availabla e fundsff and any future earnings to fund the development and growth of our business and to
repay indebtedness and, thereforff e, we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the forff eseeable future. Additionally, because we
are a holding company, our ability to pay dividends on our common stock may be limited by restrictions on the abia lity of our
subsu idiaries to pay dividends or make distributions to us. Any future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our
Board, subju ect to compliance with covenants in current and futff urt e agreements governing our and our subsu idiaries’ indebtedness, and
will depend on our results of operations, finff ancial condition, capia tal requirements and other factff ors that our Board may deem relevant.

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None.

ITEM 6. [RESERVED]R
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATRR IONS

The folff lowing discii ussion should bl e read in conjunction with ott ur consolidatdd ed financial statements att nd accompanying notes included
elsell where in thitt s Aii nnual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K. In addition, the folff lowing discii ussion and analysll is and information contains forward-
looking statements att bout the business, operations and financial perfor rmance of to hett Company based on our current expectations that
involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Our actual results ctt ould dll iffer materially from those anticipated by these forff ward-
looking statements as att result of many factors.rr including, but not limited to, those identified below and those discussed in thett sections
titled “Ri“ skii Factors”rr and “InforII mation Regardinge Forward-Looking StateSS ments”tt in this Annual Repore t on ForFF m 10-K.

Overview

Privia Health is a technology-driven, national physician-enablement company that collabora ates with physician practices, health plans,
and health systems to achieve the quadruple aim of better outcomes, lower costs, improved patient experience, and happier and more
engaged providers. We seek to accomplish the quadruple aim by entering markets and organizing existing physicians and non-
physician clinicians into a unique practice model that combines the advantages of a partnership in a large regional Medical Group wu ith
significant provider autonomy forff Privia Providers joining our Medical Groups.

Under our Privia Medical Group mu odel, Privia Physicians join the Medical Group in their geographic market as an owner of the
Medical Group. We own a majoa rity interest in certain of our Medical Groups, with Privia Physicians collectively owning a minority
interest, and we own no interest in certain other Non-Owned Medical Groups. In those markets in which state regulations do not allow
us to own Medical Groups, the Non-Owned Medical Groups may be owned by the Privia Physicians or owned indirectly by a licensed
physician holding a Privia leadership position, otherwise referred to as a Friendly Medical Group. Privia Physicians furnish healthcare
services through our Medical Groups and continue to own their Affiff liated Practices, which provide certain services to the Medical
Groups, such as use of space, non-physician staffing, equipment and supplu ies.

We provide management services to the Medical Groupsu through a local MSO, which provides Medical Groups with access to VBC
opportunities either directly or through Privia-owned ACOs. We have national committees that distribute quality guidance, and we
employ Chief Medical Offiff cers who provide clinical oversight and direction over the clinical affaff irs of the Owned Medical Groups.
Additionally, we hold the provider contracts, maintain the patient records, set reimbursement rates, and negotiate payer contracts on
behalf of the Owned Medical Groups.

In some instances, we also move into and expand in new and existing markets through our Privia Care Partners model, which offers an
affiff liation model to providers who are looking solely for VBC solutions. For those practices, we furniff sh population health services,
reporting and analytics, along with certain management.

GAAP Financial Measures

• Revenue was $1.74 billion, $1.66 billion and $1.36 billion forff the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

• Operating income (loss) was $17.0 million, $20.6 million and $(19.1) million forff the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023 and 2022, respectively; and

• Net income (loss) attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc. was $14.4 million, $23.1 million and $(8.6) million forff the
years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

Key Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures

• Practice Collections was $2.97 billion, $2.84 billion and $2.42 billion forff the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, respectively;

• Care Margin was $403.9 million, $359.2 million and $305.6 million forff the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, respectively;

• Platforff m Contribution was $195.6 million, $173.5 million and $148.5 million forff the years ended December 31, 2024,
2023 and 2022, respectively;

• Adjusted EBITDA was $90.5 million, $72.2 million and $60.9 million forff the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

See “Key Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures” forff more information as to how we define and calculate Implemented
Providers, Attributed Lives, Practice Collections, Care Margin, Platform Contribution, Platform Contribution Margin, Adjud sted
EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin, and forff a reconciliation of gross profit, thff e most comparabla e GAAP measure, to Care
Margin, gross profit,ff the most comparabla e GAAP measure, to Platform Contribution, and net income (loss), the most comparable
GAAP measure, to Adjud sted EBITDA.
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Our Revenue

We recognize revenue from multiple stakeholders, including health care consumers, health insurers, employers, providers and health
systems. Our revenue includes (i) FFS revenue generated froff m providing healthcare services to patients through Privia Providers of
Owned Medical Groups or administrative fees coff llected for providing administrative services to Non-Owned Medical Groupsu , (ii)
VBC revenue collected on behalf of our providers, primarily capitated revenue, shared savings (including surplus payments, shared
savings, total cost of care budget payments and similar payments) and PMPM feesff (including care management feesff , management
services fees, care coordination fees and all other similar administrative feesff ), and (iii) other revenue from additional services, such as
concierge services, virtual visits, virtual scribes and coding.

FFS Revenue

We generate FFS-patient care revenue when we collect reimbursements forff FFS medical services provided by Privia Providers. Our
agreements with our providers have a multi-year term length and we have historically experienced a 96% provider retention rate, both
of which lead to a highly predictable and recurring revenue model. Our FFS contracts with payer partners typically contain annual rate
inflators and enhanced commercial FFS rates given our scale in each of our markets. As a result of receiving these rate inflatoff rs and
enhancements, if we continue to be successfulff in expanding our provider base, we expect revenue will grow year-over-year in absolutea
dollars. In addition, in our FFS-patient care revenue, we include collections generated froff m ancillary services such as clinical
labora atory,rr imaging and pharmacy operations. We also generate FFS-administrative services revenue by providing administration and
management services to medical groups which are not owned or consolidated by us. FFS-patient care revenue represented 66.0%,
58.9% and 64.1% of total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively. FFS-administrative services
revenue represented 7.2%, 6.8% and 7.0% of total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

VBC Revenue

Over time, we create incremental value for our prff ovider partners by enabling them to succeed in VBC arrangements. We generate
VBC revenue when our providers are reimbursed through traditional FFS Medicare, MSSP, Medicare Advantage, commercial payers
and other existing and emerging direct payer and employer contracting programs. Given recent regulatory arr nd utilization headwinds in
Medicare Advantage, during the first quarter of 2024, the Company renegotiated certain capitation agreements for more favff orable
contract structurt es. The revenue is primarily collected in the forff m of (i) Capia tated revenue earned by providing healthcare service to
Medicare Advantage attributed beneficiaries forff a definff ed group ou f services including profesff sional, institutional and pharmacy through
a contract that is typically known as an “at-risk contract”, (ii) Shared savings earned based on improved quality and lower cost of care
for our attributed lives in VBC incentive arrangements and (iii) Care management fees to cover costs of services typically not
reimbursed under traditional FFS payment models, including population management, care coordination, advanced technology and
analytics. VBC revenue represented 26.3%, 33.8% and 28.5% of total revenue for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

Othett r Revenue

The remainder of our revenue is derived froff m leveraging our existing base of providers and patients to deliver value-oriented services
such as virtuat l visits, virtual scribes and coding. Other revenue represented 0.5% of total revenue for the years ended December 31,
2024 and 2023, respectively, and 0.4% for the years ended December 31, 2022.

Key Factors Affeff cting Our Perforff mance

Addidd tioii n of No ewNN Providersdd

Our abia lity to increase our provider base will enable us to deliver finff ancial growth as our providers generate both our FFS and VBC
revenue. Our existing provider relationships and market share provides us with significant opportunity to grow in both existing and
new geographies, and we believe the number of providers joining Privia is a key indicator of the market’s recognition of the
attractiveness of our platform to our providers, patients and payers. We intend to increase our provider base in existing and new
markets by adding new practices and assisting our existing practices with recruir ting new providers, using our in-market and national
sales and marketing teams. As we add providers to the Privia Platforff m, we expect them to contribute incremental economics as we
leverage our existing brand and infraff structurt e, both at the corporate and in-market levels.

Addidd tioii n of No ewNN Patients

Our abia lity to add new patients to our provider base in existing and new markets will also enable us to deliver revenue growth in both
our FFS and VBC contracts. We believe the number of attributed patient lives in VBC programs is a key driver of our VBC revenue
growth. Our branding and marketing strategies to drive growth in our practices have continued to result in increased engagement with
new and existing patients. We believe our continued success in growing the visibility of the Privia brand will result in increased
patient panels per provider and contribute incremental revenue in both FFS and VBC for our practices.

Expanxx sion to New MarMM kerr ts

Based upon ouru experience to date, we believe Privia can succeed in all reimbursement environments and payment models. The data
we collected from older provider cohorts consistently suggest that we improve their performance in both FFS and VBC metrics over
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time and inforff m our expectations for our new markets. We believe our in-market operating strucr ture and abia lity to serve providers
wherever they are on their transition to VBC can benefit physicians and providers throughout the U.S. and that our solution is
applicable across all 50 states. We enter a market with an asset-light operating model and employ a disciplined, uniform approach to
market structurt e and development. We partner with market leading medical groups and health systems to forff m anchor relationships
and align other independent, affiliated, or employed providers into a single-TIN medical group. Our business model also gives us
flexibility for futurff e, incremental growth through the acquisition of minority or majority stakes in our practices and opening de-novo,
fully-owned sites of care focusff ed on Medicare Advantage and direct contracting models.

During 2023, the Company entered four neff w markets through partnerships or affiff liations with clinically integrated networks, health
systems and independent group practices in Connecticut, Ohio, Washington state and South Carolina.

In November 2024, the Company announced it had entered into the Indiana market through the acquisition of an independent group
practice, renamed Privia Medical Group Indiana, LLC (“PMG IN”), whereby Privia acquired majority ownership in PMG IN.

Providerdd Satisfas ctiott n and Retentiontt

Privia Providers have high satisfactff ion with their overall perforff mance on our platform, and we strive to continuously improve provider
well-being and patient satisfaction. Our percentage of collections model combined with high patient and provider satisfaction results in
90%+ Practice Collections predictabia lity on a rolling twelve month forff ward basis. We believe these metrics demonstrate the stability
of our provider base and the appea al to prospective providers and patients of our platform.

Payera Contratt cts att nd Abilityii to Move Markets ttt o Vtt BCVV

Our FFS and VBC revenue is dependent upon our contracts and relationships with payers. We partner with a large and varied set of
payer groups nationally and in each of our markets to forff m provider networks and to lower the overall cost of care, and we strucr ture
bespoke contracts to help both providers and payers achieve their objectives in a mutually aligned manner. Maintaining, supporu ting
and increasing the number of these contracts and relationships, particularly as we enter new markets, is important for our long-term
success. We typically enter into multiyear contracts with our Medical Groups, Privia Physicians, health system or hospital partners,
ACO participants and payer customers, which often have a stated initial term of three years and automatically renew forff successive
one-year terms. From time to time, we may renegotiate or attempt to renegotiate our payer contracts in the ordinary course of business
prior to the expiration of their stated terms. If the counterpar rties faiff l to renew their contracts, renew their contracts uponu less favorable
terms or at lower fee levels or faiff l to utilize additional products and services obtained froff m us, or if we fail to renegotiate contracts
with our counterpar rties on favff orable terms or at all, our revenue may decline and our future revenue growth may be constrained.

Our abia lity to work within each geographic market as it evolves in its shift tff owards VBC, with our experience working in all
reimbursement environments, enables providers to accelerate and succeed in their transition. Our model is aligned with our payer
partners, as we have demonstrated improved patient outcomes while driving incremental revenue growth. We intend to accelerate the
move towards the adoption of VBC reimbursement in each market in current and emerging payer programs. To do so, we will need to
continue enhancing our VBC capabilities and executing on initiatives to deliver next generation access, supeu rior quality metrics and
lower cost of care.

As of December 31, 2024, the total number of Privia-owned ACOs is nine, serving beneficiaff ries across the District of Columbia and
eleven states, including California, Connecticut, Florida, Georgia, Marylrr and, Montana, North Carolina, Tennessee, Texas, Virginia,
and Washington state.

During 2022 and 2023, we entered into capitated payer arrangements. Capia tated revenue is generated through what is typically known
as an “at-risk contract.” At-risk capitation refers to a model in which the Company is entitled to fixff ed monthly feesff from the third-
party payer in exchange for providing healthcare services to attributed beneficiaries in Medicare Advantage plans. The fees are
typically based on a percentage of the definff ed premium that payers receive from CMS. The Company is responsible for providing or
paying for the cost of healthcare services required by those attributed beneficiaries. At-risk capitated fees arff e recorded gross in
revenues because the Company is acting as a principal in arranging for, providing, and controlling the managed healthcare services
provided to the attributed beneficiaries. Given recent regulatory arr nd utilization headwinds in Medicare Advantage, during the first
quarter of 2024, the Company renegotiated certain capitation agreements for more favff orable contract structurt es.

Components of Revenue

Our FFS revenue is primarily dependent upon the size of our provider base, payer contracted rates and patient volume. Our abia lity to
maintain or improve pricing levels in our contracts with payers and patient volume for our provideff rs will impact our results of
operations. In addition to increasing our provider base and contracted rates over time, we also seek to increase patient volume by
demonstrating the ability to provide a better patient experience that leads to higher retention rates and drives referrals to preferff red,
high quality and value-based providers. Our VBC revenue is primarily dependent upon the number of attributed patients in our VBC
arrangements, risk levels of our payer contracts, and effecff tive management of our patients’ total cost of care. As we grow our provider
base, we also expect to increase our total number of attributed patients in existing and new markets. In addition, we intend to increase
the risk levels of our value-based programs as we seek a higher revenue opportunity on a per patient basis over time.
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Investments itt n Gii roGG wth

We expect to continue focusing on long-term growth through investments in our sales and marketing, our technology-enabled
platform, and our operations. In addition, as we continue our effortff s to move markets toward VBC, we expect to continue making
additional investments in operations for an expanded suite of clinical capabilities to manage our patient population.

We launched Privia Care Partners on January 1, 2022 to offeff r a more flexible affiff liation model for provideff rs who do not desire to join
one of our medical groups. This model aggregates providers in certain of our existing markets as well as new markets who are looking
solely for VBC solutions without the necessity of changing EHR providers. We furniff sh population health services, reporting and
analytics to such providers along with a menu of management services from which providers may choose. During 2023 and 2024,
several Privia Care Partners’ providers transitioned to our Privia Medical Group model, which demonstrates the fleff xibility of our
operating model and technology platform, as well as the ability to support physicians wherever they are in their transition value-based
care.

Key Metrics and Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We review a number of operating and finff ancial metrics, including the folff lowing key metrics and non-GAAP financial measures, to
evaluate our business, measure our performance, identify tff rends affeff cting our business, formulate our business plans, and make
strategic decisions.

Key Me etMM ritt cs
For the Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

Implemented Providers (as of end of period) 4,789 4,305 3,606
Attributed Lives (in thousands) (as of end of period) 1,256 1,120 856
Practice Collections (1) ($ in millions) $ 2,968.0 $ 2,839.0 $ 2,424.1

(1) We definff e Practice Collections as the total collections from all practices in all markets and all sources of reimbursement (FFS, VBC and other) that we receive for delivering care and providing our

platform and associated services. Practice Collections differ froff m revenue by including collections from Non-Owned Medical Groups.

Implm emenll ted ProPP viders

We define Implemented Providers as the total of all service profesff sionals on Privia Health’s platform at the end of a given period who
are credentialed by Privia Health and bill for medical services, in both Owned and Non-Owned Medical Groups during that period.
This includes, but is not limited to, physicians, physician assistants, and nurse practitioners. We believe that growth in the number of
Implemented Providers is a key indicator of the performance of our business and expected revenue growth. This growth depends, in
part, on our ability to successfulff ly add new practices in existing markets and expand into new markets. The number of Implemented
Providers increased 11.2% between December 31, 2023 and 2024 mainly due to organic growth in our healthcare delivery brr usiness as
well as entrance into the Indiana market. Implemented Providers increased 19.4% between 2022 and 2023, due to organic growth in
our healthcare delivery brr usiness as well as entrance into new markets.

Attribtt utedtt Lives

We define Attributed Lives as any patient that a payer deems attributed to Privia to deliver care as part of a value-based care
arrangement through a provider of primary care services as of the end of a particular period. The number of Attributed Lives is an
important measure that impacts the amount of VBC revenue we receive. Attributed Lives increased 12.1% between December 31,
2023 and 2024 due to organic growth in all markets. Attributed Lives increased 30.8% between 2022 and 2023, due primarily to our
entrance into the Connecticut and Washington state markets as well as organic growth.

Practice ColCC lell ctiott ns

We define Practice Collections as the total collections from all practices in all markets and all sources of reimbursement (FFS, VBC
and other) that we receive for delivering care and providing our platform and associated services. Practice Collections differff from
revenue by adding collections from Non-Owned Medical Groups both in FFS and VBC arrangements. FFS arrangements accounted
for 83.2%, 76.5% and 79.1% of our practice collections for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively, while
VBC accounted for 16.6%, 23.2% and 20.6% of practice collections for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

Practice Collections increased 4.5% for the year ended December 31, 2024 when compared to the same period in 2023 due mainly to
organic growth of our healthcare delivery brr usiness and our entrances into the Ohio, South Carolina, Washington state and Indiana
markets and increased 17.1% between 2022 and 2023 due mainly to organic growth of our healthcare delivery business, our at-risk
Capia tated revenue contracts and entrance into the Connecticut and Washington state markets.
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Non-GAAP Financii ial MeaMM sures

In addition to our financial results determined in accordance with GAAP, we believe Care Margin, Platforff m Contribution, Platform
Contribution Margin, Adjud sted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin are usefulff as non-GAAP measures to investors as these are
metrics used by management in evaluating our operating performance and in assessing the health of our business. We use Care
Margin, Platforff m Contribution, Platform Contribution Margin, Adjud sted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin to evaluate our
ongoing operations and forff internal planning and forff ecasting purposes. We believe that these non-GAAP financial measures, when
taken together with the corresponding GAAP financial measures, provide meaningful supplu emental information regarding our
performance by excluding certain items that may not be indicative of our business, results of operations or outlook.

However, non-GAAP financial inforff mation is presented for supplemental informational purposes only, has limitations as an analytical
tool and should not be considered in isolation or as a subsu titute for finff ancial information presented in accordance with GAAP. In
addition, other companies, including companies in our industry,rr may calculate similarly-titled non-GAAP measures differenff tly or may
use other measures to evaluate their performance, all of which could reducd e the usefulneff ss of our non-GAAP financial measure as a
tool for comparison. A reconciliation is provided below for our non-GAAP financial measures to the most directly comparable
financial measure stated in accordance with GAAP. Investors are encouraged to review the related GAAP financial measures and the
reconciliation of non-GAAP financial measures to their most directly comparable GAAP financial measures, and not to rely on any
single finff ancial measure to evaluate our business.

For the Years Ended December 31,
(amounts in thousands, except forff percentages) 2024 2023 2022

Care Margin 1 ($) $ 403,853 $ 359,164 $ 305,620
Platform Contribution 1 ($) $ 195,634 $ 173,481 $ 148,540
Platform Contribution Margin 1 (%) 48.4% 48.3% 48.6%
Adjud sted EBITDA 1 ($) $ 90,455 $ 72,228 $ 60,852
Adjud sted EBITDA Margin 1 (%) 22.4% 20.1% 19.9%
1. See below for more inforff mation as to how we define and calculate Care Margin, Platforff m Contribution, Platform Contribution
Margin, Adjusted EBITDA and Adjud sted EBITDA Margin and forff a reconciliation of Gross Profit, thff e most comparabla e GAAP
measure, to Care Margin, Gross Profit thff e most comparabla e GAAP measure, to Platform Contribution, and net income (loss), the
most comparable GAAP measure, to Adjud sted EBITDA.

Care Margin

We define Care Margin as Gross Profit excluding amortization of intangible assets. Gross Profit isff defined as total revenue less
provider expenses and amortization of intangible assets. Our Care Margin generated froff m FFS revenue is contractuat l and recurring in
nature, and primarily based on an individually negotiated percentage of collections for each practice that joins Privia. Our Care Margin
generated froff m VBC revenue is based on a percentage of care management fees and shared savings collected. We view Care Margin
as all of the dollars availabla e forff us to manage our business, including providing administrative support to our practices, investing in
sales and marketing to attract new providers to the Privia Platforff m, and supporting the organization through our corporate
infrastructurt e. We expect Care Margin will grow year-over-year in absoluta e dollars as we continue to expand our provider base. We
would also expect our care management and shared savings economics in our VBC arrangements to improve on a per patient basis as
we manage towards lower total cost of care for ourff Attributed Lives and move towards higher risk VBC arrangements over time. Care
Margin increased 12.4% for the year ended December 31, 2024 when compared to the same period in 2023 and increased 17.5%
between 2023 and 2022, in each case due to organic growth of our medical practice business. As a percentage of revenue, Care Margin
was 23.3% for the year ended December 31, 2024 an increase from 21.7% for the same period in 2023 due to renegotiated certain at-
risk capitation agreements for a more favorable contract structurt e which is reflected on a net basis under shared savings starting in
2024 and a decrease froff m 22.5% in 2022, due to the addition of the at-risk capitation arrangements durd ing 2022 and 2023 resulting in
higher revenues.

In addition to our financial results determined in accordance with GAAP, we believe Care Margin, a non-GAAP measure, is usefulff in
evaluating our operating performance. We use Care Margin to evaluate our ongoing operations and forff internal planning and
forecasting purposr es. We believe that this non-GAAP financial measure, when taken together with the corresponding GAAP financial
measures, provides meaningfulff supplu emental inforff mation regarding our performance by excluding certain items that may not be
indicative of our business, results of operations or outlook. In particular, we believe that the use of Care Margin is helpful to our
investors as it is a metric used by management in assessing the health of our business and our operating performance.
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The folff lowing tabla e provides a reconciliation of gross profit,ff the most closely comparable GAAP financial measure, to Care Margin:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(unaudited and amounts in thousands) 2024 2023 2022

Revenue $ 1,736,390 $ 1,657,737 $ 1,356,660
Provider expense (1,332,537) (1,298,573) (1,051,040)
Amortization of intangible assets (6,164) (5,359) (3,351)
Gross Profit $ 397,689 $ 353,805 $ 302,269
Amortization of intangible assets 6,164 5,359 3,351
Care margin $ 403,853 $ 359,164 $ 305,620

Platll fott rm Contritt bui tion

We define Platform Contribution as Gross Profit,ff excluding amortization of intangible assets, less Cost of platformff and excluding
stock-based compensation expense included in Cost of platforff m. The folff lowing tabla e provides a reconciliation of gross profitff , the most
closely comparabla e GAAP financial measure, to Platform Contribution. We consider Platform Contribution to be an important
measure to monitor our performance, specific to pricing of our services, direct costs of delivering care, and cost of our platform and
associated services. As a provider spends a longer time on the Privia Platforff m, we expect the Platforff m Contribution froff m that provider
to increase both in terms of absolute dollars as well as a percent of Care Margin. We expect that this increase will be driven by
improving per provider revenue economics over time as well as our ability to generate leverage on our in-market infraff structure costs.
Platform Contribution increased 12.8% for the year ended December 31, 2024 when compared to the same period in 2023 and
increased 16.8% between 2023 and 2022, in each case due to organic growth of our medical practice business and new market entries.

The folff lowing tabla e provides a reconciliation of gross profitff , the most closely comparabla e GAAP financial measure, to Platform
Contribution:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(unaudited and amounts in thousands) 2024 2023 2022

Revenue $ 1,736,390 $ 1,657,737 $ 1,356,660
Provider expense (1,332,537) (1,298,573) (1,051,040)
Amortization of intangible assets (6,164) (5,359) (3,351)
Gross Profit $ 397,689 $ 353,805 $ 302,269
Amortization of intangible assets 6,164 5,359 3,351
Cost of platform (227,000) (197,663) (170,838)
Stock-based compensation(1) 18,781 11,980 13,758
Platform Contribution $ 195,634 $ 173,481 $ 148,540
(1) Amount represents stock-based compensation expense included under Cost of platforff m.

Platll fott rm Contritt bui tion MarMM ginr

We define Platform Contribution Margin as Platforff m Contribution as a percentage of Care Margin. We consider Platform Contribution
Margin to be an important measure to monitor our perforff mance, specific to pricing of our services, direct costs of delivering care, and
cost of our platform and associated services. As a provider spends a longer time on the Privia Platforff m, we expect the Platformff
Contribution froff m that provider to increase both in terms of absolute dollars as well as a percent of Care Margin. We expect that this
increase will be driven by improving per provider revenue economics over time as well as our ability to generate operating leverage on
our in-market infraff structurt e costs. Platforff m Contribution Margin was 48.4% for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to
48.3% during the same period in 2023 and 48.6% in 2022. We continue to make strategic investments to provide better service to both
our patients and physicians at a pace slower than the increase in revenue.

In addition to our financial results determined in accordance with GAAP, we believe Platform Contribution and Platform Contribution
Margin, each, a non-GAAP measure, are useful in evaluating our operating performance. We use Platforff m Contribution to evaluate
our ongoing operations and forff internal planning and forff ecasting purposes. We believe that these non-GAAP financial measures, when
taken together with the corresponding GAAP financial measures, provide meaningful supplu emental information regarding our
performance by excluding certain items that may not be indicative of our business, results of operations or outlook. In particular, we
believe that the use of Platform Contribution is helpful to our investors as they are metrics used by management in assessing the health
of our business and our operating performance.
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Adjudd stedtt EBITDA

We define Adjud sted EBITDA as net income (loss) excluding interest income, interest expense, non-controlling interest expense /
income, depreciation and amortization, stock-based compensation, severance, other one time or non-recurring expenses, employer
taxes on equity vesting/exercises and the provision for (benefit froff m) income taxes. We include Adjud sted EBITDA because it is an
important measure on which our management assesses and believes investors should assess our operating performance. We consider
Adjud sted EBITDA to be an important measure because it helps illustrate underlying trends in our business and our historical operating
performance on a more consistent basis. Adjud sted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool including: (i) Adjusted EBITDA does
not reflect the impact of stock-based compensation expense, and (ii) Adjud sted EBITDA does not reflect interest expense on our debt or
the cash requirements necessary to service interest or principal payments. Adjusted EBITDA increased 25.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2024, when compared to the same period in 2023 due to organic growth of our medical practice business and growth in
Attributed Lives and increased 18.7% between 2022 and 2023 due to organic growth of our medical practice business, new market
entry arr nd a focus onff managing the investment in new expenses.

Adjudd stedtt EBITDA MDD arMM ginr

We define Adjud sted EBITDA Margin as Adjud sted EBITDA as a percentage of Care Margin. We included Adjusted EBITDA Margin
because it is an important measure on which our management assesses and believes investors should assess our operating
performance. We consider Adjud sted EBITDA Margin to be an important measure because it helps illustrate underlying trends in our
business and our historical operating performance on a more consistent basis. Adjud sted EBITDA Margin was 22.4% for the year
ended December 31, 2024 an increase from 20.1% for the same period in 2023 due to organic growth of our medical practice business
and an increase froff m 19.9% in 2022, due to organic growth of our medical practice business, new market entry and a focus on
managing the investment in new expenses.

We believe that Adjud sted EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA Margin, when taken together with the corresponding GAAP financial
measures, provides meaningfulff supplu emental inforff mation regarding our performance by excluding certain items that may not be
indicative of our business, results of operations or outlook. In particular, we believe that the use of Adjud sted EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA Margin is helpful to our investors as they are metrics used by management in assessing the health of our business and our
operating performance.

The folff lowing tabla e provides a reconciliation of net income (loss) attributable to the Company, the most closely comparable GAAP
financial measure, to Adjud sted EBITDA:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(unaudited and amounts in thousands) 2024 2023 2022

Net income (loss) attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc. $ 14,385 $ 23,079 $ (8,585)
Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 2,659 (2,051) (3,479)
Provision for (benefit froff m) income taxes 10,826 7,993 (6,516)
Interest income, net (10,888) (8,372) (542)
Depreciation and amortization 7,268 6,533 4,571
Stock-based compensation 56,680 37,098 67,359
Other expenses(1) 9,525 7,948 8,044
Adjud sted EBITDA $ 90,455 $ 72,228 $ 60,852
(1) Other expenses include employer taxes on equity vesting/exercises, legal, severance and certain non-recurring costs.

Components of Results of Operations

Revenue

As noted above under “Our Revenue,” revenue is earned in three main categories: FFS revenue, VBC revenue and other revenue.

Operatintt g ExpeEE nses

Provider expendd ses

Provider expenses are amounts accruer d or payments made to physicians, hospitals and other service providers, including Privia
physicians, their related physician practices, and providers the Company has contracted with through payer partners. Those costs
include physician guaranteed payments and other required distributions pursuant to the service agreements as well as medical claims
costs forff services provided to attributed beneficiaries under at-risk Capia tated revenue arrangements forff which the Company is
financially responsible whether paid directly by the Company or indirectly by payers with whom the Company has contracted.
Provider expenses are recognized in the period in which services are provided.

53



Cost of platfot rm

Third-party EMR and practice management softwff are expenses are paid on a percentage of revenue basis, while we pay most of the
costs of our platform on a variabla e basis related to the number of implemented physicians we service. In addition, expenses contain
stock-based compensation related to employees that provide Cost of platform services, but exclude any depreciation and amortization
expense. As we continue to grow, we expect the cost of platforff m to continue to grow at a rate slower than the revenue growth rate.

Sales and marketkk ing

Sales and marketing expenses consist of employee-related expenses, including salaries, commissions, stock-based compensation, and
employee benefitsff costs, for all of our employees engaged in marketing, sales, community outreach, and sales support. In addition,
sales and marketing expenses also include central and community-based advertising to generate greater awareness, engagement, and
retention among our current and prospective patients as well as the infrastructurt e required to support all of our marketing efforts.

General and administrative

Corporate, general and administrative expenses include employee-related expenses, including salaries and related costs and stock-
based compensation, technology infrastructurt e, occupancu y costs, operations, clinical and quality supporu t, finance, legal, human
resources, and development departments.

Depre eciation and amortizaii tion expense

Depreciation and amortization expenses are primarily attributable to our capital investment and consist of fixff ed asset depreciation and
amortization of intangibles considered to have definite lives. We do not allocate depreciation and amortization expenses to other
operating expense categories.

Interest income, net

Interest income consists primarily of interest earned by the Company on bank balances, offset by interest expense (including deferred
financing costs) on any outstanding borrowings. See “Liquidity and Capital Resources—General and Note Payable.”

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2024 and 2023

The folff lowing tabla e sets forff th our consolidated statements of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023. A
detailed discussion of our 2022 financial condition and results of operations, and of 2023 year-over-year changes as compared to 2022,
can be found in “Item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K forff the year ended December 31, 2023, which was filed with the SEC on Februar ry 27, 2024.

For the Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023 Change ($) Change (%)

(in thousands)

Revenue $ 1,736,390 $ 1,657,737 $ 78,653 4.7 %
Operating expenses:

Provider expense 1,332,537 1,298,573 33,964 2.6 %
Cost of platform 227,000 197,663 29,337 14.8 %
Sales and marketing 26,446 24,732 1,714 6.9 %
General and administrative 126,157 109,587 16,570 15.1 %
Depreciation and amortization 7,268 6,533 735 11.3 %

Total operating expenses 1,719,408 1,637,088 82,320 5.0 %
Operating income 16,982 20,649 (3,667) (17.8)%

Interest income, net 10,888 8,372 2,516 30.1 %
Income before provision for income taxes 27,870 29,021 (1,151) (4.0)%
Provision for income taxes 10,826 7,993 2,833 35.4 %
Net income 17,044 21,028 (3,984) (18.9)%
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 2,659 (2,051) 4,710 (229.6)%
Net income attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc. $ 14,385 $ 23,079 $ (8,694) (37.7)%
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Revenue

The folff lowing tabla e presents our revenues disaggregated by source:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in Thousands) 2024 2023 Change ($) Change (%)

FFS-patient care $ 1,146,156 $ 976,688 $ 169,468 17.4 %
FFS-administrative services 125,431 113,154 12,277 10.8 %
Capia tated revenue 212,987 338,729 (125,742) (37.1)%
Shared savings 179,202 170,143 9,059 5.3 %
Care management fees (PMPM) 64,066 50,519 13,547 26.8 %
Other revenue 8,548 8,504 44 0.5 %
Total Revenue $ 1,736,390 $ 1,657,737 $ 78,653 4.7 %

Revenue was $1.74 billion for the year ended December 31, 2024, an increase from $1.66 billion forff the year ended December 31,
2023. Key drivers of this revenue growth include: FFS–pa– tient care revenue and FFS-administrative services, which increased
$169.5 million and $12.3 million, primarily attributable to the addition of new providers and an increase in visit volume; an increase in
PMPM revenue of $13.5 million primarily due to increased Attributed Lives; shared savings revenue, which increased $9.1 million
primarily due to more Attributed Lives in Medicare programs as well as continued strong estimated performance in our value based
care programs in the aggregate. The decrease in capitated revenue of $(125.7) million is dued to renegotiation of capitated arrangements
for a more favorable contract structurt e which is now reflected on a net basis under shared savings starting with the firff st quarter of
2024.

Operatintt g ExpeEE nses

For the Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in Thousands) 2024 2023 Change ($) Change (%)

Operating Expenses:
Provider expense $ 1,332,537 $ 1,298,573 $ 33,964 2.6 %
Cost of platform 227,000 197,663 29,337 14.8 %
Sales and marketing 26,446 24,732 1,714 6.9 %
General and administrative 126,157 109,587 16,570 15.1 %
Depreciation and amortization expense 7,268 6,533 735 11.3 %
Total operating expenses $ 1,719,408 $ 1,637,088 $ 82,320 5.0 %

Provider expendd ses

Provider expenses were $1.33 billion forff the year ended December 31, 2024, an increase froff m $1.30 billion durd ing the same period in
2023. This increase was driven primarily by higher FFS-patient care revenue and growth in Implemented Providers.

Cost of platfot rm

Cost of platform expenses were $227.0 million forff the year ended December 31, 2024, an increase from $197.7 million durd ing the
same period in 2023. The increase was driven by an increase in salaries and benefitff s of $11.2 million related to continued growth, an
increase in stock-based compensation expense of $6.8 million, primarily related to an increase in stock-based awards granted in 2024
compared to 2023, an increase in platform costs of $6.5 million due to an increase in Implemented Providers and an increase in
consulting costs of $3.3 million dued to continued growth and market expansion.

Sales and marketkk ing

Sales and marketing expenses were $26.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, an increase froff m $24.7 million durd ing the
same period in 2023. The increase was driven primarily by an increase in salaries and benefits of $1.0 million.

General and administrative

General and administrative expenses were $126.2 million forff the year ended December 31, 2024, an increase from $109.6 million
during the same period in 2023. The increase was driven by the increase of $11.2 million in stock-based compensation expense, which
is primarily related to an additional quarter of expense dued to timing of the 2023 equity awards being granted during the second
quarter of 2023 compared to 2024 equity awards being granted during the first quarter of 2024, an increase in salaries and benefits of
$1.7 million and an increase in profesff sional services of $1.1 million related to additional consulting services.
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Depre eciation and amortizaii tion expense

Depreciation and amortization expenses were $7.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, an increase from $6.5 million
during the same period in 2023. This increase was primarily driven by amortization of intangible assets related to a new acquisition in
2024.

Interest income, net

Interest income was $10.9 million forff the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to $8.4 million durd ing the same period in 2023.
Interest income is primarily based on the cash balance held in interest bearing accounts.

Provision forff income taxesaa

The provision for income taxes was $10.8 million forff the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to a provision for income taxes of
$8.0 million durd ing the same period in 2023. The change was primarily attributable to reduced tax benefitsff stemming from share-based
compensation related to stock option exercises and restricted stock unit vesting events.

Net income (lo(( ss) attributable to non-contrott lling interests

Net income attributable to non-controlling interests was $2.7 million forff the year ended December 31, 2024, an increase compared to a
(loss) of $(2.1) million during the same period in 2023. The change is primarily related to the ramp up of new markets entered and
repurchase of non-controlling interests during 2023.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General

To date, we have finff anced our operations principally through sale of our equity, payments received froff m various payers and through
borrowings under the Credit Facilities. As of December 31, 2024, we had cash and cash equivalents of $491.1 million. Our cash and
cash equivalents primarily consist of highly liquid investments in money market fundsff and cash.

We believe that our cash and cash equivalents, together with cash flows froff m operations, will provide adequate resources to fund ourff
short-term and long-term operating and capital needs. Our assessment of the period of time through which our financial resources will
be adequate to supporu t our operations is a forff ward-looking statement and involves risks and uncertainties. Our actuat l results could
vary because of, aff nd our future capital requirements will depend on many factff ors, including our growth rate, and the timing and extent
of spending to increase our sales and marketing activities. We may in the futurff e enter into arrangements to acquire or invest in
complementary brr usinesses, services and technologies, including intellectuat l property rights. We have based this estimate on
assumptions that may prove to be wrong, and we could use our availabla e capital resources sooner than we currently expect. We may in
the futurff e seek a credit facff ility with a finff ancial institution forff long term capital strucrr ture flexibility, and may be required to seek
additional equity or debt financing. In the event that additional finff ancing is required froff m outside sources, we may not be abla e to raise
it on terms acceptabla e to us or at all. If we are unable to raise additional capital when desired, or if we cannot expand our operations or
otherwise capitalize on our business opportunities because we lack suffiff cient capital, our business, results of operations, and financial
condition would be adversely affecff ted.

Indebtedtt nedd ss

See Note 9 “Debt” for discussion on our Credit Facilities.

Cash Flows Overview

The Company’s cash requirements within the next twelve months include provider liabia lities, accounts payable and accrued liabia lities,
purchase commitments and other obligations. We expect the cash required to meet these obligations to be primarily generated through
cash floff ws from current operations; cash availabla e for geneff ral corporate use; and the realization of current assets, such as accounts
receivable. Based on current and anticipated levels of operations, we anticipate that net cash provided by operating activities, together
with the availabla e cash on hand at December 31, 2024, should be adequate to meet anticipated cash requirements forff the short term
(next 12 months) and long term (beyond 12 months).
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The folff lowing tabla e presents a summary of our consolidated cash floff ws from operating, investing and financing activities forff the
periods indicated:

For the Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

(in thousands)

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Data:
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 109,282 $ 80,785 $ 47,196
Net cash used in investing activities (11,978) (42,971) (104)
Net cash provided by (used in) finff ancing activities 4,334 3,705 (19,677)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents $ 101,638 $ 41,519 $ 27,415

Operatintt g Activitiestt

Net cash provided by operating activities was $109.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to $80.8 million forff the
same period in 2023. Significant changes impacting net cash provided by operating activities forff the year ended December 31, 2024
compared to the same period in 2023 were as follows:

• An increase of $32.9 million in provider liabia lity for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to an increase of
$113.4 million durd ing the same period in 2023, a differeff nce of $(80.5) million. The change is primarily dued to a decrease
in provider expense related to renegotiation of at-risk capitated arrangements durd ing the year ended December 31, 2024.

• An increase of $19.9 million in accounts payable and accrued expenses for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared
to the same period in 2023 of $5.0 million, a differeff nce of $14.9 million. The change is primarily driven by organic
growth and entrance into new markets.

• A decrease of $(19.8) million in accounts receivable, for the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the same period
in 2023 of $(96.9) million, a differeff nce of $77.1 million. The change is primarily driven by the renegotiation of at-risk
capitated arrangements durd ing the year ended December 31, 2024.

• A decrease in net income of $(4.0) million compared to the same period in 2023. Net income was $17.0 million durd ing
the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to the income of $21.0 million during the year ended December 31, 2023,
primarily driven by the increase in stock-based compensation expense durd ing the year ended December 31, 2024 when
compared to the same period in 2023.

Investing An ctivitiestt

Net cash used in investing activities was $12.0 million forff the year ended December 31, 2024 compared to $43.0 million durd ing the
same period in 2023, primarily due to Privia investing in three new markets during 2023.

Financii ing Activitiestt

Net cash provided by finff ancing activities was $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, compared to $3.7 million forff the
same period in 2023. This increase is primarily due to a decrease in proceeds froff m stock options exercised durd ing the year ended
December 31, 2024, partially offset by the repurchase of non-controlling interest in 2023.

Comparison of Fiscii al 2023 to Fiscii al 2022

A detailed discussion of our 2022 to 2023 operations and liquidity and capital resources has been omitted froff m this Form 10-K, but
may be foundff in “Item 7—Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K forff the year ended December 31, 2023, which was filed with the SEC on Februar ry 27, 2024.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Leases. The Company leases offiff ce space under various operating lease agreements. The initial terms of these leases range
from 3 to 9 years and generally provide for periodic rent increases, renewal, and termination operations. Total rent expense under
operating leases was $2.8 million forff the years ended December 31, 2024 and $2.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2023 and
2022, respectively.

Off Bff alance SheSS et Obligati ions.We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangements as of December 31, 2024.

Commitments and Contingencies. See Note 13 “Commitments and Contingencies” for furff ther discussion on our commitments and
contingencies.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of these consolidated
financial statements requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affeff ct the reported amounts of assets, liabia lities, revenue and
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expenses, and related disclosures. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other factff ors that we believe are
reasonable under the circumstances. We evaluate our estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Actual results may diffeff r fromff
these estimates. To the extent that there are material differeff nces between these estimates and our actuat l results, our future financial
statements will be affeff cted.

While our significant accounting policies are described in greater detail in Note 1, “Organization and Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies,” to our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report, we believe that the following
accounting policies are those most critical to the judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial
statements.

Revenue Recogno ition

Revenue is recognized when a customer obtains control of promised goods or services, in an amount that reflects the consideration
which the entity expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. The Company determines revenue recognition through the
following five steps:

i. Identify tff he contract(s) with a customer;

ii. Identify tff he performance obligations in the contract;

iii. Determine the transaction price;

iv. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

v. Recognize revenue as the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

FFS revenue

FFS-pSS atient care

Our FFS-patient care revenue is primarily generated froff m providing healthcare services to patients. Providing medical services to
patients represents our performance obligation under third-party payer agreements, and accordingly, the transaction price is allocated
entirely to that one performance obligation. We recognize revenue as services are rendered and approved by the Privia Providers,
which is typically a single day for each service. We receive payment for services from third-party payers, as well as froff m patients who
have health insurance, but are also finff ancially responsible for some or all of the service in the forff m of co-pays, coinsurance or
deductibles. Patients who do not have health insurance are required to pay for their services in full.

FFS-patient care revenue is reported net of provisions for contractuat l allowances from third-party payers and patients. We have certain
agreements with third-party payers that provide for reimbursement at amounts differeff nt from our standard billing rates. The
differences between the estimated reimbursement rates and the standard billing rates are accounted for as contractuat l adjustments,
which are deducted froff m gross revenue to arrive at FFS-patient care revenue. We determine our estimate of implicit price concessions
based on our historical collection experience with classes of patients using a portfolff io approach as a practical expedient to account for
patient contracts as collective groups rather than individually. The finff ancial statement effects of using this practical expedient are not
materially different from an individual contract approach. Subsequent changes to the estimate of the transaction price (determined on a
portfolff io basis when appla icable) are generally recorded as adjud stments to revenue in the period of the change. For the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, changes in the Company’s estimates of implicit price concessions and contractuat l adjustments to
expected payments for performance obligations satisfied in prior periods were not significant.

FFS-aSS dministrative services

The Company’s FFS-administrative services business provides administration and management services pursuant to MSAs with Non-
Owned Medical Groups.

The Company’s MSAs with the Non-Owned Medical Groupsu range from 5 –20 years in durd ation and outline the terms and conditions
of the administration and management services to be provided, which includes RCM services such as billings and collections, as well
as other services, including, but not limited to, payer contracting, information technology services and accounting and treasury
services.

In certain MSAs, the Company is paid administrative feesff equal to the cost of supplyingu certain services as outlined in the MSAs, and
if applicable, a margin is added to the cost of certain services. The margin, if appla icable, is fixff ed based on the MSAs; however, the
cost of supplyingu certain services can fluctuate durd ing the life of the MSAs.

In certain MSAs, the Company is paid a percentage of net collections. The percentage is fixed per the MSAs; however, the net
collections can fluctuate durd ing the life off f the contract.

Under each MSA, there is a single performance obligation to provide a series of administration and management services required forff
the contract period. The Company believes that each Non-Owned Medical Group receives the management and administrative
services each day and has concluded that an output method is appropriate for recognizing administrative services revenue.
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Administrative fees aff re reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for the provision of administration and management services to Non-Owned Medical Groups. In addition, certain of our MSAs include
rebates to the customers in the event that certain conditions occur. The Company estimates the transaction price using the most likely
amount methodology and amounts are included in the net transaction price to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal
will not occur once any uncertainty associated with the variabla e consideration is subsequently resolved. Rebates of $1.8 million have
been recorded for the years ended December 31, 2024, and $2.7 million forff the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022,
respectively.

VBC revenue

The Company’s VBC business consists of its clinically integrated network and ACOs which bring together independent physician
practices within our medical groups to focus on sharing data, improving care coordination, and collabora ating on initiatives to improve
outcomes and lower healthcare spending. The Company has contracts with the U.S. federalff government and large payer organizations
that are multi-year in nature typically ranging from three to five years and is earned as folff lows: (1) Capia tated revenue (2) on a shared
savings basis and (3) Care management feesff on a per member per month basis.

Capia tated Revenue

Capia tated revenue consists of capia tation fees earff ned under contracts with various Medicare Advantage payers (“Payers”) in at-risk
capitation arrangements. The Company is entitled to monthly feesff to provide a definff ed range of healthcare services forff Medicare
Advantage health plan members (“attributed beneficiaries” or “attributed lives”) attributed to the Company’s contracted physicians
(typically primary care). Monthly fees arff e determined as a percentage of the premium payers receive from CMS for these attributed
beneficiaries. In at-risk arrangements, the Company generally accepts financial risk for beneff ficiaries attributed to its contracted
physicians and, thereforff e, is responsible for the cost of contracted healthcare services required by those beneficiaff ries in accordance
with the terms of each agreement. Fees are recorded gross in revenue because the Company is acting as a principal in coordinating and
controlling the range of services provided (other than clinical decisions) under its Capia tated revenue contracts with payers. Capitated
revenue contracts with payers are generally multi-year arrangements and have a single monthly stand ready performance obligation, as
defined by ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contrat cts wtt ith Ctt usCC tomers (“ASC 606”), to provide all aspects of necessary medical care to
members forff the contracted period. The Company recognizes revenue in the month in which the eligible beneficiary irr s entitled to
receive healthcare benefitff s durd ing the contract term.

The transaction price for the Company’s capitation contracts is a fixed percentage of premium per attributed life with periodic
adjud stment, as the monthly feeff s to which the Company are entitled are subju ect to periodic adjustments under CMS’s risk adjud stment
payment methodology. CMS deploys a risk adjustment model that determines premiums paid to all payers according to each attributed
life’ff s health statust and certain demographic factff ors. Under this risk adjustment methodology, CMS calculates the risk adjud sted
premium payment using diagnosis data from various settings. The Company and healthcare providers collect and submit diagnosis
data to payers (and ultimately to CMS) to be utilized in the determination of risk adjustments and such data is used by the Company to
estimate any adjustments to the Capia tated revenue earned that may increase or decrease revenue in subsu equent periods pursuant to
contractuat l terms. Such adjustments are estimated using the most likely amount methodology and amounts are only included in
revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue will not occur once any uncertainty is
resolved. Capitated revenue fees are also subject to adjud stment for incentives or penalties based on the achievement of certain quality
metrics definff ed in the Company’s contracts with payers. The Company recognizes incentive revenue as earned using the most likely
amount methodology and only to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue will not occur once any
uncertainty is resolved.

Neither the Company nor any of its affiff liates are a registered insurance company as state law in the states in which we operate do not
require such registration forff risk bearing providers.

Shared Savings

Under the shared savings basis, the Company is offereff d finff ancial incentives to increase its accountability for the cost, quality and
effiff ciency of the care provided to the population of attributed members. The Company is paid the finff ancial incentives when, for a
given twelve-month measurement period, its performance on quality of care and utilization meets or exceeds the standards set by the
payers as outlined in the contracts and when savings are achieved forff medical costs associated with the population of attributed
members. The payers analyze the activities durd ing the measurement period using the agreed upon benchmarks, metrics and
performance criteria to determine the appra opriate payments to the Company.

The Company estimates the transaction price by analyzing the activities durd ing the relevant time period in contemplation of the agreed
upon benchmarks, metrics, performance criteria, inflation trend factors, risk ratio adjud stments and attribution criteria based on those
and any other contractuat lly definff ed factors. Revenue is not recorded until the price can be estimated by the Company and to the extent
that it is probable that a significant reversal will not occur once any uncertainty associated with the variabla e consideration is
subsu equently resolved. Revenue is recorded during the period when the services are provided durd ing a pre-set twelve-month annual
measurement period.
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Care Management Fees (“PM“ PMMM ”)

Under the PMPM basis, the Company is paid a PMPM rate forff each covered individual who is attributed by the payer to the Company
(“attributed members”). The Company records revenue in the month forff which the PMPM rate applies and the member was attributed.
The PMPM rate is based on a predetermined monthly contractuat l rate forff each attributed member regardless of the volume of care
coordination services provided under the contracts with the payers. The PMPM rate varies based on payer and product.

Revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the
provision of care coordination services to its population of attributed members. The Company’s contracts with payers have a single
performance obligation that consists of a series of services forff the provision of care coordination services for the population of
attributed members forff the durd ation of the contract. The transaction price for the contracts is entirely variabla e, as it is primarily based
on a PMPM rate on monthly attributed membership, which can fluctuate durd ing the life off f the contract.

The majority of the Company’s net PMPM transaction price relates specifically to its effortff s to transfer the service forff a distinct
increment of the series and is recognized as revenue in the month in which attributed members are entitled to care coordination
services.

Othett r Revenue

The remainder of our revenue is derived froff m leveraging our existing base of providers and patients to deliver value-oriented services
such as concierge services, virtuat l visits, virtual scribes and coding, clinical trials, behavioral health management, and partnerships
with self-iff nsured employers to offer direct primary care to their employees.

Providerdd Liabilityii

Provider Liabia lity represents costs payable to physicians, hospitals and other ancillary providers, including both Privia Physicians,
their related practices, and providers the Company has contracted with through payer partners. Those costs include amounts that have
not yet been paid for physician guaranteed payments and other required distributions pursuant to the service agreements as well as
medical claims costs forff services provided to attributed beneficiaries forff which the Company is finff ancially responsible under at-risk
capitated revenue arrangements whether paid directly by the Company or indirectly by payers with whom the Company has
contracted.

Stock-tt Ba- sed CompeCC nsationtt

The Company accounts forff share-based compensation in accordance with the expense recognition provisions of ASC 718,
Compensation–Stock ComCC pensm ation (“ASC 718”), which requires the issuer to recognize compensation expense forff all share-based
payments made to employees based on the fair value of the share-based payment at the date of grant. Up until April 2021,the estimated
fair value of share-based payments granted to the Company’s employees was determined using the Monte-Carlo option pricing model,
which requires inputs based on certain subju ective assumptions, including expected term of the option, expected stock price volatility,
the risk freff e interest rate forff a period that appra oximates the expected term of the option and the Company’s expected dividend yield
(See Note 11 “Stockholders’ Equity”). The share-based payments granted or modified prior to April 2021 to employees of the
Company do not have quoted market prices, and changes in subjective input assumptions can materially affeff ct the faiff r value estimate.
Since April 2021, the Company has estimated the fair value of the options granted to Company’s employees and contractors using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Option valuation models require several inputs, such as the expected stock price volatility, the
fair value of the stock, the risk freff e rate, the expected term of the award and the dividend yield. The Company records share-based
compensation forff feitures as a reversal of previously recognized compensation expense as the forfeitures occur. For additional details
refer to Note 11 “Stockholders’ Equity.”

The Company issues certain performance stock units ("PSUs"). The awards will vest based on the satisfaction of certain service
conditions, performance-based conditions, and market conditions. The Company has identified certain performance metrics associated
with these awards that are measured on a cumulative basis over a three-year performance period. The targets for the first year of the
PSU performance period are established at the time of grant. Targets forff subsu equent years’ PSU performance periods are set annually
concurrently with granting and establishing the targets for subsequent years’ PSU grants. The Company has determined that the
service inception date precedes the grant date for these awards as (a) the awards were authorized prior to establishing an accounting
grant date, (b) the recipients began providing services prior to the grant date, and (c) there are performance conditions that, if not met
by the accounting grant date, will result in the forfeiture of the awards. As the service inception date precedes the accounting grant
date, the Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense over the requisite service period based on the estimated faiff r value at
each reporting date.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk represents the risk of loss that may impact our financial position dued to adverse changes in finff ancial market prices and
rates. Our market risk exposure is primarily a result of exposure dued to potential changes in inflatioff n or interest rates. We do not hold
financial instrumr ents for trading purposr es.
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Interest Rate Riisk

Our p irima yry ma krket iri ksk exposur ie is ri iising ig interest rates. Interest rate riisk ik i hs higighlhlyy sen isi itiv de dued to ma yny factors, iin lcl diudi gng U.S.
moneta yry andd tax lpoliiciies, U.S. and id interna itionall economiic factors a d hnd other factff or bs b yey dond our control. Our Credit Agreement bears
interest at a base rate plus appla icable margin, with the base rate being the higher of the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Rate plus
0.50%. In no event will the base rate be less than 1.0%. As of December 31, 2024, the Company had no outstanding debt under the
Credit Agreement.

Inflation Risk

Based on our analysis of the periods presented, we believe that inflation has not had a material effeff ct on our operating results. There
can be no assurance that futurff e inflatioff n will not have an adverse impact on our operating results and finff ancial condition.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

All inforff mation required by this item is included in Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated into this item by
reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supeu rvision and with the participation of our management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Offiff cer, we have evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedurd es (as definff ed in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)
under the Exchange Act), as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Offiff cer and
Chief Financial Offiff cer have concluded that these disclosure controls and procedurd es were effeff ctive at the reasonable assurance level
as of December 31, 2024.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over finff ancial reporting, as defined in RulRR es
13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Offiff cer, has evaluated the effeff ctiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 31, 2024. In assessing the
effeff ctiveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting, our management used the fraff mework establa ished in Internal Control
Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Based
on that evaluation, our management has concluded that our internal control over finff ancial reporting was effeff ctive as of December 31,
2024.

The effectff iveness of our internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 31, 2024, has been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,ff as stated in their report, which can be found under
Part IV of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes to our Internal Controls over Financial Reporting

There were no changes made to the Company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting durd ing the quarter ended December 31, 2024
that have materially affeff cted, or are reasonably likely to materially affeff ct, the Company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting.

Inherent Limitation on the Effeff ctiveness of Controls

The effectiveness of any system of internal control over finff ancial reporting, including ours, is subju ect to inherent limitations, including
the exercise of judgment in designing, implementing, operating, and evaluating the controls and procedurd es, and the inability to
eliminate misconduct completely. Accordingly, in designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedurd es, management
recognizes that any system of internal control over finff ancial reporting, including ours, no matter how well designed and operated, can
only provide reasonable, not absolute assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. In addition, the design of disclosure
controls and procedurd es must reflect the factff that there are resource constraints and that management is required to appla y its judgment
in evaluating the benefits of possible controls and procedurd es relative to their costs. Moreover, projections of any evaluation of
effeff ctiveness to futurff e periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedurd es may deteriorate. We intend to continue to monitor and upgrade our internal
controls as necessary or appropriate for our busff iness but cannot assure you that such improvements will be sufficient to provide us
with effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On November 8, 2024, Parth Mehrotra, the Company’s Chief Executive Officff er and a member of the Company’s Board of Directors,
adopted a new trading plan forff the sale of securities that is intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1 of the
Exchange Act (the “New Mehrotra Plan”). The firff st possible trade date under the New Mehrotra Plan is March 10, 2025, and the end
date of the New Mehrotra Plan is December 31, 2025, for a duration of approxia mately nine months. The aggregate amount of
securities that may be sold under the New Mehrotra Plan is 82,128.

On December 2, 2024, Shawn Morris, a member of the Company’s Board of Directors, terminated a trading plan for the sale of
securities intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1 of the Exchange Act, which he adopted on June 3,
2024 and was scheduled to end on May 15, 2025, for a duration of approxia mately eight months (the “Terminated Morris Plan”). The
aggregate amount of securities that could have been sold under the Terminated Morris Plan was 2,500,000. On December 2, 2024, Mr.
Morris adopted a new trading plan forff the sale of securities that is intended to satisfy the affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1
of the Exchange Act (the “New Morris Plan”). The firff st possible trade date under the New Morris Plan is March 5, 2025, and the end
date of the New Morris Plan is November 28, 2025, forff a durd ation of approxia mately nine months. The aggregate amount of securities
that may be sold under the New Morris Plan is 1,875,000.

ITEM 9C. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTION THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS.

Not Applicable.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATRR E GOVERNANCE

We adopted a written Code of Ethics and business conduct that appla ies to our directors, executive officers and employees, including
our Chief Executive Officer, President and Chief Operating Offiff cer, General Counsel, Chief Financial Officer, principal accounting
offiff cer, the controller and all persons performing similar functions. A current copy of the code is posted under “Governance” on the
Investor Relations section of our website, our website, ir.priviahealth.com. Any waiver from the Code of Ethics and any amendments
to the Code of Ethics will be disclosed on such page of the Company’s website. Additionally, we have an insider trading policy
governing the purchase, sale and other dispositions of the Company’s securities that appla ies to all of the Company’s directors, officff ers,
employees and certain other covered individuals. The Company does not currently purchase its own securities through a share
repurchase program[, and we expect that any share repurchase program that may in the future be adopted by the Company would be
subju ect to specific policies and procedurd es]. The Company believes that its insider trading policy and procedurd es are reasonably
designed to promote compliance with insider trading laws, rulr es, regulations and listing standards appla icable to the Company. A copy
of the Company’s insider policy is fileff d as Exhibit 19.1 to this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The additional inforff mation required by this item will be set forth in the definitive proxy statement to be fileff d with the SEC in
connection with the Annual Meeting of Stockholders within 120 days afteff r December 31, 2024 (the “Proxy Statement”) and is
incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-K by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The inforff mation required by this item will be set forff th in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-
K by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNER AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The inforff mation required by this item will be set forff th in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-
K by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTRR IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The inforff mation required by this item will be set forff th in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-
K by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The inforff mation required by this item will be set forff th in the Proxy Statement and is incorporated into this Annual Report on Form 10-
K by reference.

PART IV

ITEM 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) The following documents are fileff d as part of this Annual Report on Form 10- K:

1. Financial Statements:
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The accompanying Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page F-1 of this annual report on Form 10-K is
provided in response to this item.

2. Financial Statement Schedules

None.

(b) Exhibits

The exhibits listed in the folff lowing “Exhibit Index” are filed, furnished or incorporated by reference as part of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K
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ITEM 15. EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description Form Exhibit File No. Filing Date

Filed
Herewith

3.1+
Second Amended & Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Privia Health
Group, Inc. (incorporr rated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-40365) filed with the SEC on
May 23, 2024)

8-K 3.1 001-40365 05/23/2024

3.2+
Fourth Amended & Restated Bylaws of Privia Health Group,u Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the registrant’s Current
Report on Form 8-K (File No. 001-40365) filed with the SEC on May 23,
2024)

8-K 3.2 001-40365 05/23/2024

4.1+
Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.1 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-255086), fileff d with the SEC on April 7, 2021)

S-1 4.1 333-255086 04/07/2021

4.2+ Description of Capital Stock 10-K 4.2 227-68304 03/25/2022

10.1+§
2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
99.1 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No.
333-255598), fileff d with the SEC on April 29, 2021)

S-8 99.1 333-255598 04/29/2021

10.2+§
Employment Agreement between Privia Health Group,u Inc. and Shawn
Morris, dated April 13, 2018 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-255086), fileff d with the SEC on April 7, 2021)

S-1 10.2 333-255086 04/07/2021

10.3+§ Employment Agreement first amendment between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and Shawn Morris, dated April 23, 2019 10-Q 10.1 221-155713 08/11/2022

10.4+§ Employment Agreement second amendment between Privia Health
Group, Inc. and Shawn Morris, dated April 1, 2020 10-Q 10.2 221-155713 08/11/2022

10.5+§ Employment Agreement third amendment between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and Shawn Morris, dated August 10, 2022 10-Q 10.3 221-155713 08/11/2022

10.6+§
Employment Agreement between Privia Health Group,u Inc. and Parth
Mehrotra, dated January 1, 2018 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-255086), fileff d with the SEC on April 7, 2021)

S-1 10.3 333-255086 04/07/2021

10.7+§ Employment Agreement first amendment between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and Parth Mehrotra, dated April 1, 2020 10-Q 10.4 221-155713 08/11/2022

10.8+§ Annual Merit Increase and Bonus Payment Memo forff Parth Mehrotra
dated March 12, 2021 10-K 10.4 227-68304 03/25/2022

10.9+§ Employment Agreement second amendment between Privia Health
Group, Inc. and Parth Mehrotra, dated April 16, 2021 10-Q 10.5 221-155713 08/11/2022

10.10+§ Employment Agreement third amendment between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and Parth Mehrotra, dated August 10, 2022 10-Q 10.6 221-155713 08/11/2022

10.11+§
Employment Agreement between Privia Health Group,u Inc. and Thomas
Bartrum, dated February 2r 5, 2019 (incorporarr ted herein by referenceff to
Exhibit 10.4 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-255086), fileff d with the SEC on April 7, 2021)

S-1 10.4+ 333-255086 04/07/2021

10.12+§ Employment Agreement, between Privia Health Group,u Inc. and David
Mountcastle dated as of March 21, 2022. 8-K 10.2 001-40365 03/22/2022

10.13+§ Employment Agreement first amendment between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and David Mountcastle, dated August 10, 2022 10-Q 10.7 221-155713 08/11/2022

10.14+§ Employment Agreement first amendment between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and Thomas Bartrum, dated April 1, 2020 10-K 10.6 227-68304 03/25/2022

10.15+§ Employment Agreement second amendment between Privia Health
Group, Inc. and Thomas Bartrum, dated April 16, 2021 10-K 10.7 227-68304 03/25/2022

10.15+§ Employment Agreement third amendment between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and Thomas Bartrum, dated March 24, 2022 10-K 10.8 227-68304 03/25/2022

10.16+§ Employment Agreement fouff rth amendment between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and Thomas Bartrum, dated August 10, 2022 10-Q 10.8 221-155713 08/11/2022

10.17+ Form of Registration Rights Agreement between Privia Health Group,u
Inc. and the other signatories party thereto 8-K 10.1+ 001-40365 05/03/2021
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10.18+§
Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File
No. 333-255086), fileff d with the SEC on April 22, 2021)

S-1 10.7+ 333-255086 04/22/2021

10.19+§
Form of 2021 Omnibus Plan Restricted Stock Unit Award for Employees
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to the registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-255086), filff ed with the
SEC on April 22, 2021)

S-1 10.8+ 333-255086 04/22/2021

10.20+§
Form of 2021 Omnibus Plan Restricted Stock Unit Award for Non-
Employee Directors (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to
the registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (File No.
333-255086), fileff d with the SEC on April 22, 2021)

S-1 10.9+ 333-255086 04/22/2021

10.21+§
Form of 2021 Omnibus Plan Stock Option Award (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.10 to the registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form S-1 (File No. 333-255086), fileff d with the SEC on April 22, 2021)

S-1 10.1 333-255086 04/22/2021

10.22+§
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights Agreement between Privia
Health Group, Inc. and the other signatories party thereto dated October
29, 2021

10-Q 10.11 211-388036 11/08/2021

10.23+§ Second Amended and Restated PH Group Parent Corp. Stock Option Plan S-8 99.2 333-255598 04/29/2021

10.24+§ Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the Second
Amended and Restated PH Group Parent Corp. Stock Option Plan S-8 99.3 333-255598 04/29/2021

10.25+§ Form of Amendment to Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under
Second Amended and Restated PH Group Parent Corp. Stock Option Plan S-8 99.4 333-255598 04/29/2021

10.26+§ Notice of Modification of Option Agreement 10-K 10.23 227-68304 03/25/2022

10.27+ Strategic Alignment Agreement, dated as of March 2, 2023, by and
between Privia Health Group, Inc. and ChoiceHealth, Inc. 10-Q 10.2 001-40365 05/04/2023

10.28+§ Form of PSU Award Agreement under the 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan 10-Q 10.1 001-40365 05/04/2023

10.29+§ Mehrotra Fourth Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated June 23,
2023 8-K 10.1 001-40365 06/29/2023

10.30+§ Relative TSR PSU Agreement, effeff ctive July 1, 2023 8-K 10.2 001-40365 06/29/2023

10.31+§ Morris Transition Agreement, dated June 23, 2023 8-K 10.3 001-40365 06/29/2023

10.32+§
Credit Agreement dated as of November 16, 2023 among Privia Health
Group, Inc., PH Group Holdings Corp., and Privia Health, LLC, as
borrower, with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as issuing lender,
and certain other lenders

8-K 10.1 001-40365 11/21/2023

10.33+§ Transition Letter Agreement, dated as of January 25, 2024, between the
Company and Thomas Bartrum 8-K 10.1 001-40365 01/29/2024

10.34+§ Employment Agreement between Privia Health Group,u Inc. and Edward
Fargis dated January 29, 2024 10-K 10.1 001-40365 02/27/2024

10.35+§ Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award for SVP+ Employees under the
2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan X

19.1 Insider Trading Policy (filed herewith) X

21.1 Subsu idiaries of the registrant X

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Publu ic Accounting Firm X

31.1
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Exchange Act
Rules RulRR e 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbaner s-
Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

X

31.2
Certification of the Chief Financial Offiff cer pursuant to Exchange Act
Rules RulRR e 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbaner s-
Oxley Act of 2002, filed herewith.

X

32.1* Certification of the Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, filed herewith. X

32.2* Certification of the Chief Financial Offiff cer pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, filed herewith. X

97.1+§ Policy Relating to Recovery of Erroneously Awarded Compensation 10-K 97.1 001-40365 02/27/2024

101.INS XBRL Instance Document ** X

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Schema ** X
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101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Definitioff n ** X

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Calculation ** X

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Labels ** X

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Presentation ** X

+ Previously filed

* The certifications furnished in Exhibit 32.1 and Exhibit 32.2 hereto are deemed to accompany this Annual Report on Form 10-K
and will not be deemed “filff ed” for purposff es of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the
extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.

** The finff ancial information contained in these XBRL documents is unaudited.

§ Indicates a management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

ITEM 16. FORM 10-K SUMMARY

None.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly
caused this Report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duld y authorized.

Privia Health Group, Inc.

Date: February 2rr 7, 2025 By: /s/ Parth Mehrotra
Name: Parth Mehrotra
Title: Chief Executive Offiff cer
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the folff lowing persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date

/s/ Parth Mehrotra Chief Executive Officff er and Director
(principal executive offiff cer) February 27, 2025

Parth Mehrotra

/s/ David Mountcastle Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial and accounting officer) February 27, 2025

David Mountcastle

/s/ Adam Boehler
Director February 27, 2025

Adam Boehler

/s/ Nancy Cocozza
Director February 27, 2025

Nancy Cocozza

/s/ Pamela Kimmet
Director February 27, 2025

Pamela Kimmet

/s/ David King
Director February 27, 2025

David King

/s/ Patricia Marylrr and
Director February 27, 2025

Patricia Maryland

/s/ Thomas McCarthy
Director February 27, 2025

Thomas McCarthy

/s/ Shawn Morris
Director February 27, 2025

Shawn Morris

/s/ Jaewon Ryu
Director February 27, 2025

Jaewon Ryu, M.D.

/s/ David Wichmann
Director February 27, 2025

David Wichmann
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Privia Health Group, Inc.

Opinions on the Financial Statements and Internal Control over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Privia Health Group, Inc. and its subsu idiaries (the "Company") as
of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the related consolidated statements of operations, of stockholders’ equity and of cash floff ws for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2024, including the related notes (collectively referred to as the
"consolidated financial statements"). We also have audited the Company's internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 31,
2024, based on criteria established in Internal Contrott l - Integrate ed Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above pra esent faiff rly, in all material respects, the finff ancial position of
the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023, and the results of its operations and its cash floff ws for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2024 in conforff mity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in
our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting as of December 31,
2024, based on criteria established in Internal Controt l - Integrate ed Framework (2013) issued by the COSO.

Basis fii orff Opinions

The Company's management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effeff ctive internal control over
financial reporting, and forff its assessment of the effeff ctiveness of internal control over finff ancial reporting, included in Management’s
Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting appearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility is to express opinions on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements and on the Company's internal control over finff ancial reporting based on our audits. We
are a public accounting firff m registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are
required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federalff securities laws and the appla icable rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits
to obtain reasonable assurance abouta whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether dued to
error or fraff ud, and whether effeff ctive internal control over finff ancial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedurd es to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether dued to error or fraff ud, and performing procedurd es that respond to those risks. Such
procedurd es included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control over finff ancial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over finff ancial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also included
performing such other procedurd es as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.ff

Defie niii tioii n and Limitatioii ns of Internal Contrott l over Financii ial Reporting

A company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabia lity of
financial reporting and the preparation of finff ancial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal control over finff ancial reporting includes those policies and procedurd es that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of finff ancial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effeff ct
on the finff ancial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over finff ancial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to futurff e periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedurd es may deteriorate.
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Critical Audit Mii atMM tett rs

The critical audit matters communicated below are matters arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that were communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i) relate to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our especially challenging, subju ective, or
complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matters below, providing separate opinions on the
critical audit matters or on the accounts or disclosures to which they relate.

Valuation of Fo eeFF for ServiSS ce Patient Care Accounts Rtt eceivable

As described in Notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated financial statements, subsu tantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable relate to
providing healthcare services to patients whose costs are primarily paid by federal and state governmental authorities or commercial
insurance companies. The fee forff service patient care (FFS-patient care) accounts receivable makes up a portion of the Company’s
consolidated net accounts receivable balance of $316.2 million as of December 31, 2024. FFS-patient care revenue is primarily
generated froff m third-party payers with which the Company has establa ished contractuat l billing arrangements and is reported net of
provisions for contractuat l allowances from third-party payers and patients. Management reports accounts receivable at an amount
equal to the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for providing healthcare services to patients, which is
estimated using historical reimbursement rates and an analysis of past experience to estimate potential adjustments.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedurd es relating to the valuation of FFS-patient care accounts
receivable is a critical audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management when developing the estimated value of FFS-
patient care accounts receivable; and (ii) a high degree of auditor judgment, subju ectivity, and effortff in performing procedurd es and
evaluating audit evidence related to adjud stments based on historical reimbursement rates.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedurd es and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. These procedurd es included testing the effeff ctiveness of controls relating to management’s
valuation of FFS-patient care accounts receivable. These procedurd es also included, among others, (i) evaluating management’s process
for developing the estimated value of FFS-patient care accounts receivable, (ii) testing the completeness and accuracy of the
underlying billing and reimbursement data used by management, (iii) evaluating the historical accuracy of management’s process forff
developing the estimated value of FFS-patient care accounts receivable, and (iv) developing an independent expectation of the
estimated amount of FFS-patient care accounts receivable expected to be collected by management. Developing an independent
expectation involved calculating historical reimbursement rates as compared to the recorded patient accounts receivable forff historical
periods and comparing that percentage to management’s estimated reimbursement rates used to determine the current year estimate forff
FFS-patient care accounts receivable.

Valuation of Mo edMM icare SharSS ed Savings Program Revenue

As described in Notes 1 and 2 to the consolidated financial statements, under the shared savings basis, the Company is offeredff
financial incentives to increase their accountability for the cost, quality and efficiency of the care provided to the population of
attributed members. Revenue from the Medicare Shared Savings Program (MSSP) makes up tu he majority of the Company’s
consolidated shared savings revenue of $179.2 million forff the year ended December 31, 2024. The Company is paid the finff ancial
incentives when, forff a given twelve-month measurement period, their performance on quality of care and utilization meets or exceeds
the standards set by the payers as outlined in the contracts and when savings are achieved forff medical costs associated with the
population of attributed members. The payers analyze the activities durd ing the measurement period using the agreed upon benchmarks,
metrics and performance criteria to determine the appropriate payments to the Company. Management estimates the transaction price
by analyzing the activities durd ing the relevant time period in contemplation of the agreed upon benchmarks, metrics, performance
criteria, inflation trend factors, risk ratio adjud stments, and attribution criteria based on those and any other contractuat lly defined
factors. Revenue is not recorded until the price can be estimated by management and to the extent that it is probable that a significant
reversal will not occur once any uncertainty associated with the variabla e consideration is subsequently resolved. Revenue is recorded
during the period when the services were provided durd ing a pre-set twelve-month annual measurement period.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedurd es relating to the valuation of MSSP revenue is a critical
audit matter are (i) the significant judgment by management when developing the estimate of MSSP revenue; (ii) a high degree of
auditor judgment, subju ectivity, and effortff in performing procedurd es and evaluating management’s significant assumptions related to
inflation trend factors and risk ratio adjud stments; and (iii) the audit effort involved the use of professionals with specialized skill and
knowledge.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedurd es and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming our overall opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. These procedurd es included testing the effeff ctiveness of controls relating to management’s
valuation of MSSP revenue. These procedurd es also included, among others, (i) testing the completeness and accuracy of the
underlying data used by management, and (ii) the involvement of profesff sionals with specialized skill and knowledge to assist in
evaluating the reasonableness of management’s estimate of MSSP revenue, on a sample basis, by (a) developing an independent range
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of estimated MSSP revenue using independently developed assumptions related to inflatioff n trend factors and risk ratio adjustments
and (b) comparing the independent range of estimated MSSP revenue to management’s estimate.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Washington, District of Columbia
Februar ry 27, 2025

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2020, which includes periods before the Company became subject to SEC reporting
requirements.
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Privia Health Group, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Assets
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 491,149 $ 389,511
Accounts receivable 316,179 290,768
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 27,495 20,525

Total current assets 834,823 700,804
Non-current assets:

Property and equipment, net 1,242 2,325
Right-of-use asset 4,828 6,612
Intangible assets, net 109,807 107,630
Goodwill 141,615 138,749
Deferred tax asset 26,383 35,200
Other non-current assets 17,085 8,580

Total non-current assets 300,960 299,096
Total assets $ 1,135,783 $ 999,900

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabia lities:

Accounts payable and accruer d expenses $ 81,986 $ 57,831
Provider liabia lity 364,607 326,078
Operating lease liabia lities, current 2,553 3,043

Total current liabia lities 449,146 386,952
Non-current liabia lities:

Operating lease liabia lities, non-current 3,037 5,246
Other non-current liabia lities 153 313

Total non-current liabia lities 3,190 5,559
Total liabia lities 452,336 392,511
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock, $0.01 par value, 1,000,000,000 and 1,000,000,000 shares authorized;
120,309,346 and 118,216,979 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2024 and
December 31, 2023, respectively 1,203 1,182

Additional paid-in capia tal 813,209 753,869
Accumulated deficitff (179,229) (193,614)
Total Privia Health Group, Inc. stockholders’ equity 635,183 561,437
Non-controlling interest 48,264 45,952

Total stockholders’ equity 683,447 607,389
Total liabia lities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,135,783 $ 999,900

The accompanying notes are an integrag l part of to hett se consolidatdd ed financial statements.tt
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Privia Health Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Operations

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

Revenue $ 1,736,390 $ 1,657,737 $ 1,356,660

Operating expenses:
Provider expense 1,332,537 1,298,573 1,051,040
Cost of platform 227,000 197,663 170,838
Sales and marketing 26,446 24,732 19,741
General and administrative 126,157 109,587 129,592
Depreciation and amortization 7,268 6,533 4,571

Total operating expenses 1,719,408 1,637,088 1,375,782
Operating income (loss) 16,982 20,649 (19,122)
Interest income, net 10,888 8,372 542
Income (loss) before provision for (benefit froff m) income taxes 27,870 29,021 (18,580)
Provision for (benefit froff m) income taxes 10,826 7,993 (6,516)
Net income (loss) 17,044 21,028 (12,064)
Less: Net income (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 2,659 (2,051) (3,479)
Net income (loss) attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc. $ 14,385 $ 23,079 $ (8,585)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc.
stockholders – basic $ 0.12 $ 0.20 $ (0.08)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc.
stockholders – diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.19 $ (0.08)
Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic 119,402,749 116,731,406 110,695,266
Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted 125,614,171 124,686,067 110,695,266

The accompanying notes are an integrag l part of to hett se consolidatdd ed financial statements.tt
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Privia Health Group, Inc.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2024 2023 2022

Cash flows froff m operating activities
Net income (loss) $ 17,044 $ 21,028 $ (12,064)
Adjud stments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Depreciation 1,104 1,174 1,220
Amortization of intangibles 6,164 5,359 3,351
Amortization of debt issuance costs — — 687
Stock-based compensation 56,680 37,098 67,359
Deferred tax expense (benefit) 8,817 7,465 (7,004)

Changes in asset and liabia lities:
Accounts receivable (19,824) (96,877) (72,202)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets (8,970) (6,159) (5,669)
Other non-current assets and right-of-use asset (1,721) (2,418) 1,383
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 19,905 4,994 6,852
Provider liabia lity 32,942 113,367 67,716
Operating lease liabia lities (2,699) (3,214) (2,433)
Other long-term liabilities (160) (1,032) (2,000)

Net cash provided by operating activities 109,282 80,785 47,196
Cash flows froff m investing activities

Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired (6,957) (42,858) —
Other (5,021) (113) (104)

Net cash used in investing activities (11,978) (42,971) (104)
Cash flows froff m finff ancing activities

Repurchase of non-controlling interest — (5,694) —
Proceeds froff m non-controlling interest 1,653 659 125
Repayment of note payable — — (33,250)
Proceeds froff m exercised stock options 2,681 8,740 13,448

Net cash provided by (used in) finff ancing activities 4,334 3,705 (19,677)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 101,638 41,519 27,415
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 389,511 347,992 320,577
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 491,149 $ 389,511 $ 347,992

Supplu emental disclosure of cash floff w inforff mation:
Interest paid $ 285 $ 40 $ 713
Income taxes paid $ 3,755 $ 1,040 $ 307

The accompanying notes are an integrag l part of to hett se consolidatdd ed financial statements.tt
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Privia Health Group, Inc.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1.Organization and Summary of Significff ant Accounting Policies

Organization

Privia Health Group, Inc. (“Privia Health”, “Privia”, “we”, “our” or the “Company”) is a technology-driven, national physician-
enablement company that collabora ates with physician practices, health plans, and health systems to achieve the quadruple aim of better
outcomes, lower costs, improved patient experience, and happier and more engaged providers. The Company seeks to accomplish the
quadruplr e aim by entering markets and organizing existing physicians and non-physician clinicians into a unique practice model that
combines the advantages of a partnership in a large regional Medical Group with significant provider autonomy forff Privia Providers
joining the Company’s Medical Groups.

As of December 31, 2024, Privia operated in fifff teff en markets: 1) the Mid-Atlantic Region (states of Virginia, Maryland and the District
of Columbia); 2) Georgia; 3) Gulf Coast Region (Houston-San Antonio-Austin, Texas); 4) North Texas (Dallas/Fort Worth, Texas); 5)
West Texas (Abilene, Texas); 6) Central Florida; 7) Tennessee 8) Californiff a; 9) Montana; 10) Ohio; 11) North Carolina; 12)
Connecticut; 13) Washington state; 14) South Carolina; and 15) Indiana.

Under our Privia Medical Group mu odel, Privia Physicians join the Medical Group in their geographic market as an owner of the
Medical Group. We own a majority interest in certain of our Medical Groups (each, an “Owned Medical Group”), with Privia
Physicians collectively owning a minority interest, and we own no interest in certain other Medical Groups (each, a “Non-Owned
Medical Group”). In those markets in which state regulations do not allow us to own Medical Groups, the Non-Owned Medical
Groups may be owned by the Privia Physicians or owned indirectly through a professional entity (a “Nominee PC”), by a licensed
physician holding a Privia leadership position (such physician leader, a “Nominee Physician”, and each such Non-Owned Medical
Group owned in this manner, a “Friendly Medical Group”u ). In those markets where we partner with health systems, our health system
partner owns a majority interest in the Non-Owned Medical Groups, with Privia Physicians owning a minority interest. Privia
Physicians furnish healthcare services through our Medical Groups and continue to own their historical practice entities (“Affiff liated
Practices”), which provide certain services to the Medical Groups, such as use of space, non-physician staffing, equipment and
supplu ies. Privia Physicians typically enter into a PMSA with a medical group, which requires the Privia Physician to provide
healthcare services through and on behalf of the medical group, and the Medical Group enters a Support Services Agreement (“SSA”)
with the Affiliated Practice to provide those certain services to the Medical Group.

In some instances, we also move into and expand in new and existing markets through our Privia Care Partners model, which offerff s an
affiff liation model to providers who are looking solely for VBC solutions. For those practices, we furniff sh population health services,
reporting and analytics, along with certain management.

The Company does not own any Affiff liated Practice, nor does the Company have risk of loss related to the Affiliated Practices; rather,
they are typically owned by certain Privia Physicians. Currently, the Company has Friendly Medical Groups in Tennessee, West
Texas, Washington state and South Carolina. The Company has entered into a restriction agreement with each of its Nominee
Physicians and their respective Nominee PCs, which provides the Company the right to direct the transfer of each Nominee PC’s
ownership in the Friendly Medical Groups to other licensed physicians, among other matters. Owned Medical Groups and Friendly
Medical Groups are consolidated into the Company, while Non-Owned Medical Groups are not. For Non-Owned Medical Groupsu and
Friendly Medical Groupsu , please refer to the discussion of “Variabla e Interest Entities” for furff ther discussion.

The Company also provides management services through local management services organizations (each, an “MSO”) to the Medical
Groups through a Management Services Agreement (“MSA”) in each market. The Company owns 100% of all MSOs, except fourff
where the Company is at least the majority owner.

We principally derive our revenues froff m the following three sources: (i) FFS-patient care revenue generated froff m providing healthcare
services to patients through Privia Providers of Owned Medical Groups and Friendly Medical Groups, in addition to management and
administrative services earned for administrative services provided to Non-Owned Medical Groups (“FFS-administrative services”),
(ii) VBC revenue collected on behalf of our Privia Providers in the forff m of (a) capitated revenue and (b) management and
administrative feesff , which primarily consist of shared savings, which includes quality bonuses, and per member per month (“PMPM”)
care management feesff , and (iii) other revenue from additional services offereff d to Privia Providers or directly to patients or employers,
such as ancillary services like clinical lab, phaa rmacy and imaging services. The operations of our Owned Medical Groupsu , owned
ACOs, owned MSOs and Friendly Medical Groups are refleff cted within our consolidated financial results.

Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles
(“GAAP”) and include the accounts of the Company and its subsu idiaries. Amounts shown on the consolidated statements of operations
within the operating expense categories of provider expense, cost of platform, selling and marketing, and general and administrative
are recorded exclusive of depreciation and amortization.

All significant intercompany transactions are eliminated in consolidation.
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Variable Interest Entities

Management evaluates the Company’s ownership, contractuat l, and other interests in entities to determine if it has any variabla e interest
in a variabla e interest entity (“VIE”). These evaluations are complex, involve judgment, and the use of estimates and assumptions based
on availabla e historical inforff mation, among other facff tors. If the Company determines that an entity in which it holds a contractuat l or
ownership interest is a VIE and that the Company is the primary beneficiary,rr the Company consolidates such entity in its consolidated
financial statements. The primary beneficiary orr f a VIE is the party that meets both of the following criteria: (i) has the power to make
decisions that most significantly affeff ct the economic performance of the VIE; and (ii) has the obligation to absora b lr osses or the right to
receive benefits that in either case could potentially be significant to the VIE. Management performs ongoing reassessments of
whether changes in the facff ts and circumstances regarding the Company’s involvement with a VIE will cause the consolidation
conclusion to change. Changes in consolidation status are applied prospectively.

The Company evaluated its relationship with (a) Non-Owned Medical Groups and their Affiff liated Practices, (b) Friendly Medical
Groups and their Affiff liated Practices, and (c) Affiliated Practices associated with Owned Medical Groups to determine if any of these
entities should be subject to consolidation. The Company does not have ownership interest in any Affiff liated Practices (whether those
of Owned Medical Groups, Non-Owned Medical Groups or Friendly Medical Groups); nor does the Company have an ownership in
Non-Owned Medical Groups or Friendly Medical Groups. The PMSA and SSA entered by Non-Owned Medical Groupsu and Friendly
Medical Groups with their Privia Physician members and the Affiliated Practices are not contractuat l relationships within Privia’s legal
structurt e. The only contractuat l relationship between Privia and Non-Owned Medical Groups is establa ished through the MSA. For
Friendly Medical Groupsu , in addition to the MSA, the Company has a contractuat l relationship, evidenced by a restriction agreement
(each a “Restriction Agreement”) with its Nominee Physicians and their respective Nominee PCs. Management has determined, based
on the provisions of the MSAs between the Company and Non-Owned Medical Groups, and afteff r considering the requirements of
Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 810, Consolidation (“ASC 810”), the Company is not required to consolidate the
financial position or results of operations of the Affilff iated Practices associated with Owned Medical Groups; nor is it required to
consolidate the financial position or results of operations of Non-Owned Medical Groups (and, thereforff e, the Company is not required
to consolidate the Affiff liated Practices of the Non-Owned Medical Groups). However, management has determined, based on the
provisions of the Restriction Agreement by and among the Company, the Nominee Physicians and their respective Nominee PCs, the
governing documents of the Friendly Medical Groups, and afteff r considering the requirements of ASC 810, that the Company should
consolidate the financial position or results of operations of the Friendly Medical Groups and the Nominee PCs, but not the Affiliatedff
Practices of the Friendly Medical Groups.

ASC 810 requires the Company to consolidate the financial position, results of operations and cash floff ws of a Non-Owned Medical
Group affiff liated by means of a service agreement if the Non-Owned Medical Group is a VIE and the Company is its primary
beneficiary.rr A Non-Owned Medical Group would be considered a VIE if (a) it is thinly capitalized (i.e., the equity is not sufficff ient to
fund the Non-Owned Medical Group’s activities without additional subordinated finff ancial supporu t) or (b) the equity holders of the
Non-Owned Medical Group as a group have one of the folff lowing four characteristics: (i) lack the power to direct the activities that
most significantly affeff ct the Non-Owned Medical Group’s economic performance, (ii) possess non-subsu tantive voting rights, (iii) lack
the obligation to absora b tr he Non-Owned Medical Group’u s expected losses, or (iv) lack the right to receive the Non-Owned Medical
Group’s expected residual returt ns.

The characteristics of both (a) and (b) do not exist and as such the Non-Owned Medical Groups do not represent VIEs. Accordingly,
the Company has not consolidated the finff ancial position, results of operations or cash floff ws of the Non-Owned Medical Groupsu that
are affiliated with the Company by means of a service agreement for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. Each time
that it enters into a new service agreement or enters into a material amendment to an existing service agreement, the Company
considers whether the terms of that agreement or amendment would change the elements it considers in accordance with the VIE
guidance. The same analysis was performed for the Affiff liated Practices of Owned Medical Groups, which have contractualt
relationships with Privia through the SSA, and the Company determined they do not represent VIEs as they do not meet the criteria in
ASC 810 for similar reasons outlined above.

The Company, however, does meet the criteria forff consolidation of the Nominee PCs and the Friendly Medical Groups based on the
discussion above.

Privia Medical Group – West Texas, PLLC, (“PMG West Texas”) is a physician-owned Medical Group, with PMG West Texas
Holdings, PLLC (“Friendly WTX PC”), a Texas professional limited liabia lity company entirely owned by a licensed physician with a
leadership role in the Company, owning majority membership interests and having governance and control rights via the governing
documents of PMG West Texas. The Company has a contractuat l relationship with Friendly WTX PC through a Restriction
Agreement. The VIE analysis was performed, and the Company determined that characteristic (b) exists as a result of meeting (ii) and
(iv) and as such, PMG West Texas and Friendly WTX PC do represent VIEs and are consolidated as they do meet the criteria in ASC
810.

Privia Medical Group Tennessee, PLLC (“PMG-TN”) is a physician-owned Medical Group, with PMG-TN Physicians, PLLC, a
Tennessee professional limited liabia lity company entirely owned by a licensed physician with a leadership role in the Company
(“Friendly TN PC”), owning majority membership interests therein and having governance and control rights via the governing
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documents of PMG-TN. Again, the same analysis was performed, and the Company determined that characteristic (b) exists as a result
of meeting (ii) and (iv) and as such, PMG-TN and Friendly TN PC do represent VIEs as they do meet the criteria in ASC 810.

Privia Medical Group Washington, PLLC, (“PMG WA”) is a physician-owned Medical Group, with PMG Washington Holdings,
PLLC (“Friendly WA PC”), a Washington profesff sional limited liabia lity company entirely owned by a licensed physician with a
leadership role in the Company, owning majority membership interests and having governance and control rights via the governing
documents of PMG WA. The Company has a contractuat l relationship with Friendly WA PC through a Restriction Agreement. The
VIE analysis was performed, and the Company determined that characteristic (b) exists as a result of meeting (i), (ii) and (iv) and as
such, PMG WA and Friendly WA PC do represent VIEs and are consolidated as they do meet the criteria in ASC 810.

Privia Medical Group South Carolina, LLC, (“PMG SC”) is a physician-owned Medical Group, with PMG South Carolina Holdings,
PLLC (“Friendly SC PC”), a South Carolina professional limited liabia lity company entirely owned by a licensed physician with a
leadership role in the Company, owning majority membership interests and having governance and control rights via the governing
documents of PMG SC. The Company has a contractuat l relationship with Friendly SC PC through a Restriction Agreement. The VIE
analysis was performed, and the Company determined that characteristic (b) exists as a result of meeting (i), (ii) and (iv) and as such
PMG SC and Friendly SC PC represent VIEs and are consolidated as they meet the criteria in ASC 810.

Privia Medical Group Indiana, LLC, (“PMG IN”) is a physician-owned Medical Group, with PMG Holdings Indiana, LLC, (“Friendly
IN PC”), an Indiana professional limited liabia lity company entirely owned by a licensed physician with a leadership role in the
Company, owning majority membership interests and having governance and control rights via the governing documents of PMG IN.
The Company has a contractuat l relationship with Friendly IN PC through a Restriction Agreement. The VIE analysis was performed,
and the Company determined that characteristic (b) exists as a result of meeting (i), (ii) and (iv) and as such PMG IN and Friendly IN
PC represent VIEs and are consolidated as they meet the criteria in ASC 810.

The aggregated carrying value of the current VIE assets and liabia lities included in the consolidated balance sheets after elimination of
intercompany transactions and balances were $12.1 million and $12.1 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2024 and $6.2 million
and $6.2 million respectively, as of December 31, 2023. Total revenues and operating expenses were $104.5 million and
$104.5 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2024, $61.1 million and $61.1 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2023, and
$34.9 million and $34.9 million, respectively, as of December 31, 2022.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affeff ct the reported amounts of assets, liabia lities, revenue, expenses, and related disclosure. On an on-going basis the
Company evaluates significant estimates and assumptions, including, but not limited to, revenue recognition, stock-based
compensation, estimated useful lives of assets, intangible assets subject to amortization, and the computation of income taxes. Future
events and their effeff cts cannot be predicted with certainty; accordingly, the Company’s accounting estimates require the exercise of
judgment. The accounting estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements will change as new events occur, as more
experience is acquired, as additional inforff mation is obtained, and as the Company’s operating environment changes. Management
evaluates and updates assumptions and estimates on an ongoing basis. Actual results may diffeff r froff m these estimates under differeff nt
assumptions or conditions.

Operating Segments

The Company determined in accordance with ASC 280, Segment Reporting (“ASC 280”) that the Company operates in and reports as
a single operating segment, and thereforff e one reporting segment – Privia Health Group, Inc. Refer to Note 16 “Segment Financial
Information” for additional inforff mation concerning the Company’s services.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all unrestricted, liquid finff ancial instruments purchased with original maturity dates of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at cost which approxia mates faiff r value.

Accounts Receivable

Subsu tantially all of the Company’s accounts receivable relate to providing health care services to patients whose costs are primarily
paid by federal and state governmental authorities or commercial insurance companies. The Company reports accounts receivabla e at
an amount equal to the consideration the Company expects to receive in exchange for providing healthcare services to patients, which
is estimated using historical reimbursement rates and an analysis of past experience to estimate potential adjustments.

Management writes-off rff eceivables when they are deemed uncollectible because of circumstances that affeff ct the abia lity of payers and
self-pff ay patients to make payments as they occur. While write-offsff of customer accounts have historically been within management’s
expectations and the provisions establa ished, management cannot guarantee that future write-offs will be consistent with historical
experience, which could result in material differences when compared to the Company’s allowances and related provisions.
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Unearned Revenue

The Company records unearned revenue, which is a contract liabia lity, when it has an obligation to provide services and payment is
received in advance of performance of those services.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment consist of furff niture and fixtuff res, leasehold improvements, and computer hardware and softwff are and are stated
at cost, with the exception of assets acquired through acquisitions, which are recorded at fair value, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization. Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line method over the assets’ estimated useful lives, which for leasehold
improvements are the lesser of the lease terms or the life off f the asset, and three to seven years for other property and equipment.
Property and equipment consisting of leasehold improvements, furniture, computers and offiff ce equipment.

Business Combinations

Accounting for busff iness combinations requires us to allocate the fair value of purchase considerations to the tangible assets acquired,
liabia lities assumed, and intangible assets acquired based on their estimated faiff r values, which were determined primarily using the
income method. The excess of the fair value of purchase consideration over the fair values of these identified assets and liabia lities is
recorded as goodwill. Such valuations require us to make significant estimates and assumptions, especially at the acquisition date with
respect to intangible assets. Significant estimates in valuing certain intangible assets include, but are not limited to, revenue growth
rates, medical claims expense, cost of care expenses, operating expenses, discount rate, contract terms and usefulff life from acquired
assets.

Our estimates of faiff r value are based upon assumptions believed to be reasonable, but which are inherently uncertain and
unpredictabla e and, as a result, actuat l results may diffeff r froff m estimates. Allocation of purchase consideration to identifiabla e assets and
liabia lities affects the Company’s amortization expense, as acquired finiteff -lived intangible assets are amortized over the usefulff life,ff
whereas any indefinite lived intangible assets, including goodwill, are not amortized. During the measurement period, which is not to
exceed one year from the acquisition date, the Company may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabia lities assumed, with
the corresponding offsff et to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the measurement period, any subsequent adjud stments are recorded to
earnings. During the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company completed several acquisitions to strengthen its current
market share in existing markets or to expand into new markets. The consideration paid forff each of the acquisitions was derived
through arm’s length negotiations. Each of the Company’s acquisitions was accounted for using the acquisition method pursuant to the
requirements of FASB ASC Topic 805, Business Combinations (“ASC 805”). The results of operations of the acquisitions have been
included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since their respective date of acquisition. For additional details, referff to
Note 3 “Business Combinations.”

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets consist of property and equipment. Long-lived assets to be held and used are tested for recoverabia lity whenever
events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully recoverabla e. Factors that
the Company considers in deciding when to perform an impairment review include significant underperformance of the business in
relation to expectations, significant negative industry orr r economic trends and significant changes or planned changes in the use of the
assets. If an impairment review is performed to evaluate a long-lived asset group for recoverabia lity, the Company compares forff ecasts
of undiscounted cash floff ws expected to result from the use and eventual disposition of the long-lived asset group to its carryirr ng value.
An impairment loss can be recognized in loss from operations when estimated undiscounted future cash floff ws expected to result from
the use of an asset group are less than its carrying amount. The impairment loss is based on the excess of the carrying value of the
impaired asset group over its fair value, determined based on discounted cash floff ws. The Company did not record any impairment
losses on long-lived assets during the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 or 2022.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price, plus the faiff r value of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, over the fair
value of identifiabla e net assets acquired. The Company performs a qualitative assessment on goodwill at least annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill may not be recoverabla e. If it is determined
in the qualitative assessment that the fair value of a reporting unit is more likely than not below its carrying amount, then the Company
will perform a quantitative impairment test. The quantitative goodwill impairment test is performed by comparing the fair value of a
reporting unit with its carrying amount. Any excess in the carryirr ng value of a reporting unit’s goodwill over its fair value is recognized
as an impairment loss, limited to the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The Company completes a single
assessment of Goodwill as it has one reporting unit.

For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, there was no impairment loss related to goodwill. For additional details, referff
to Note 4 “Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net.”
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Intangible Assets, net

Definite-lived intangible assets represent the estimated faiff r value of intangible assets acquired. Amortization is calculated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the intangible assets which are as follows:

Trade names 20 years
Consumer customer relationships 10 - 24 years
Management Service Agreement 16 years
Physician network 10 - 15 years
Payer contracts 10 - 22 years
MSO Service Agreements 21 years

The Company reviews the carrying value of its finite-lived intangible assets for impairment whenever events and circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverabla e froff m the estimated futurff e cash floff ws expected to result from its use
and eventual disposition. If these futurff e undiscounted cash flows are less than the carrying value of the asset, then the carrying amount
of the asset is written down to its fair value, based on the related estimated discounted future cash floff ws. The factors considered by
management in performing this assessment include current operating results; trends and prospects; the manner in which the intangible
assets are used; and the effeff cts of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors. Based on this assessment, no
impairment was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022. For additional details, refer to Note 4 “Goodwill
and Intangible Assets, Net.”

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs represent costs incurred to issue the Company’s note payable and are recorded as a direct reduction to the
Company’s note payable. These costs are amortized over the term of the appla icable indebtedness using the effeff ctive interest method.
Amortization is included in interest expense in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Company derives revenues froff m the following three sources: (i) FFS revenue, (ii) VBC revenue and (iii) other revenue from
additional services offereff d by Privia to its Privia Providers or directly to patients or employers. To determine revenue recognition for
arrangements that an entity determines are within the scope of ASC 606, the Company performs the following five steps:

i. Identify tff he contract(s) with a customer;

ii. Identify tff he performance obligations in the contract;

iii. Determine the transaction price;

iv. Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract; and

v. Recognize revenue as the entity satisfieff s a performance obligation.

FFS Revenue

FFS-pSS atient care

The Company’s FFS-patient care revenue is primarily generated froff m providing healthcare services to patients. Providing medical
services to patients represents the Company’s performance obligation under these third-party payer agreements, and accordingly, the
transaction price is allocated entirely to that one perforff mance obligation. The Company recognizes revenue as services are rendered
and appra oved by the Privia Providers, which is typically a single day for each service. The Company receives payment for services
from third-party payers, as well as froff m patients who have health insurance, but are also finff ancially responsible for some or all of the
service in the form of co-pays, coinsurance or deducd tibles. Patients who do not have health insurance are required to pay for their
services in full.

FFS-patient care revenue is reported net of provisions for contractuat l allowances from third-party payers and patients. The Company
has certain agreements with third-party payers that provide for reimbursement at amounts differeff nt from the Company’s standard
billing rates. The differences between the estimated reimbursement rates and the standard billing rates are accounted for as contractualt
adjud stments, which are deducted froff m gross revenue to arrive at FFS-patient care revenue. The Company determines the Company’s
estimate of implicit price concessions based on the Company’s historical collection experience with classes of patients using a
portfolff io approach as a practical expedient to account for patient contracts as collective groups rather than individually. The financial
statement effectff s of using this practical expedient are not materially different from an individual contract approach. Subsequent
changes to the estimate of the transaction price (determined on a portfolff io basis when appla icable) are generally recorded as
adjud stments to revenue in the period of the change. For the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, changes in the
Company’s estimates of implicit price concessions, contractuat l adjustments, and expected payments for performance obligations
satisfied in prior periods were not significant.
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With respect to the Company’s treatment of revenue from Owned Medical Groups and Friendly Medical Groups, it is necessary to
assess whether the Company is the principal or the agent with respect to FFS-patient care revenue in light of the facff t that healthcare
services are furff nished by Privia Providers rather than employees of the Owned Medical Groups. ASC 606-10-55-37A indicates that an
entity is a principal if it obtains control of a right to a service to be performed by another party, which gives the entity the abia lity to
direct that party to perform the services to the customer on the entity’s behalf. Tff he Owned Medical Groups, which are each majoa rity-
owned and controlled by us, own the contractuat l relationships with the patients and the third-party payers, and they direct Privia
Providers to perform healthcare services on the Company’s behalf. Although the Company is prohibited by law from interfering in the
physician-patient relationship or making clinical care decisions, the Company’s Owned Medical Groups are responsible for the
fulfillment of healthcare services to patients. Further, the Company employs Chief Medical Offiff cers and Medical Directors who
provide clinical oversight and direction over the clinical affaff irs of the Owned Medical Groups. In addition, the Owned Medical Group
provides the care coordination activities, patient outreach and education activities, and sets quality standards forff Privia Providers. The
Company also verifies that Privia Providers have the proper qualifications (e.g., correct licenses, certificates, etc.) for the Company’s
Owned Medical Groupsu , forff the Company and as a delegate on behalf of certain third-party payers. In addition to oversight of health
care services, the Owned Medical Group is also the party primarily responsible for providing the services to patients and maintains
discretion in establishing pricing forff all services through agreements with patients and their insurance payers. The Owned Medical
Groups negotiate and enter into provider agreements with third-party payer insurance companies, which outline the obligations of the
Owned Medical Group and the third-party payers in connection with providing patient care services to covered patients. This includes
setting the reimbursement rate for all services provided by the Owned Medical Groups.

In assessing who is the principal in providing the patient care services, the Company considered who controls the provision of patient
care services. As a result of the Company’s oversight of Owned Medical Groups (including setting the expectations for the Owned
Medical Group’s patients and the commercial payers’ expectations of the Owned Medical Groups) and the contractuat l relationships
with patients and their third-party payers, the Company is the principal in these relationships.

FFS-aSS dministrative services

The Company’s FFS-administrative services business provides administration and management services pursuant to MSA with Non-
Owned Medical Groups.

The Company’s MSAs with the Non-Owned Medical Groups range from 5 – 20 years in duration and outline the terms and conditions
of the administration and management services to be provided, which includes revenue cycle management services such as billings
and collections, as well as other services, including, but not limited to, payer contracting, information technology services and
accounting and treasury srr ervices.

In certain MSAs, the Company is paid administrative feesff equal to the cost of supplyingu certain services as outlined in the MSAs, and
if applicable, a margin is added to the cost of certain services. The margin, if appla icable, is fixff ed based on the MSAs; however, the
cost of supplyingu certain services can fluctuate durd ing the life of the MSAs.

In certain MSAs, the Company is paid a percentage of net collections. The percentage is fixed per the MSAs; however, the net
collections can fluctuate durd ing the life off f the contract.

Under each MSA, there is a single performance obligation to provide a series of administration and management services required forff
the contract period. The Company believes that each Non-Owned Medical Group receives the management and administrative
services each day and has concluded that an output method is appropriate for recognizing administrative services fee revenue.

Administrative fees aff re reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange
for the provision of administration and management services to the Non-Owned Medical Groups. In addition, certain of the
Company’s MSAs include rebates to the customers in the event that certain conditions occur. The Company estimates the transaction
price using the most likely amount methodology and amounts are included in the net transaction price to the extent that it is probable
that a significant reversal will not occur once any uncertainty associated with the variabla e consideration is subsequently resolved. The
Company reducd es the amount of FFS – administrative services revenue by the amount of any rebates earned by its customers. Rebates
of $1.8 million have been recorded for the years ended December 31, 2024, and $2.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2023
and 2022, respectively.

VBC Revenue

The Company’s VBC business consists of its clinically integrated network and ACOs which bring together independent physician
practices within the Company medical groups to focus on sharing data, improving care coordination, and collabora ating on initiatives to
improve outcomes and lower healthcare spending. The Company has contracts with the U.S. federalff government and large payer
organizations that are multi-year in naturt e typically ranging from three to five years and are paid as folff lows: (1) Capia tated revenue (2)
on a shared savings basis and (3) Care management feesff on a per member per month basis.

Capia tated Revenue

Capia tated revenue consists of capia tation fees earff ned under contracts with various Medicare Advantage payers (“Payers”) in at-risk
capitation arrangements. The Company is entitled to monthly feesff to provide a definff ed range of healthcare services forff Medicare
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Advantage health plan members (“attributed beneficiaries” or “attributed lives”) attributed to the Company’s contracted physicians
(typically primary care). Monthly fees arff e determined as a percentage of the premium payers receive from the Centers forff Medicare &
Medicaid Services (“CMS”) forff these attributed beneficiaries. In at-risk arrangements, the Company generally accepts financial risk
for beneficiaff ries attributed to its contracted physicians and, thereforff e, is responsible for the cost of contracted healthcare services
required by those beneficiaff ries in accordance with the terms of each agreement. Fees are recorded gross in revenue because the
Company is acting as a principal in coordinating and controlling the range of services provided (other than clinical decisions) under its
Capia tated revenue contracts with payers. Capia tated revenue contracts with payers are generally multi-year arrangements and have a
single monthly stand ready performance obligation, as defined by ASC Topic 606, Revenue from Contratt cts wtt ith Ctt usCC tomers (“ASC
606”), to provide all aspects of necessary medical care to members for the contracted period. The Company recognizes revenue in the
month in which the eligible beneficiaff ry is entitled to receive healthcare benefitsff during the contract term.

The transaction price for the Company’s capitation contracts is a fixed percentage of premium per attributed life with periodic
adjud stment, as the monthly feeff s to which the Company is entitled are subju ect to periodic adjustments under CMS’s risk adjud stment
payment methodology. CMS deploys a risk adjustment model that determines premiums paid to all payers according to each attributed
life’ff s health statust and certain demographic factff ors. Under this risk adjustment methodology, CMS calculates the risk adjud sted
premium payment using diagnosis data from various settings. The Company and healthcare providers collect and submit diagnosis
data to payers (and ultimately to CMS) to be utilized in the determination of risk adjustments and such data is used by the Company to
estimate any adjustments to the Capia tated revenue earned that may increase or decrease revenue in subsu equent periods pursuant to
contractuat l terms. Such adjustments are estimated using the most likely amount methodology and amounts are only included in
revenue to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue will not occur once any uncertainty is
resolved. Capitated revenue fees are also subject to adjud stment for incentives or penalties based on the achievement of certain quality
metrics definff ed in the Company’s contracts with payers. The Company recognizes incentive revenue as earned using the most likely
amount methodology and only to the extent it is probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue will not occur once any
uncertainty is resolved.

Neither the Company nor any of its affiff liates are a registered insurance company as state law in the states in which the Company
operates do not require such registration forff risk bearing providers.

Shared Savings

Under the shared savings basis, the Company is offereff d finff ancial incentives to increase their accountability for the cost, quality and
effiff ciency of the care provided to the population of attributed members. The Company is paid the finff ancial incentives when, for a
given twelve-month measurement period, their performance on quality of care and utilization meets or exceeds the standards set by the
payers as outlined in the contracts and when savings are achieved forff medical costs associated with the population of attributed
members. The payers analyze the activities durd ing the measurement period using the agreed upon benchmarks, metrics and
performance criteria to determine the appra opriate payments to the Company.

The Company estimates the transaction price by analyzing the activities durd ing the relevant time period in contemplation of the agreed
upon benchmarks, metrics, performance criteria, inflation trend factors, risks ratio adjud stments, and attribution criteria based on those
and any other contractuat lly definff ed factors. Revenue is not recorded until the price can be estimated by the Company and to the extent
that it is probable that a significant reversal will not occur once any uncertainty associated with the variabla e consideration is
subsu equently resolved. Revenue is recorded during the period when the services are provided durd ing a pre-set twelve-month annual
measurement period.

Care management

Under the PMPM basis, the Company is paid a PMPM rate forff each covered individual who is attributed by the payer to the Company
(“attributed members”). The Company records revenue in the month forff which the PMPM rate applies and the member was attributed.
The PMPM rate is based on a predetermined monthly contractuat l rate forff each attributed member regardless of the volume of care
coordination services provided under the contracts with the payers. The PMPM rate varies based on payer and product.

Revenue is reported at the amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the
provision of care coordination services to its population of attributed members. The Company’s contracts with payers have a single
performance obligation that consists of a series of services forff the provision of care coordination services for the population of
attributed members forff the durd ation of the contract. The transaction price for the contracts is entirely variabla e, as it is primarily based
on a PMPM rate on monthly attributed membership, which can fluctuate durd ing the life off f the contract.

The majority of the Company’s net PMPM transaction price relates specifically to its effortff s to transfer the service forff a distinct
increment of the series and is recognized as revenue in the month in which attributed members are entitled to care coordination
services.
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Othett r Revenue

The remainder of the Company’s revenue is derived froff m leveraging the Company’s existing base of providers and patients to deliver
value-oriented services such as concierge services, virtual visits, virtual scribes and coding, clinical trials, behavioral health
management, and partnerships with self-iff nsured employers to offeff r direct primary care to their employees.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instrumr ents consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other receivables and assets,
accounts payable, and debt. The Company considers the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, other
receivables, accounts payable, debt to related parties and debt to be indicative of their respective faiff r values. The carrying amount for
debt approximates faiff r value which is definff ed as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. A three level hierarchy for faiff r value measurements exists
based uponu the transparency of inputs to the valuation of an asset or liabia lity as of the measurement date. The three levels are definff ed
as follows:

Level 1—inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabia lities in active
markets.

Level 2—inputs to the valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or liabia lities in active markets, and
inputs that are observable forff the asset or liabia lity, either directly or indirectly, forff subsu tantially the fulff l term of the financial
instrument.

Level 3—inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurement.

A finff ancial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the
fair value measurement. The Company’s finff ancial instruments are considered Level 1 assets and liabia lities.

Non-Controlling Interest

The non-controlling interest represents the equity interest of the non-controlling equity holders in results of operations of Privia
Management Services Organization, LLC, Privia Management Company Montana, LLC, BASS Privia Management Company of
Californiff a, LLC, Privia Management Company West Texas, LLC, Privia Management Company North Carolina, LLC, Privia
Management Company of Ohio, LLC, Privia Services Company Connecticut, LLC, Privia Quality Network Connecticut, LLC, Privia
Quality Network Delaware, LLC and our Owned Medical Groups. The consolidated financial statements include all assets, liabia lities,
revenues, and expenses of less-than-100%-owned affiliates where the Company has a controlling financial interest. The Company has
separately reflected net income attributable to the non-controlling interests in net income in the consolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts forff income taxes in accordance with the provisions of ASC Topic 740, Income Taxesaa (“ASC 740”). ASC 740
requires that income tax accounts be computed using the asset and liabia lity method. Deferred tax assets and liabia lities are recognized
for the tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabia lities
and their respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards.

Deferred tax assets and liabia lities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the
temporary drr iffereff nces are expected to be recovered or settled. Under ASC 740, the effect on deferred tax assets and liabia lities of a
change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Should the Company determine that it is
more likely than not that some portion or all of its deferred tax assets will not be realized, a valuation allowance to the deferred tax
assets would be established in the period such determination was made. State corporate taxes were calculated based on a blended rate
calculated based on the Company’s allocation and apportionment to the states. Calculation under the blended rate does not result in a
material difference.

ASC 740 requires an entity to recognize the finff ancial statement impact of a tax position when it is more likely than not that the
position will be sustained upon examination. If the tax position meets the more likely than not recognition threshold, the tax effeff ct is
recognized at the largest amount of the benefit thff at has greater than a fiftyff percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate
settlement. ASC 740 also provides guidance forff classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure, and
transition. ASC 740 requires that a liabia lity created for unrecognized tax benefitsff be presented as a separate liabia lity and not combined
with deferred tax liabia lities or assets.

At December 31, 2024, and 2023, the Company believes it has appropra iately accounted for any unrecognized tax benefitsff . To the
extent the Company prevails in matters for which a liabia lity forff an unrecognized tax benefit isff establa ished or is required to pay
amounts in excess of the liability, the Company’s effective tax rate in a given financial statement period may be affected. As there are
no uncertain tax positions, the Company does not have any accrued interest or penalties associated with any unrecognized tax benefits.
The Company and its subsu idiaries file income tax returt ns in the U.S. federalff jurisdiction and in various state jurisdictions. As of
December 31, 2024, the periods subju ect to examination by the Company’s major jurisdictions (federal and various states) are generally
for the years December 31, 2020 through December 31, 2024.
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Provider Liability

Provider Liabia lity represents costs payable to physicians, hospitals and other ancillary providers, including both Privia Physicians,
their related practices, and providers the Company has contracted with through payer partners. Those costs include amounts that have
not yet been paid for physician guaranteed payments and other required distributions pursuant to the service agreements as well as
medical claims costs forff services provided to attributed beneficiaries forff which the Company is finff ancially responsible under at-risk
capitated revenue arrangements whether paid directly by the Company or indirectly by payers with whom the Company has
contracted.

Leases

The Company evaluates whether a contract is or contains a lease at the inception of the contract. Upon lease commencement, which is
defined as the date on which a lessor makes the underlying asset availabla e to the Company for usff e, the Company classifies the lease as
either an operating or finff ance lease. The Company’s leases primarily consist of operating leases for office space in certain states in
which the Company operates. The Company also has operating leases for equipment, which are not significant.

Right-of-use assets represent the Company’s right to use an underlying asset forff the lease term and lease liabia lities represent the
Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. Lease liabia lities are measured at the present value of the
remaining, fixed lease payments at lease commencement. The Company uses its incremental borrowing rate, adjusted forff the effecff ts of
collateralization, based on the information availabla e at the later of adoption, inception, or modification in determining the present
value of lease payments. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the initial lease liabia lity, plus any prepaid lease
payments (less any incentives received) and initial direct costs, at the lease commencement date. The Company has elected to account
for lease and non-lease components as a single lease component for its facility leases. As a result, the fixff ed payments that would
otherwise be allocated to the non-lease components are accounted for as lease payments and are included in the measurement of the
Company’s right-of-use asset and lease liabia lity. Lease expense forff lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease
term in general and administrative expense on the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company does not recognize a lease liabia lity or right-of-use asset on the balance sheet for short-term leases. Instead, the Company
recognizes short-term lease payments as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. A short-term lease is definff ed as a lease
that, at the commencement date, has a lease term of 12 months or less and does not include an option to purchase the underlying asset
that the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise. When determining whether a lease qualifies as a short-term lease, the Company
evaluates the lease term and the purchase option in the same manner as all other leases.

Provider Expense

Provider expense are amounts accruer d or payments made to physicians, hospitals and other service providers, including Privia
Physicians, their related physician practices, and providers the Company has contracted with through payer partners. Those costs
include physician guaranteed payments and other required distributions pursuant to the service agreements as well as medical claims
costs forff services provided to attributed beneficiaries under at-risk Capia tated revenue arrangements forff which the Company is
financially responsible whether paid directly by the Company or indirectly by payers with whom the Company has contracted.
Provider expenses are recognized in the period in which services are provided.

Cost of Platform

Cost of platform represents the direct costs the Company incurs to provide services to Privia Physicians and their practices. It includes
third-party electronic medical records and practice management softwff are expenses, employee-related expenses, including salaries and
employee benefitsff costs, stock-based compensation, as well as consulting expenses, travel-related expenses and technology related
expenses for the team. Cost of platforff m excludes depreciation and amortization expense. Third-party electronic medical records and
practice management softwff are expenses are paid on a percentage of revenue basis, while employee-related expenses are variabla e based
on the number of employees used to service the Company’s implemented physicians.

Sales and Marketing

Sales and marketing expenses consist of employee-related expenses, including salaries, stock-based compensation, commissions, and
employee benefitsff costs, for all of the Company’s employees, engaged in marketing, sales, community outreach, and sales support.
These employee-related expenses capture all costs for both the Company’s fieldff -based and corporate sales and marketing teams. Sales
and marketing expenses also include central and community-based advertising to generate greater awareness, engagement, and
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retention among the Company’s current and prospective patients as well as the infrastructurt e required to support all of the Company’s
marketing efforts.

General and Administrative

Corporate, general and administrative expenses include employee-related expenses, including salaries and related costs and stock-
based compensation, technology infrastructurt e, operations, clinical and quality supporu t, finance, legal, human resources, and
development departments. In addition, general and administrative expenses include all corporate technology and occupancu y costs.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts forff share-based compensation in accordance with the expense recognition provisions of ASC 718,
Compensation–Stock ComCC pensm ation (“ASC 718”), which requires the issuer to recognize compensation expense forff all share-based
payments made to employees based on the fair value of the share-based payment at the date of grant. The Company estimates the fairff
value of the options granted to Company’s employees and contractors using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Option valuation
models require several inputs, such as the expected stock price volatility, the fair value of the stock, the risk freff e rate, the expected
term of the award and the dividend yield. The Company records share-based compensation forff feitures as a reversal of previously
recognized compensation expense as the forfeitures occur. For additional details refer to Note 11 “Stockholder Equity.”

The Company issues certain PSU awards. The awards vest based on the satisfaction of certain service conditions, performance-based
conditions, and/or market conditions. The Company has identified certain perforff mance metrics associated with some of these awards
and certain targets will be fulff ly establa ished at a future date. For the awards with performance-based conditions where the target will be
fully establa ished at a future date, the Company has determined that the service inception date precedes the grant date for these awards
as (a) the awards were authorized prior to establishing an accounting grant date, (b) the recipients began providing services prior to the
grant date, and (c) there are perforff mance conditions that, if not met by the accounting grant date, will result in the forff feiture of the
awards. As the service inception date precedes the accounting grant date, the Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense
over the requisite service period based on the estimated faiff r value at each reporting date. For the awards that are solely based on
employment and the achievement of certain market performance metric targets, which have already been determined, the fair value of
the PSUs are determined using a Monte Carlo valuation model as of the grant date and recognize stock-based compensation on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period.

Net Income (Loss) per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period.

The treasury srr tock method is used to consider the effect of the potentially dilutive stock options. Diluted net income (loss) attributable
to common stockholders is computed by adjud sting income (loss) attributable to common stockholders to allocate undistributed
earnings based on the potential impact of dilutive securities, including outstanding stock options. Diluted net income (loss) per share
attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing the diluted net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the
weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period, including common stock equivalents. In periods when the
Company has incurred a net loss, options to purchase common stock are considered common stock equivalents but have been excluded
from the calculation of diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders as their effect is antidilutive.

Recently Adoptdd edtt Accountingii Pronouncements

In November 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2023-07, Segment Reporting - ImpII rovements ttt o Reportable
Segment Disclosures. The amendments require disclosure of incremental segment information on an annual and interim basis. The
amendments also require companies with a single reportabla e segment to provide all disclosures required by this amendment and all
existing segment disclosures in Accounting Standards Codification 280, Segment Reporting. The amendment is effective forff fiscal
years beginning afteff r December 15, 2023, and interim periods beginning afteff r December 15, 2024. The adoption of this standard did
not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements or related disclosures.

Recently Issued Accountintt g ProPP nouncements Pendindd g Adoptiontt

In December 2023, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2023-09, Income Taxeaa s - Imprm ovements to Income Tax
Discii losures. The amendments require (i) enhanced disclosures in connection with an entity's effeff ctive tax rate reconciliation and (ii)
income taxes paid disaggregated by jurisdiction. The amendment is effective forff annual periods beginning afteff r December 15, 2024.
The Company is evaluating the impact of ASU 2024-03 on its finff ancial statements and related disclosures.

In November 2024, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update No. 2024-03, Disaii ggregation of Io ncomII e StaSS tement Expenses
(“DI“ SEII ”). The amendments require disclosures abouta the naturt e of expenses included in the income statement, such as purchases of
inventory,rr employee compensation and depreciation. The amendment is effective forff annual reporting periods beginning afterff
December 15, 2026, and interim reporting periods beginning afteff r December 15, 2027. The Company is evaluating the impact of ASU
2024-03 on its financial statements and related disclosures.
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2. Revenue Recognition

The folff lowing tabla e presents the Company’s revenues disaggregated by source:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(Dollars in Thousands) 2024 2023 2022

FFS-patient care $ 1,146,156 $ 976,688 $ 869,165
FFS-administrative services 125,431 113,154 94,929
Capia tated revenue 212,987 338,729 218,463
Shared savings 179,202 170,143 132,615
Care management fees (PMPM) 64,066 50,519 35,541
Other revenue 8,548 8,504 5,947
Total Revenue $ 1,736,390 $ 1,657,737 $ 1,356,660

FFS patient care is primarily generated froff m third-party payers with which the Company has establa ished contractual billing
arrangements. The folff lowing tabla e presents the approximate percentages by source of net revenue received for heff althcare services the
Company provided forff the periods indicated:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

Commercial insurers 71 % 70 % 70 %
Government payers 14 % 15 % 16 %
Patient 15 % 15 % 14 %

100 % 100 % 100 %

FFS-administrative services revenue is earned through the Company’s MSA with Non-Owned Medical Groups primarily based on a
fixed percentage of net collections on patient care generated by those medical groups.

VBC revenue is primarily earned through contracts forff Capia tated revenue, Shared savings and Care management feeff s. Capia tated
revenue is generated through what is typically known as an “at-risk contract.” At-risk capitation refers to a model in which the
Company receives a fixed monthly payment from the third-party payer in exchange for providing healthcare services to attributed
beneficiaries. The Company is responsible for providing or paying for the cost of healthcare services required by those attributed
beneficiaries forff a set of services. At-risk Capia tated revenue is recorded at the total amount gross in revenues because the Company is
acting as a principal in arranging for, providing, and controlling the managed healthcare services provided to the attributed lives.
Shared savings revenue and Care management feesff are generated through contracts with large commercial payer organizations and the
U.S. Federal Government.

Contratt ct Asset

The Company has the following contract assets:

(Dollars in Thousands) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Balances for contracts with customers
Accounts receivable $ 316,179 $ 290,768

Remaining PerPP for rmance Obligatiott ns

The Company does not disclose the value of the remaining performance obligations at the end of the reporting period or when the
Company expects to recognize revenue. The Company has minimal unsatisfied performance obligations at the end of the reporting
period as the Company’s patients typically are under no obligation to continue receiving services at the Company’s faciff lities.
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3. Business Combinations

During Februar ry 2023, the Company entered into the Connecticut market through the acquisition of Privia Quality Network
Connecticut (“PQN-CT”), whereby Privia acquired a 51% ownership interest in PQN-CT. The acquisition was accounted for using the
acquisition method pursuant to the requirements of ASC 805. The results of operations of the acquisition have been included in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.

During August 2023, the Company launched Washington Friendly Medical Group, a physician-owned Medical Group, with
Washington Nominee PC, an entity entirely owned by a Nominee Physician, owning majority membership interest and having
governance and control rights via the governing documents of Washington Friendly Medical Group. The Company has a contractualt
relationship with the Washington Nominee PC and its Nominee Physician owner through a Restriction Agreement. Washington
Nominee PC owns 51% interest in Washington Friendly Medical Group. The results of operations of the acquisition have been
included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.

During October 2023, the Company acquired Privia Medical Group South Carolina, LLC, (“PMG SC”). PMG SC is a physician-
owned Medical Group, with PMG South Carolina Holdings, PLLC (“Friendly SC PC”), a South Carolina professional limited liability
company entirely owned by a licensed physician with a leadership role in the Company, owning majority membership interests and
having governance and control rights via the governing documents of PMG SC. The Company has a contractuat l relationship with
Friendly SC PC through a Restriction Agreement. PMG SC owns 51% interest in Friendly SC PC. The results of operations of the
acquisition have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.

In January 2rr 024, PMG West Texas Holdings, PLLC, a Nominee PC, acquired a majority ownership interest in an independent
physician association in the Gulf Coast Market. The Company, through one of its affiff liates, is party to a Restriction Agreement with
the Nominee PC. The results of operations of the acquisition have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial statements
since the date of acquisition.

During November 2024, the Company acquired Privia Medical Group Indiana, LLC, (“PMG IN”). PMG IN is a physician-owned
Medical Group, with PMG Indiana Holdings, LLC (“Friendly IN PC”), an Indiana professional limited liabia lity company entirely
owned by a licensed physician with a leadership role in the Company, owning majority membership interests and having governance
and control rights via governing documents of PMG IN. The Company has a contractuat l relationship with Friendly IN PC through a
Restriction Agreement. PMG IN owns 51% interest in Friendly IN PC. The results of operations of the acquisition have been included
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since the date of acquisition.

The purchase price for the acquisitions noted above was allocated as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)
Total Acquisitions forff the Year
Ended December 31, 2024

Total Acquisitions forff the Year
Ended December 31, 2023

Cash paid, net of cash acquired $ 6,957 $ 42,858
Contingent payables 4,250 344
Total consideration $ 11,207 $ 43,202

Payer contract and physician network intangibles $ 8,342 $ 55,603
Goodwill 2,865 11,811
Fair value of non-controlling interests — (24,212)
Total acquired net assets $ 11,207 $ 43,202

The goodwill relating to these acquisitions is not deductible for tax purposes and is primarily attributable to synergies related to the
assembled workforff ce. Goodwill is measured as the excess of the consideration transferred over the fair value of assets acquired and
liabia lities assumed on the acquisition date. For the 2024 transaction related to PMG IN, the Company is in the process of completing
its formal valuation analysis to identify aff nd determine the fair value of tangible and identifiabla e intangible assets acquired and the
liabia lities assumed. Thus, the final allocation of the purchase price may diffeff r froff m the preliminary err stimates used at December 31,
2024 based on additional inforff mation obtained and completion of the valuation of the identifiabla e intangible assets. The Company
does not expect any adjustments, if necessary, to be material.
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4. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net

For the purposrr es of the goodwill impairment assessment, the Company as a whole is considered to be the reporting unit. The Company
recognizes the excess of the purchase price, plus the faiff r value of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, over the fair value of
identifiabla e net assets acquired as goodwill. The Company performs a qualitative assessment on goodwill at least annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill may not be recoverabla e. If it is determined
in the qualitative assessment that the fair value of a reporting unit is more likely than not below its carrying amount, then the Company
will perform a quantitative impairment test. The quantitative goodwill impairment test is performed by comparing the fair value of a
reporting unit with its carrying amount. Any excess in the carryirr ng value of a reporting unit’s goodwill over its fair value is recognized
as an impairment loss, limited to the total amount of goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. The Company’s carrying value of
goodwill at December 31, 2024 and 2023 is $141.6 million and $138.7 million, respectively. No indicators of impairment were
identified durd ing the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

During the year ended December 31, 2023, Privia entered into three new markets resulting in the recording of goodwill. During
Februar ry 2023, the Company entered into the Connecticut market through the acquisition of Privia Quality Network Connecticut
(“PQN-CT”), whereby Privia acquired majority ownership in PQN-CT. During August 2023, the Company entered into the
Washington market through the launch of Washington Friendly Medical Group in affiff liation with Walla Walla Clinic, a multi-
specialty group practice with more than 50 providers and 3 care center locations. During October 2023, the Company entered into the
South Carolina market through the acquisition of Privia Medical Group South Carolina, LLC (“PMG SC”), whereby Privia acquired
majority ownership in PMG SC.

During January 2024, PMG West Texas Holdings, PLLC, a Nominee PC, acquired a majority ownership interest in an independent
physician association in the Gulf Coast Market. The Company, through one of its affiff liates, is party to a Restriction Agreement with
the Nominee PC. The Company recorded Goodwill of $0.7 million in connection with the acquisition.

During November 2024, the Company entered into the Indiana market through the acquisition of Privia Medical Group Indiana, LLC
(“PMG IN”), whereby Privia acquired majority ownership in PMG IN. During the year ended December 31, 2024, the Company
recorded Goodwill of $2.2 million in connection with PMG IN, which represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of
the net assets acquired.

A summary of the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

(Dollars in thousands)
Intangible
Assets

Accumulated
Amortization

Intangible
Assets

Accumulated
Amortization

Trade names $ 4,600 $ 2,377 $ 4,600 $ 2,147
Consumer customer relationships 3,100 2,758 3,100 2,566
Management Service Agreement 2,200 1,272 2,200 1,134
Physician network 10,902 916 7,446 362
Payer contracts 57,313 4,768 52,427 2,184
MSO Service Agreement 51,800 8,017 51,800 5,550

129,915 $ 20,108 121,573 $ 13,943
Less accumulated amortization (20,108) (13,943)
Intangible assets, net $ 109,807 $ 107,630

The remaining weighted average life off f all amortizable intangible assets is approximately 16.8 years at December 31, 2024.

Amortization expense forff intangible assets was appra oximately $6.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2024, $5.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2023 and $3.4 million forff the year ended December 31, 2022, respectively.

Estimated amortization expense forff the Company’s intangible assets for the following five years is as folff lows:

(Dollars in Thousands)

2025 $ 6,691
2026 6,691
2027 6,691
2028 6,691
2029 6,691
Thereafteff r 76,352
Total $ 109,807
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5. Leases

The Company leases offiff ce space under various operating lease agreements. The initial terms of these leases range from 3 to 9 years
and generally provide for periodic rent increases and renewal options.

The components of lease expense were as folff lows:

(Dollars in Thousands) For the Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023

Operating lease cost $ 2,772 $ 2,696

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease liabilities - operating
leases $ 2,888 $ 3,861
Weighted-average remaining lease term - operating leases 3.1 Years 3.8 Years
Weighted-average discount rate - operating leases 2.6 % 2.7 %

The aggregate futurff e lease payments for operating leases in the years subsequent to December 31, 2024 are as folff lows:

(Dollars in Thousands)

2025 $ 2,401
2026 1,762
2027 814
2028 399
2029 239
Thereafteff r 183
Total futurff e lease payments 5,798
Imputed interest (208)
Total $ 5,590

6. Property and Equipment, Net

A summary of the Company’s property and equipment, net is as folff lows:

(Dollars in Thousands) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Furniture and fixtuff res $ 1,402 $ 1,402
Computer equipment 1,686 1,686
Leasehold improvements 4,960 4,939

8,048 8,027
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (6,806) (5,702)
Property and equipment, net $ 1,242 $ 2,325

Depreciation and amortization expenses for property and equipment assets was approxia mately $1.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2024, and $1.2 million forff the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

7. Account Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following:

(Dollars in Thousands) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Accounts payable $ 9,755 $ 7,882
Accruer d employee compensation and benefits 5,999 5,973
Bonuses payable 20,421 15,073
Other accruerr d expenses 45,811 28,903
Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 81,986 $ 57,831
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8. Provider Liability

Provider liabia lity represents costs payable to physicians, hospitals and other ancillary providers, including both Privia physicians (and
their related physician practices), and providers the Company has contracted with through payer partners. Those costs include amounts
that have not yet been paid for physician guaranteed payments and other required distributions pursuant to the service agreements as
well as medical claims costs forff services provided to attributed beneficiaries forff which the Company is finff ancially responsible under
at-risk Capia tated revenue arrangements whether paid directly by the Company or indirectly by payers with whom the Company has
contracted. Provider expenses are recognized in the period in which services are provided and include estimates of claims that have
been incurred but have either not yet been received, processed, or paid and as such, not reported.

Provider liabia lity estimates are developed using actuat rial methods commonly used by health insurance actuat ries that include a number
of factors and assumptions including medical service utilization trends, changes in membership, observed medical cost trends,
historical claim payment patterns and other factff ors.

Each period, the Company re-examines previously establa ished provider liabia lity estimates based on actuat l claim submu issions and other
changes in factff s and circumstances. As more complete claims information becomes availabla e, the Company adjud sts its estimates and
recognizes those changes in estimates in the period in which the change is identified. The differeff nce between the estimated liabia lity
and the actuat l settlements of claims is recognized in the period in which the claims are settled. The Company’s provider liabia lity
balance represents management’s best estimate of its liability for unpaid provider expenses. The Company uses judgment to determine
the appa ropriate assumptions for developing the required estimates.

The Company’s liabia lities for unpaid medical claims under at-risk capia tation arrangements, which are included in Provider liabia lity in
the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, were as follows:
(Dollars in Thousands) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Balance, beginning of period $ 67,138 $ 28,617
Incurred health care costs:
Current year 208,341 334,383
Prior years 964 2,436
Total claim incurred 209,305 336,819
Claims paid:
Current year (157,375) (270,810)
Prior year (52,713) (27,488)
Total claims paid (210,088) (298,298)
Balance, end of period $ 66,355 $ 67,138

9. Debt

On November 16, 2023, Privia Health Group, Inc., PH Group Holdings Corp., and Privia Health, LLC, as borrower, (collectively, the
“Privia Parties”) entered into a credit agreement (the “Revolving Credit Agreement”) with Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
issuing lender, and certain other lenders, pursuant to which the Privia Parties established a $125 million five-year senior secured
revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Credit Facility”). The Revolving Credit Agreement bears interest at a base rate plus
applicable margin, with the base rate being the higher of the Prime Rate or the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50%. In no event will the
base rate be less than 1.0%

The Revolving Credit Facility, which expires in November 2028, provides forff revolving loans and the issuance of letters of credit in
an aggregate amount of $125 million. On a quarterly basis, the Company pays a commitment feeff on the unused Revolving Credit
Facility (0.20% per annum). The proceeds of these loans and the letters of credit issued under the Revolving Credit Facility may be
used for capital expenditures, expenses related to transactions and general corporate purposes.

The Revolving Credit Agreement contains customary arr ffirmative, negative and financial covenants, and customary events of default.
The occurrence of an event of default under the Revolving Credit Agreement may cause the unpaid principal and accruerr d interest, and
all other obligations under the Revolving Credit Agreement to become immediately dued and payable.

As of December 31, 2024, no amounts were outstanding under the Revolving Credit Facility.

Subsu tantially all of the Company’s real and personal property serve as collateral under the above debt arrangements.
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10. Income Taxes

The provision for (benefit froff m) income taxes for yeff ars ending December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022 are as folff lows:
December 31,

(Dollars in Thousands) 2024 2023 2022
Current:
Federal $ 1,022 $ — $ —
State and Local 987 528 509
Total current 2,009 528 509

Deferred:
Federal $ 7,234 $ 6,221 $ (5,478)
State and Local 1,583 1,244 (1,547)

Total deferff red 8,817 7,465 (7,025)
Total provision for (benefit froff m) incomes taxes $ 10,826 $ 7,993 $ (6,516)

Deferred taxes refleff ct the net tax effects of temporary drr iffereff nces between the carrying amounts of assets and liabia lities for finff ancial
reporting purposr es and the amounts used forff income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabia lities as of December 31,
2024 and 2023 are as folff lows:

(Dollars in Thousands) December 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Deferred tax assets
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 11,537 $ 22,071
Stock compensation 22,994 19,598
Lease liabia lity 1,774 2,581
Other accruarr ls 73 74

Total gross tax assets 36,378 44,324
Less: valuation allowance — —

Total deferff red tax assets $ 36,378 $ 44,324

Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed and intangible assets $ (8,698) $ (7,302)
Right-of-use asset (1,297) (1,822)

Total deferff red tax liabia lities (9,995) (9,124)
Deferred tax assets, net $ 26,383 $ 35,200

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company completed an assessment of the likelihood of realizing all or some
portion of its net deferred tax assets. Based on an analysis of the positive and negative evidence, the Company determined it was more
likely than not that the Company will be in a position to realize the benefits of the deferred tax asset as a result of consistent
profitaff bia lity excluding non-recurring stock compensation charges in connection with the Company's IPO. As such, no valuation
allowance was recorded in either year. As of December 31, 2024, the Company has generated federal and state net operating loss
carryforwards of approximately $47.2 million and $30.1 million (post-apportioned state NOL) respectively, that begin to expire in
2034.
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The folff lowing is a reconciliation of income tax computed at the U.S. federalff statutort y irr ncome tax rate to the provision for (benefit
from) income taxes:

Amount Percent
December 31, December 31,

(Dollars in Thousands) 2024 2023 2022 2024 2023 2022
Tax provision (benefitff ) computed at Federal statutory
income tax rate $ 6,041 $ 6,094 $ (3,901) 21.0 % 21.0 % 21.0 %

Stock compensation 3,136 (22) (2,241) 10.9 (0.1) 12.1
State tax expense (benefit), net of Federal benefitff 2,051 2,140 (707) 7.1 7.4 3.8
Rate change 97 (115) (538) 0.3 (0.4) 2.9
Non-controlling interest (486) 331 722 (1.7) 1.1 (3.9)
Other (13) (435) 149 — (1.5) (0.8)
Provision for (benefit froff m) income taxes $ 10,826 $ 7,993 $ (6,516) 37.6 % 27.5 % 35.1 %

The stock compensation impacting the income tax provision for the year ended December 31, 2024, is primarily attributable to stock-
based compensation expense that is not deductible under Section 162(m) and tax expense related to deferred tax asset reversals for
shortfalff ls. The stock compensation impacting the income tax provision for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are primarily
attributable to stock based compensation expense that is not deductible under Section 162(m) offsff et by tax deducd tible stock based
compensation.

The 2021 through 2024 federal and 2020 through 2024 state income tax returns are within the statute of limitations (“SOL”) and are
currently not under examination by any federalff or state tax authority.

The Company assesses the uncertainty in its income tax positions to determine whether a tax position of the Company is more likely
than not to be sustained uponu examination, including resolution of any related appeals of litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the position. For the tax position meeting the more-likely-than-not threshold, the tax amount recognized in the finff ancial
statements is reduced by the largest benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon the ultimate settlement with
the relevant taxing authority. As of December 31, 2024, 2023, and 2022, the Company had not recorded any reserves for uncff ertain tax
positions or related interest and penalties.

11. Stockholders’ Equity

2021 Omnibus Incentive Planl

On April 6, 2021, the Board approved the 2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) which permits awards in respect of up tou
10,278,581 shares of Common Stock. The Plan also provides forff an automatic increase on the first day of each fiscal year following
the effective date of the Plan by an amount equal to the lesser of (i) 5% of outstanding shares on December 31 of the immediately
preceding fisff cal year or (ii) such number of shares as determined by the Company’s Compensation Committee in its discretion. The
Plan provides forff the granting of stock options at a price equal to at least 100% of the faiff r market value of Common Stock as of the
date of grant. The Plan also provides forff the granting of Stock Appreciation Rights, Restricted Stock, Restricted Stock Units
(“RSUs”), Performance Awards (“PSUs”) and other cash-based or other stock-based awards, all of which must be granted at not less
than the faiff r market value of Common Stock as of the date of grant.

Prior to the Company’s initial public offeriff ng ("IPO”), the Company granted stock options pursuant to the PH Group Parent Corp.
Stock Option Plan (the “PH Parent Option Plan”). The Company no longer issues grants under the PH Parent Option Plan and no
shares of Common Stock are reserved forff future issuance thereunder.

2021 Employm ee Stock Purchase Plan

In April 2021, the Company’s Board of Directors appa roved the Company’s 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“2021 ESPP”). The
2021 ESPP became effeff ctive uponu the execution of the underwriting agreement forff the Company’s IPO in April 2021. Per the 2021
ESPP, shares may be newly issued shares, treasury srr hares or shares acquired on the open market. The Compensation Committee may
elect to increase the total number of Shares availabla e forff purchase under the 2021 ESPP as of the firff st day of each Company fisff cal year
following the effectff ive date of the 2021 ESPP in an amount equal to up to one percent (1%) of the shares issued and outstanding on
the immediately preceding December 31; provided that the maximum number of shares that may be issued under the Plan in any event
shall be 10,278,581 shares. As of the IPO, the Company has reserved 1,027,858 shares of common stock forff issuance under the 2021
ESPP. As of December 31, 2024, no shares have been issued under this plan.

Novant Health Private Placement

On March 2, 2023, the Company entered into a strategic alignment agreement (the “Equity Alignment Agreement”) with
ChoiceHealth, Inc. (“Novant Sub”u ), a subsidiary of Novant Health, Inc. (“Novant Health”), in connection with the strategic
partnership between the Company and Novant Health entered into in November 2022 to launch Privia Medical Group —u North
Carolina.

F-25



Pursuant to the Equity Alignment Agreement, Novant Sub wu ill be entitled to receive, and the Company agreed to issue, shares of the
Company’s common stock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”), to Novant Sub au ny time each of the folff lowing events
occurs, in the following amounts:

1. The Company will issue 745,712 shares of Common Stock to Novant Sub eu ach time Privia Medical Group — North Carolina
implements 1,000 providers in specified markets in North Carolina.

2. The Company will issue 372,856 shares of Common Stock to Novant Sub eu ach time the Company and Novant Health enter a
new state pursuant to a mutually agreed business plan developed forff such state.

3. The Company will issue 745,712 shares of Common Stock to Novant Sub eu ach time the partnership between the Company
and Novant Health for each new state implements 1,000 providers in specifieff d core markets in such state.

The Equity Alignment Agreement will renew every four years, subju ect to the delivery of a third-party valuation opinion. The renewal
will be required to use the same issuance triggers, but the number of shares may be adjud sted to be consistent with the valuation
opinion. The total number of shares of Common Stock issuable to Novant Sub uu nder the Equity Alignment Agreement and all
renewals of the Equity Alignment Agreement will be subju ect to a total cap equal to 19.9% of the total number of shares of Common
Stock outstanding as of the effective date of the Equity Alignment Agreement and as of the effective date of all renewals, whichever is
lowest. No shares have been issued to Novant Sub uu nder the Equity Alignment Agreement as of December 31, 2024. A member of the
Board is a member of the board of trusrr tees of Novant Health.

Stock opto ion activity

For the Options granted under the Plan, Privia used a Black-Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value. Option valuation
models require several inputs, such as the expected stock price volatility, the fair value of the stock, the risk freff e rate, the expected
term of the award and the dividend yield. Below outlines the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes modeling and calculation of the
option faiff r value.

• Volatility - The Company determines volatility based on the historical stock volatilities of a group of publicly listed guideline
companies over a period equal to the expected terms of the options, as the Company does not have sufficient trading history
to determine the volatility of the Company’s common stock.

• Fair value of common stock - The Company uses the publicly quoted price as the fair value of the Company’s common stock.

• Risk-free interest rate - The Company bases the risk-free interest rate used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model on the
implied yield availabla e on U.S. Treasury zrr ero-coupon issues with an equivalent expected term of the options for each option
group.

• Expected term - The expected term represents the period that the Company’s stock-based awards are expected to be
outstanding. The expected term assumption is based on the simplified method in which the expected term is equal to the
average of the stock-based award’s weighted-average vesting period and its contractuat l term. The Company expects to
continue using the simplifieff d method until sufficient inforff mation about hia storical behavior is availabla e.

• Dividend yield - The Company has not declared or paid any cash dividend and does not currently plan to pay a cash dividend
in the forff eseeabla e futurff e. Consequently, the Company used an expected dividend yield of zero.

The Company estimated the fair value of stock option grants using a Black-Scholes option pricing model with the folff lowing
assumptions presented on a weighted-average basis (no stock options granted forff the year ended December 31, 2024):

For the Year Ended December 31,
2022

Expected term in years 6.25 years
Expected stock price volatility 44.0%
Risk-Free interest rate 2.4%
Expected dividend yield —%
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The folff lowing tabla e summarizes stock option activity under the PH Parent Option Plan and Plan:

Number of
Shares

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

Weighted-
Average
Remaining
Contractual

Life

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

(in thousands)

Outstanding at January 1, 2022 19,916,202 $ 5.90 9.36 $ 398,117
Granted 93,793 26.35
Exercised (6,675,810) 2.01
Forfeited (157,464) 19.42
Outstanding at December 31, 2022 13,176,721 $ 7.86 9.02 $ 197,695
Granted — —
Exercised (3,104,257) 2.82
Forfeited (251,710) 22.78
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 9,820,754 $ 9.06 7.90 $ 138,028
Granted — —
Exercised (1,259,513) 2.08
Forfeited (34,331) 24.50
Balance at December 31, 2024 8,526,910 $ 10.03 7.17 $ 93,074
Exercisabla e at December 31, 2024 7,482,450 $ 8.19 7.29 $ 93,074

RSU Activity

The folff lowing tabla e summarizes the RSU activity under the Plan:

Number of Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Outstanding at January 1, 2022 984,901 $ 23.23
Granted 1,679,107 24.16
Vested (175,300) 23.68
Forfeited (84,044) 24.32
Unvested and outstanding at December 31, 2022 2,404,664 $ 23.81
Granted 1,161,301 27.50
Vested (425,076) 24.11
Forfeited (193,787) 24.43
Unvested and outstanding at December 31, 2023 2,947,102 $ 25.18
Granted 2,203,174 22.55
Vested (815,637) 25.69
Forfeited (192,364) 23.85
Unvested and outstanding at December 31, 2024 4,142,275 $ 23.73

PSU Activity

The folff lowing table summarizes thett PSU activity under thett Plan:
Number of Shares Grant Date Fair Value

Unvested and outstanding at January 1, 2023 — $ —
Granted(1)(2) 781,132 31.91
Vested — —
Forfeited (5,103) 27.61
Unvested and outstanding at December 31, 2023 776,029 $ 31.94
Granted(3) 904,960 22.92
Vested (15,735) 29.93
Forfeited (27,573) 29.05
Unvested and outstanding at December 31, 2024 1,637,681 $ 27.02
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(1) During the twelve months ended December 31, 2023, Privia awarded RSUs in the forff m of PSUs to certain executive officers, market leaders and employees which vest after three years, subju ect to

continued employment of the recipients and the achievement of certain performance metric targets. The Company has identified certain performance metrics associated with these awards and certain targets

will be fully establa ished at a future date. The Company has determined that the service inception date precedes the grant date for these awards as (a) the awards were authorized prior to establishing an

accounting grant date, (b) the recipients began providing services prior to the grant date, and (c) there are performance conditions that, if not met by the accounting grant date, will result in the forff feiture of the

awards. As the service inception date precedes the accounting grant date, the Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense over the requisite service period based on the faiff r value at each reporting

date.

(2) During the twelve months ended December 31, 2023, Privia awarded RSUs in the forff m of PSUs which vest afteff r four yeff ars, subju ect to continued employment and the achievement of certain market

performance metric targets. The faiff r value of the PSUs are determined using a Monte Carlo valuation model as of the grant date and the stock-based compensation is recognized on a straight-line basis over

the requisite service period.

(3) During the twelve months ended December 31, 2024, Privia awarded RSUs in the forff m of PSUs to certain executive officers and employees which vest after three years, subject to continued employment

of the recipients and the achievement of certain performance metric targets. The Company has identified certain performance metrics associated with these awards and certain targets will be fully establa ished

at a futff urt e date. The Company has determined that the service inception date precedes the grant date for these awards as (a) the awards were authorized prior to establishing an accounting grant date, (b) the

recipients began providing services prior to the grant date, and (c) there are performance conditions that, if not met by the accounting grant date, will result in the forff feiture of the awards. As the service

inception date precedes the accounting grant date, the Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense over the requisite service period based on the faiff r value at each reporting date.

Stock-based compensation expensex

Total stock-based compensation expense was approximately $56.7 million, $37.1 million and $67.4 million forff the years ended
December 31, 2024, 2023, 2022 respectively. At December 31, 2024, there was approximately $82.0 million of unrecognized stock-
based compensation expense related to unvested options, RSUs and PSUs, net of forff feitures, that is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 1.0 year. As of December 31, 2024, the total intrinsic value of options exercised and the total fair value of
shares vested for the 2024 period was appra oximately $23.0 million and $17.9 million, respectively.

Stock-based compensation expense was classified in the consolidated statements of operations as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in Thousands) 2024 2023 2022

Cost of platform $ 18,781 $ 11,980 $ 13,758
Sales and marketing 4,097 2,475 2,711
General and administrative 33,802 22,643 50,890
Total stock-based compensation $ 56,680 $ 37,098 $ 67,359

12. Employee Benefitff Plans

The Company has a voluntary 4rr 01(k) savings plan that provides a 3.0% safe harbor contribution to all employees. In addition, a
minimum profit-sharing contribution is required to satisfy year end plan testing. The profit-sharing contribution was approximately
1.5% in 2024, and1.4% in 2023 and 2022, respectively. The Company made contributions of approximately $5.6 million, $4.7 million
and $4.1 million forff the years ended December 31, 2024, 2023 and 2022, respectively, recorded within cost of platforff m, sales and
marketing and general and administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

13. Commitments and Contingencies

There are no material commitments and contingencies as of December 31, 2024 and 2023.

14. Concentrations of Credit Risk

Our finff ancial instruments that are potentially subju ect to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, and
accounts receivable. While the Company’s cash and cash equivalents are managed by reputable financial institutions, the Company’s
cash balances with the individual institutions may at times exceed the federalff ly insured limits. At December 31, 2024, subsu tantially all
of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents were held at two financial institutions.

The folff lowing tabla e provides the Company’s revenue concentrations with respect to major payers comprising 10% or more of the
Company’s total revenues (n/a - indicates balance or activity that is less than 10%):

For the Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in Thousands) 2024 2023 2022

Payer A 26 % 23 % 25 %
Payer B 17 % 16 % 18 %
Payer C 15 % 15 % n/a
Payer D n/a 10 % n/a
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The folff lowing tabla e provides the Company’s concentrations of credit risk with respect to major payers comprising 10% or more of the
Company’s receivables, net (n/a - indicates balance or activity that is less than 10%):

For the Years Ended December 31,

(Dollars in Thousands) 2024 2023

Payer A 46 % 44 %
Payer B 19 % 19 %
Payer C 14 % 13 %

15. Net Income (Loss) Per Share

A reconciliation of net income (loss) availabla e to common shareholders and the number of shares in the calculation of basic and
diluted earnings (loss) income per share was calculated as folff lows:

For the Years Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except forff share and per share amounts) 2024 2023 2022

Net income (loss) attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc. common
stockholders $ 14,385 $ 23,079 $ (8,585)
Weighted average common shares outstanding - basic 119,402,749 116,731,406 110,695,266
Weighted average common share outstanding - diluted 125,614,171 124,686,067 110,695,266

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Privia Health Group,u Inc.
common stockholders – basic $ 0.12 $ 0.20 $ (0.08)

Earnings (loss) per share attributable to Privia Health Group,u Inc.
common stockholders – diluted $ 0.11 $ 0.19 $ (0.08)

The treasury srr tock method is used to consider the effect of the potentially dilutive stock options. The following weighted-average
outstanding shares of potentially dilutive securities were excluded froff m computation of diluted loss per share attributable to common
shareholders for the period presented because including them would have been antidilutive:

For the Years Ended December 31,

2024 2023 2022

Potentially dilutive stock options to purchase common stock, RSUs and PSUs 8,095,444 5,589,224 15,581,385
Total potentially dilutive shares 8,095,444 5,589,224 15,581,385

16. Segment Financial Information

The Company determined in accordance with ASC Topic 280, Segment Reporting (“ASC 280”), that the Company operates in and
reports as a single operating segment, which is to care forff its patients’ needs. Operating segments are identified as components of an
enterprise where separate discrete finff ancial information is available for evaluation by the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”),
or decision-making group, who reviews financial operating results on a regular basis forff the purpose of allocating resources and
evaluating finff ancial performance.

The Company defines its CODM as its Chief Executive Officer, who regularly reviews finff ancial operating results on a consolidated
basis for purposff es of allocating resources and evaluating finff ancial performance. Although the Company derives its revenues froff m a
number of differeff nt geographic regions, the Company neither allocates resources based on the operating results from the individual
regions, nor manages each individual region as a separate business unit. The Company’s CODM manages the operations on a
consolidated basis to make decisions about overall corporate resource allocation and to assess overall corporate profitabia lity. As of
December 31, 2024 and 2023, all of the Company’s long-lived assets were located in the United States.

The CODM uses consolidated net income (loss) attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc. to evaluate financial performance and
allocate resources. Consolidated net income (loss) attributable to Privia Health Group, Inc. for the periods ending December 31, 2024,
2023 and 2022 were $14.4 million, $23.1 million and $(8.6) million, respectively.
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